Parks Committee Agenda
Jefferson County
Videoconference OR
Jefferson County Courthouse
311 S. Center Ave, Rm 205
Jefferson, WI 53549

Join Zoom Meeting
https://zoom.us/j/95124177828

Meeting ID: 951 2417 7828

One tap mobile
+13017158592,,95124177828# US (Germantown)

Dial by your location
+1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown)

Date:  Monday, August 3, 2020
Time: 9:00a.m.

Committee Members: Greg David, Jeff Johns, Mike Kelly, Jeff Smith, Augie Tietz

Call to order

Roll call (establish a quorum)

Certification of compliance with the Open Meetings Law

Approval of the agenda

Approval of Park Committee Minutes for June 1, 2020 and July 6, 2020

Communications

Public Comment (Members of the public who wish to address the Committee on specific agenda items must register their

request at this time)

8. Discussion and Possible Action on amending the Jefferson County Parks Ordinance to prohibit the release of wild and domestic
animals in County Parks

9. Discussion and Possible Action on updating the Jefferson County Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan

10. Discussion on completion of Carnes Park Handicap Access Trail

11. Discussion on Project Update Rock River Landing

12. Discussion on Signage Installed on Interurban Trail Segment Phase |

13. Discussion on Glacial Heritage Area (GHA) — Friends of GHA Activity Update

14. Discussion on 2020 Parks Department Budget

15. Adjourn

16. Next scheduled meeting: September 7, 2020

NounkwnpR

A Quorum of any Jefferson County Committee, Board, Commission or other body, including the Jefferson County Board of
Supervisors, may be present at this meeting.

Individuals requiring special accommodations for attendance at this meeting should contact the County Administrator 24 hours prior
to the meeting at 920-674-7101 so appropriate arrangements can be made.


https://zoom.us/j/95124177828

Parks Committee Minutes
Jefferson County #5
Videoconference OR
Jefferson County Courthouse
311S. Center Ave, Rm 112
Jefferson, WI 53549

Date: Monday, June 1, 2020
Time: 9:00a.m.

Committee Members: Greg David, Jeff Johns, Mike Kelly, Jeff Smith, Augie Tietz

1. Callto order
Wehmeier called the meeting to order @ 9:01am

2. Roll call (establish a quorum)

Parks Committee Present: David, Johns, Kelly (remote), Smith, Tietz
Parks Committee Absent:

Staff Present: Truman, Wehmeier, Wiesmann, Udovich
Others in Attendance: Nass, Frankie Fuller

3. Election of Parks Committee Chair, Vice-Chair and Secretary
David/Johns motion to nominate Tietz as committee Chair. Motion passes 5/0.
David/Tietz motion to nominate Johns as Vice Chair. Motion passes 5/0.
Johns/Tietz motion to nominate David Secretary. Motion passes 5/0.

4. Certification of compliance with the Open Meetings Law
Wehmeier certified compliance with the Open Meetings Law

5. Approval of the agenda
Approved as written

6. Approval of Park Committee Minutes for February 3, 2020
Johns/David motion to approve the minutes from February 3, 2020. Motion passes 4/0. David abstains from voting.

7. Communications
No communications at this time

8. Public Comment (Members of the public who wish to address the Committee on specific agenda items must register their
request at this time)
No public comment

9. Discussion and Orientation on the Services Offered by the Parks Department
a. Jefferson County Parks
i. Shelter Rentals

ii. Camping

b. Bicycle Trails

c. Water Trails

d. Flood Mitigation Properties

e. Glacial Heritage Area

f.  State Natural Area

g. Facilities Maintenance
Truman
Wiesmann

10. Discussion on Parks Operations due to COVID-19
a. Dog Park



b. Shelters

c. Camping

d. Office Hours

e. Staffing
Wiesmann

Truman
David — vote against any types of restrictions because of COVID

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Discussion and Possible Action on Banning Female Dogs in Heat from the Jefferson County Dog Park
Truman
David — draft ordinance change for next meeting

Discussion on Park, Recreation, Open Space Plan Process
Wiesmann

Truman

David — food parks in the county

Discussion on Draft Sign Plan for Garman Nature Preserve
Wiesmann — 106 Group,

Discussion on Rock River Landing

Wehmeier — update on status of the park. Grading and site prep is currently taking place. Public property should be ready by
end of summer. Working on land swap with housing authority — the parking lot is on county property and would be exchanged
for green space.

Discussion on Interurban Trail Segment Phase |
Tietz - Stop sign at River Road?
Truman — Asphalt bridge to River Road

Discussion on Interurban Trail Segment Phase I
Truman
Wehmeier — trail design 30%, culverts, wetlands, grade changes, DOT state/local

Discussion on Garman Nature Preserve Sign Plan Project
See item 13.

Discussion on Historic Sites Preservation Council
Nass — indicated that one member of the committee shall be present at the Historic Sites Preservation Council.

Discussion on Glacial Heritage Area (GHA) — Friends of GHA

Frankie — noted that the Bio Blitz was cancelled due to COVID-19 and the committee is looking at alternative ways to collect
data at the park(s). Fuller would like to meet in the next few weeks with Wiesmann/Truman to discuss information collection.
Fuller also questioned if volunteers can help with parks maintenance?

Discussion on Projects and Capital Purchases for 2020

Wiesmann — noted that the 5 year cap project list will included in the in Park Recreation Open Space Plan has been included for
the committee’s reference. It has also noted that selected 2020 Capital equipment purchases are on hold until otherwise
approved by the county administrator and finance director.

Wehmeier — noted that the county is looking at ways to balance revenue losses.

Discussion on 2020 Parks Department Budget
Wehmeier

Adjourn
David/Johns 5/0 @ 10:30am

Next scheduled meetings: July 3, 2020



A Quorum of any Jefferson County Committee, Board, Commission or other body, including the Jefferson County Board of
Supervisors, may be present at this meeting.

Individuals requiring special accommodations for attendance at this meeting should contact the County Administrator 24 hours prior
to the meeting at 920-674-7101 so appropriate arrangements can be made.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

#5

PARKS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Monday, July 6, 2020 @ 9:00 a.m.
Jefferson County Courthouse, Room 112 and virtual via zoom.us/j/96394152079

Call to Order: Meeting called to order by Chair Augie Tietz at 9:00 a.m.

Roll Call: Present: Greg David, Jeff Johns, Mike Kelly (virtual), Jeff Smith, Augie Tietz (virtual). Quorum
established. Other staff present: Walt Christensen, Board Supervisor; Steve Nass, Board Supervisor; Terri
Palm-Kostroski, Human Resources Director (virtual); Dick Schultz, County Board Supervisor; Brian Udovich,
Highway Operations Manager; Benjamin Wehmeier, County Administrator; Kevin Wiesmann, Parks
Supervisor. Members of the public present: Frankie Fuller; Sam Jonas.

Certification of compliance with the Open Meetings Law: Confirmed by B. Wehmeier.

Review of Agenda: No changes.

Approval of June 1, 2020, Parks Committee Minutes. Tabled until next meeting.

Communications: One letter, included in packet.

Public Comment: None.

Discussion _and Possible Action on Banning Female Dogs in Heat from the Jefferson County Dog Park.
Motion by M. Kelly to approve banning female dogs in heat from the Jefferson County Dog Park. Second
by G. David. Motion passed 5:0.

Discussion _and Possible Action on Animal Relocation to Jefferson County Owned Lands. Tabled.
Consensus by committee providing direction to staff to draft an ordinance addressing denial of animal
relocation to Jefferson County owned lands, to be discussed at the next Parks committee meeting.

Discussion and Possible Action on Mowing and Maintenance of Flood Mitigation Properties. Discussion
only. No action taken.

Discussion and Possible Action on Park, Recreation, Open Space Plan. Discussion only. Staff will present a
final draft resolution for August Parks Committee meeting and August Board meeting. No action taken.

Discussion on operational changes re: COVID19. Discussion only. No action taken.

Discussion on Holzhueter Conservation Park. Discussion only. No action taken.

Discussion on HWY E Put In Take Out Joint Project with DNR Wildlife Staff. Discussion only. No action
taken.

Discussion on Born Learning Trail Grant - Watertown Community Health Foundation. Discussion only. No
action taken.

Discussion on Glacial River Mountain Bike Trail Public Works Station Donation. Discussion only. No action
taken.




17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

Discussion on Glacial River Mountain Bike Trail Public Works Station Donation. Discussion only. No action
taken.

Discussion on Rock River Landing. Discussion only. No action taken.

Discussion on Interurban Trail Segment Phase |l. Discussion only. No action taken.

Discussion on Historic Sites Preservation Council. Discussion only. No action taken.

Discussion on Glacial Heritage Area (GHA) — Friends of GHA. Discussion only. No action taken.

Discussion on 2020 Parks Department Budget. Discussion only. No action taken.

Next scheduled meetings: August 3, 2020.

Adjournment Motion by G. David to adjourn. Meeting adjourned at 10:11 a.m.



#6

JEFFERSON COUNTY

Jefferson County Parks Department
311 South Center Ave., Room 204
Jefferson, WI 53549

(920) 674-7260

July 30, 2020

Immediate Release

VATERTOWN/OCONOMOWOC
INTERURBAN

Pictured above: Dan Bartz, Watertown Chapter of Whitetails Unlimited

The Watertown Chapter of Whitetails Unlimited donates another $500 to the Jefferson County
Interurban Trail.

Whitetails Unlimited was founded in 1982 and is based in Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin. The
Watertown Chapter was established a year later and has been led by brothers Dan and Don
Bartz over the past 15 years. The WTU mission is to raise funds in support of educational
programs, wildlife habitat enhancement and acquisition, and preservation of the hunting tradition



for future generations. Whitetails representative Dan Bartz says “We are glad to donate these
funds to the Interurban Trail development because it benefits our city and will likely be used by
area sportsmen.”

The funds will be used for the Interurban Trail by Jefferson County Parks.

Anyone interested in helping to fund the trail is encouraged to contact Mary Truman or Kevin
Wiesmann at 920-674-7260 or jeffcoparks@jeffersoncountywi.gov

Jefferson County Parks Department
311 South Center Ave., Room 204
Jefferson, WI 53549

920-674-7260

Jeffcoparks@jeffersoncountywi.gov



mailto:jeffcoparks@jeffersoncountywi.gov
mailto:Jeffcoparks@jeffersoncountywi.gov

#8

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-____

Amending the Jefferson County Parks Ordinance to prohibit the release of wild and domestic
animals in County Parks.

Executive Summary

Parks Department staff have received reports of live wild animals being released in Jefferson
County parks. This ordinance amendment is intended to help maintain a healthy balance of wild
animals in county parks by prohibiting the release of wild and domestic animals. This will allow
members of the public to continue to enjoy the County park system by preventing domestic
animals and excessive wild animals from interfering with the peaceful enjoyment of park
visitors. The Parks Committee considered this Ordinance amendment at its meeting on August
3", 2020 and recommended forwarding to the County Board for approval.

THE COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF JEFFERSON COUNTY DOES
HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Section 8.07 ANIMALS IN PARKS OR ON RECREATION TRAILS of the
Jefferson County Parks Ordinance is amended by creating (5) as follows:

SECTION 8.07. ANIMALS IN PARKS OR ON RECREATION TRAILS.

(5) Domestic animals or animals that have been live-captured may not be relocated or

released to any Jefferson County park or recreation trail. [Ord. No. 2020- , 08-11-2020]
Section 2. This ordinance shall be effective after passage and publication as provided by
law.
Ayes Noes Abstain Absent Vacant
Requested by 08-11-2020

Parks Committee

REVIEWED: County Administrator ; Corporation Counsel ; Finance Director



#9
OESOLUTION NO. 2020-

Updating the Jefferson County Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan

Executive Summary

The Jefferson County Parks Department has a history of planning for the future. The focus of
Jefferson County’s Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan is to preserve natural resources while
providing outdoor recreation. This Plan includes a park and trail network that connects cities,
villages, and hamlets which will benefit not only local residents, but also draw visitors who want to
experience nature, walk, and bike on off-road trails, and visit local establishments. This is the
fourth Jefferson County Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan that has been completed, with prior
plans approved in 1997, 2005, and 2013. Jefferson County is currently in the implementation phase
of the 2013 Jefferson County Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan and the Glacial Heritage Area
Plan. This resolution updates the existing Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan for the purpose
of identifying future county-wide recreational needs and opportunities, including potential park
acquisition areas, and to qualify for federal, state and local grants and funding to further develop the
Plan. The Jefferson County Parks Committee considered this resolution at its meeting on August
3", 2020, and recommended forwarding to the County Board for adoption.

WHEREAS, the Executive Summary is incorporated into this resolution, and

WHEREAS, the Jefferson County Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan was last updated
in 2013, and

WHEREAS, the focus of the Parks Committee and Parks Department is to provide natural
resource based outdoor recreation for the public and to protect natural areas in large rural parks, and

WHEREAS, the Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan contains an inventory of existing
outdoor recreation facilities and an analysis of outdoor recreation needs.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the proposed updates to the2020 Jefferson
County Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan are hereby adopted.

Fiscal Note: Adoption of this Plan does not commit Jefferson County to any future expenditures.

All future projects and acquisitions will need County Board approval at the time they are proposed.
An updated Plan is necessary to continue to qualify for state and federal grants.

Ayes Noes Abstain Absent Vacant

Referred By:
Parks Committee 08-10-2020

REVIEWED: County Administrator ; Corporation Counsel ; Finance Director



Jefferson C

]

£ s
v p‘

Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan”

F
; !
| \
r - . X ! 34

1"



Jefferson County, Wisconsin

Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan

2020-2025

The Jefferson County Parks Department gives thanks and appreciation to the following people who gave
of their time and talents to produce this update to the Jefferson County Parks, Recreation and Open Space

Plan. The Department thanks the Jefferson County Board, Administrators, Staff, and community
members and leaders for their continued support.

Jefferson County Administrator
Ben Wehmeier

Jefferson County Board of Supervisors
Steve Nass, Chair

Amy Rinard, First Vice Chair

James Braughler, Second Vice Chair

Jefferson County Parks Committee
Greg David

Jeff Johns

Mike Kelly

Jeff Smith

Augie Tietz

Jefferson County Staff

Kevin Wiesmann, Superintendent
Mary Truman, Program Assistant
JR Klement

Mike Malaczewski

Ryan Polenski

Lindsay Rheingans

Community Advisors
Andy Didion

Walt Christensen
Frankie Fuller

Kirk Lund

Ed Morse

Hope Oostdik
Stacey Schraufnagel
Steve Sharp

Jim Schroeder

Traci Wilson

Consultants
Steve Grabow
Margaret Burlingham, LanDesign

Gerald Kokkonen, Land and Water Conservation Department, Mapping

12



Table of Contents

Acknowledgements

EXECULIVE SUMMIAIY . .oiiiiie ettt ettt et e e be et e et e et e s e e s e s s e e s beesbaesbeesbeesbeesteere s 1
Jefferson County Parks SYStEM MaP ...ccvviiiiiiciie ettt 3
Jefferson County Board ResoIUtioN (Add) ........coveiiiiiiece e 4
ACCOMPEISNIMENTS ...t bbbttt 5

Jefferson County Parks Recreation and Open Space Plan

MisSION and ViSION STAEEMENTS .........oiviiiiiiii ettt 6
IMPIEMENTALION SEIATETIES . .eevieiieie ettt eene et e sreenneeneeenns 10
Capital IMProvemMENt PIAN ........oc.oiiiii ettt sre et neeees 17
Jefferson County Parks, Shelter Amenities 2020 Chart ..........ccccviveiiieiiee s 18

Needs Assessment

Overview and Existing Park Facilities and Proposed ImMprovements ............ccccoeveevveveevvevvceveee, 19
DBMOGIAPNICS ...ttt bbbt n e 38
Public PartiCipation SUMIMAIY .........cuiiiiiiiiiiieie sttt sre s 45
Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 2019-2023..........cccceoveiievivenieiie e 52

Natural Resources Overview

OVEIVIBW ...tttk b bbb e bbbttt bbbt n e s 55
Maximum Elevations and Upland Wo0dS Map .........ccccoiiriiiiiiiieiiie e e e see e e s 65
Wetlands and FIoOdplain MAD .......ccueeiiieiiieiie et e e ae e enaee e 66
Land Use/Land CoVEr 2018 M ....cccuveiiuieiiieeiiieesiee s cieeesieeestee s stteesteeestae e sneeesnaeessaeesneeesnaaessaeesnneens 67
Appendix
AppendixX | — Planning CONEXT.........ciiiiieie ettt et sreesreenre s A-1
Glacial Heritage Area Plan..........ccooiiiiiiiiiicie e A-1
Appendix 11 — Grants and FUNAING SOUICES .........coiiiiiiiiiiiiee e A-5

13



Executive Summary

The 2020-2025 Jefferson County Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan provides the Parks Department
with facility and acquisition recommendations and an implementation plan for moving forward through
2025. The comprehensive plan must be updated every five years and was approved by the Jefferson
County Board on ........... to qualify the Parks Department for state and federal funding for park
acquisition and development.

To update the comprehensive plan, the Jefferson County Parks Department under took a systematic and
public process to assess recreational trends, review and update mission and vision statements, document
accomplishments and facility upgrades, plan for the future, and develop a capital improvement plan for

the following five years.

Jefferson County has completed extensive land use, water resource, and park planning over the last
twenty five years. All of these plans are interconnected and function together to protect natural resources
and enhance the quality of life, health, and economic development for the citizens of the County. The
Jefferson County Parks System strives to balance conservation of natural resources in large, rural parks
with public recreation and activities. The parks enhance economic activity county-wide by drawing users
to extensive trails, an award winning dog park, and unique cultural features.

The Jefferson County Parks Department has the following mission and vision statements:
Mission

The mission of the Jefferson County Parks Department is to be a catalyst for building healthy
communities that people want to live in and visit. The Parks System preserves natural
resources for public use and conservation, operates and maintains a parks system with resource
oriented recreation, trails, and special use parks; and expands the parks system for
environmental and land use benefits, improved physical and mental health, outdoor education,
and enjoyment.

Visions

. The Jefferson County Parks system of large natural resource-based parks, county-wide trails, and
cultural features is an integral part of the County’s landscape of vital and distinctive communities,
natural areas, and working farms. The Parks create special places for citizens and visitors to
interact with nature and history, exercise and play, and enjoy the outdoors.

Il.  The Jefferson County Parks system provides multiple recreational activities and facilities in
outdoor natural settings for all ages and abilities, in a way that balances recreation and
conservation values.

I1l.  Jefferson County continues to acquire unique recreational lands and natural resource areas for
public use in a planned way that keeps pace with County population growth.

IV.  The Jefferson County Parks Department takes pride in and sustains a high standard of park
design, construction, accessibility, management, safety, and maintenance. Collaboration and
communication between staff, county departments, municipalities, and the public is a priority.



V.  The Jefferson County Parks Department promotes public awareness of the Parks System and
advocates for the community health and environmental benefits of outdoor recreation, exercise,
and family activities while protecting important natural areas and water bodies.

The Jefferson County Parks System

In 2020, the Parks System operated 24 parks on 1,180 acres throughout the County, over 19 miles of
hiking trails, 35 miles of off and on-road bicycle/pedestrian trails along the Glacial River Trail and
Interurban Trail, and 199 miles of snowmobile trails. Bicycle routes have been designated on lightly
traveled roads throughout the County. This system of “pearls on a string” with rural parks connected by
trails and bicycle routes to cities, villages, and hamlets is extensively documented in the Glacial Heritage
Area Plan of 2009. A variety of outdoor activities from hiking, picnicking, bicycle riding, rustic
camping, a large dog park, mountain biking, historic sites, Frisbee golf, boating, fishing, enjoying nature,
and snowmobiling draws park users from throughout the County and beyond.

Public Process

The Parks Department strives to be inclusive of all community members in planning for the future. The
planning process convened meetings with all staff, local stakeholders, community leaders, park advocates,
conservation organizations, and county administrators. The Parks Committee has been instrumental in
reviewing the plan. Several public meetings were planned. The Covid-19 pandemic changed public
meeting plans after the first meeting on February 17, 2020. An online questionnaire asking what the
Parks Department was doing right and what could be improved was sent out to stakeholders and
advertised throughout the county. Over 45 responses came in.

The public greatly appreciates the existing parks, high degree of maintenance, and the diversity of
landscapes and features among the parks. The large parks such as Dorothy Carnes Park and the Jefferson
County Dog Park were treasured the most, along with bicycle trails and hiking trails. The respondents
asked for more bicycle trails connecting to cities and villages, more mountain bike trails, more
educational and interpretive opportunities, and more water access. Several comments suggested getting
youth more involved in the parks.

New Recommendations

The Jefferson County Parks Department partners with community foundations, businesses, and health
care organizations to enhance the lives of County residents. The addition of this sentence to the mission
statement, “The mission of the Jefferson County Parks Department is to be a catalyst for building healthy
communities that people want to live in and visit” reflects the desire of the Department to be involved
with all County communities, not apart from them.

Implementation Recommendations

Implementation and capital improvement plans guide the Department’s work for the next five years.

Continue to implement current master plans for parks and trails.

Continue to improve and expand bicycle/pedestrian trails and routes.

Improve shelters and park pavilions to accommodate a variety of gatherings in all four seasons.

Improve water access for recreation and partner with local paddling businesses.

Continue restoration and improvement of historic sites.

Explore expansion of Dorothy Carnes, Korth and the Garman Nature Preserve in accordance with the

Glacial Heritage Area Plan.

Explore potential park land acquisitions and a new dog park in the southern part of the County.

e Explore new methods of fund-raising and marketing to increase the visibility of the parks in and
around Jefferson County.




ARMAN
RESERVE

“HOLZHUETER
ST,

ATE
PARK

CAPPIES
LANDING,

i — e
| TOWN.QF i a ¥
WATERLOO #

TOWN OF
MILFORD

KORTH

PARKS
~
2o o TOWN OF
LAKE MILUS AZTALAN
¢5’
4 "'
]
]
- _ll_
A i
TOWN OF
GAKLAND
—,
| A I TOWN OF |
1 HEERON
i ——-\[—— e
oy Fr 1
: |
I aupETER S «ﬁms-‘z '
own o PARK G,
UMNER 1 A
. W e
L O\ OF o
2 COLD SPRING &
—

WELCOME
_}TRAVELERS
¢ PARK_

| B
! VILLAGE OF i i d

- -.T-V'r—mmwlT
I

! ROME

~ . POND!,
* PARK .
“ 1. v

TOWN OF
| : PALMYRA

: ‘ CARLIN
L EL
L
erLAGEoF“ ﬁﬂ' l%-__: 1
PALMYRA L_,.,, (LYY 7 ot
| o

J
i : y— [ c:rvo# R
i / wmrzwerqa(‘%_ T
i 4 I:HE—ATER
0 1 2 4 6
Miles

Document Name: BrochureMap2020_Copy
Jefferson County Land & Water Conservation Dept.
Date: 7/27/2020

Park System - Features

PARKS

& A Future
° Jefferson 5 ~ Conservation g:s(sse_rv ca;:-ﬁ\n
County Parks \ ~ Parks Plan
Glacial River Trail - Off Road
#%_ % |nterurban Bike Rout
o o urban Bike Route
Glacial River Trail - On Road
I \/
. % as” Planned Linking Bike Trais
#  + Glacial Drumlin Trail
Public Lands
3

16



Jefferson County Board Resolution




Accomplishments 2013 - 2020

This list records the accomplishments and additions to the Parks System since the 2013 Jefferson County
Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan. The Jefferson County Park System map is on page 3.

New Acquisitions

Acquisition of Cappie’s Landing with parking, boat landing, shelter, restroom, and rustic camp sites.
Acquired Hwy K Wayside and Hwy 16 Wayside with boat landing.

Added 1.9 acres to Indian Mounds Park including Native American Mounds through a land donation.
Added 5 acres to Garman Nature Preserve and access to Waterloo Road through a combination of
donations and county funds (75/25).

Glacial River Mountain Bike Trails — 18 acres of the county farm converted to hiking and mountain bike
trails.

Crawfish River Park — A donation of 17 acres along the Crawfish River by citizens of Jefferson County.

New Facilities Construction

Installation of the ADA compliant Blackhawk Island Fishing Pier, parking lot, picnic area and seasonal
restroom.

9 hole Frisbee golf course at Carlin Weld County Park.

Glacial River Mountain Bike Park established on County property with trails, obstacles and access to the
Glacial River Trail.

Phase I, 2 miles of the Interurban Trail completed with parking, Rock River bridge and fencing.

Park and Trail Improvements

Improved fishing access and seasonal restroom at Burnt Village County Park.

Dorothy Carnes County Park - rebuilt Mason Log Cabin and added interpretive signs, removed
unnecessary buildings, and added new parking lot at Mason Farm, added marsh viewing blind on south
side of park, youth and ADA hunting provided at the Kemmeter property, added ocular viewer at the
overlook and a swing set to west side of park.

Signs, bicycle sculpture, kiosks and parking added to Glacial River Trail.

Jefferson County Dog Park and Terri Tinsley Dog Exercise Area added 320’ boardwalk, dog memorial
statues, two shelters, and finished paving entrance road and parking areas.

New playground and additional parking at Korth County Park.

Popular summer Brew With A View event started at Korth Park.

New shelter and playground at Pohlmann Park.

Pier and natural shoreline restoration added at Rock River Park.

Paved Parking Lot at Carlin-Weld Park.

New playground at Welcome Travelers Park.

Replaced restroom at Cold Spring Creamery County Park.

Partnered with Town of Lake Mills to improve Korth Lane and added parking for special events.
Partnered with City of Waterloo to improve Fox Lane and build Waterloo Regional Trail Facility adjacent
to the Garman Nature Preserve.

Implementation of Rock River Trail initiative through signage and advocacy.

Several memorial benches donated and installed.

New Planning Efforts

Master Plan completed for Crawfish River Park, trails maintained by volunteers.

Plan for interpretive signs at Garman Nature Preserve completed.

Master Plan completed at Holzhueter State Park.

Completed International Mountain Biking Association (IMBA) Design Plan for the Glacial River
Mountain Bike Trails.



Mission and Vision Statements

The Jefferson County Parks Department mission and vision statements were originally developed during
the planning process for the 2005-2010 Jefferson County Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan. Input
from the public, stakeholders, the Parks Committee, and Parks staff informed the statements.

The original plan was updated in 2013 and now in 2020. The mission and visions statements have been
clarified and updated with each plan review. Implementation strategies for each of the five Vision
Statements follow this section on page 10.

Values
The Jefferson County Parks Department strives to do its work and serve the public with these core beliefs:

Respect for our park users and staff
Reputation for excellence

Pride in our accomplishments
Teamwork to achieve goals

Mission Statement

The mission statement is the over all purpose of the Jefferson County Parks Department. It reflects how
the Department serves the public and Jefferson County and informs decisions concerning the Parks
System as a whole.

The mission of the Jefferson County Parks Department is to be a catalyst for
building healthy communities that people want to live in and visit. The Parks
System preserves natural resources for public use and conservation, operates and
maintains a parks system with resource oriented recreation, trails, and special use
parks; and expands the parks system for environmental and land use benefits,
improved physical and mental health, outdoor education, and enjoyment.

Vision Statements

Vision statements lay the groundwork for where the Jefferson County Parks Department is going. The
statements describe a future, not current, park system and aid in decision-making and short and long term
planning. The Department’s work plan for the next five years implements the vision statements.

A detailed explanation of the five vision statements follows each statement.
Vision |

The Jefferson County Parks system of large natural resource-based parks, county-wide
trails, and cultural features is an integral part of the County’s landscape of vital and
distinctive communities, natural areas, and working farms. The Parks create special
places for citizens and visitors to interact with nature and history, exercise and play, and
enjoy the outdoors.



Vision | Details

Jefferson County Parks reflect the essence of Jefferson County and provide the public with opportunities
to see and interact with the landscape and natural features that include woodlands, prairies, wetlands,
waterways, geological formations, wildlife, scenic views, and cultural features such as historic farmsteads
and Native American Mounds.

Bicycle and pedestrian trails connect County Parks with cities, villages, hamlets and other parks. Trail
corridors encourage users to slow down and experience the rural and natural character, undulating
topography, and the invigorating seasons of Jefferson County.

The Parks Department works with the public, the Jefferson County Historic Site Preservation
Commission, the State Historical Society, the Ho-Chunk Nation, universities and colleges, and other
cultural groups to respect, protect and preserve historic icons in County Parks and along trails, including
buildings with historical and cultural significance and Native American Mounds.

Vision 11

Jefferson County Parks provide multiple recreational activities and facilities in an outdoor
natural settings for all ages and abilities in a way that balances recreation and
conservation values.

Vision Il Details
The Jefferson County Parks Department studies and monitors trends in outdoor recreation, exercise, and
health care to consider existing and new activities in which participation is increasing.

Accessibility to park experiences is offered to the less able wherever possible.

Multiple activities are offered in large parks for family togetherness and public enjoyment such as
picnicking, open areas for play, playgrounds, in-park bicycle and mountain bike paths, hiking and
interpretive trails, fishing, camping, boat launches, scenic drives, community gardens, dog parks, sports
like Frisbee golf, and cultural and historical sites to explore.

Jefferson County Parks protect unique and significant natural resource areas as preserves within the Parks
System. Nature-based conservation parks offer primarily silent sport experiences such as hiking, nature
study, nature photography, bird watching, cross-country skiing, snowshoeing, and non-motorized water
sports such as canoeing and kayaking.

Some Parks are places to experience and learn about the historical and cultural context of Jefferson
County through restored and protected buildings, farmsteads and Native American Mounds.

Off-road and on-road bicycle and pedestrian trails are an important and desired component of the Parks
System connecting parks with cities, villages, and hamlets throughout Jefferson County and beyond.

Vision 111

Jefferson County continues to acquire unique recreational lands and natural resources
areas for public use in a planned way that keeps pace with County population growth.

20



Vision 111 Details
Jefferson County has adopted the standard of 12 acres of park land per 1000 residents. The Parks system
complements and enhances the vision and details of the Glacial Heritage Area Plan for a major system of
diverse parks, trails, and resource conservation areas serving local and regional needs. Potential park
lands are identified, prioritized and acquired from willing sellers in a planned way. Land may be acquired
in fee or through conservation easements for new undeveloped conservation parks, for the expansion of
existing parks, and to preserve biological diversity. The following natural and cultural resources are
priorities:

= Lakes

= Wetlands

= River corridors

= High points and drumlins

= Large woodlands

= High quality native plant communities

= Wildlife corridors

= Native American Mounds and historic sites

= Groundwater recharge areas

Trail and greenway corridors are identified and acquired in fee or as easements to link parks and urban
areas in accordance with the Jefferson County Bicycle Plan and Glacial Heritage Area Plan.

The public seeks more interaction with the rivers and lakes in Jefferson County and land may be acquired
to provide access to water and canoe/kayak trails, to preserve habitat, and to improve water quality.

Conservation easements may be acquired or donated to buffer parks from development, preserve
environmental corridors, create linkages and greenways, protect areas for future park expansion, and to
preserve agricultural land adjacent to a park project area.

The Jefferson County Parks Department has endowment and donor advised funds in place for acquisition
purposes and development.

Vision 1V

The Jefferson County Parks Department takes pride in and sustains a high standard of
park design, construction, accessibility, management, safety, and maintenance.
Collaboration and communication between staff, county departments, municipalities, and
the public is a priority.

Vision 1V Details
Jefferson County Parks perform several key functions that require a variety of skills and staff:
e Grounds and facilities maintenance
e Vegetation and wildlife management
e Visitor and staff safety
o Capital program and large-scale facilities implementation

The Jefferson County Parks Department has sufficient trained and engaged staff and the equipment to
maintain and improve park properties now and in the future. It is a full-time department and has full-time
staff that is sufficient to operate the parks seven days a week year-round. Operations equipment is
available and in good condition to accomplish tasks efficiently. Staff is trained to maintain and restore
native vegetation and manage wildlife. Visitor and staff safety is and will continue to be the highest

8

21



priority. Parks staff works cooperatively with other entities to accomplish County Park initiatives and
pursues successful funding strategies.

Vision V

The Jefferson County Parks Department promotes public awareness of the Parks System
and advocates for the community health and environmental benefits of outdoor
recreation, exercise, and family activities while protecting important natural areas and
water bodies.

Vision V Details

The Jefferson County Parks Department has in place a communication plan to inform the public and
County Board of its initiatives, park locations, natural resources, recreational activities, and events.

The Department engages with the Jefferson County Tourism Council, Chambers of Commerce, Economic
Development Agencies, and local and regional publications to promote park awareness, the economic
impact of the Parks System, and its direct benefits to communities, residents, and the environment.
Working cooperatively with local health care providers to inform the public conveys the benefits of
exercise and experiencing nature for physical and mental health.

Jefferson County becomes a Midwestern model for healthy communities, thriving ecosystems, and
sustainable economic growth.

22



Implementation Strategies

Implementation strategies and recommendations bring the Visions for the Jefferson County Parks
Department and System to life. This section is the basis for the Department’s work plan for the next five
years. The Capital Improvement Plan follows on page 17 and specific implementation recommendations
for each park and trail begin on page 19.

Park System Planning Strategies

The Jefferson County Parks Department has been proactive in planning by developing comprehensive
plans for the system and master plans for each park, both of which provided public input opportunities.

The Parks Department was extensively involved in the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resource’s
2009 Glacial Heritage Area Plan that laid out a system of pearls (parks) on a string (connecting trails)
throughout Jefferson County and into adjacent counties. To continue the Department’s commitment to
good planning, the following strategies will be employed.

= Update the Jefferson County Parks and Outdoor Recreation Plan every five years to remain grant
eligible and re-evaluate trends in recreation and community needs.

= Involve park users and the public when planning park facilities to both encourage their input on
park activities and facilities and to educate the public about the natural resources of Jefferson
County.

= Consult with all parks staff, County Board members, and Administration during planning efforts.

= Continue to implement and update approved Park Master Plans and the Glacial Heritage Area

Plan to provide recreation and conservation opportunities

e Continue to implement the recommendations of the Mason Farm Site Plan and Dorothy
Carnes Master Plan at Dorothy Carnes County Park East.

e Continue to implement the Korth Park Master Plan.

e The Holzheuter Farm Park has been purchased by the WDNR. Develop a Memorandum of
Understanding with the WDNR for park management and approve the Holzhueter State Park
Master Plan

e Continue to implement the Interurban Line Trail project

e Continue to implement the Glacial Heritage Area Water Trails; add access and paddle-in
rustic camping.

o Develop a management plan for flood mitigation properties throughout the County for public
use.

Recreation and Conservation Strategies

Individual park and trail master plans provide the implementation details for recreation and conservation
at each property. The strategies below generally apply to all the parks and trails though there may be
specific priority recommendations for certain properties. Detailed recommendations are found in the
following Existing Park Facilities and Proposed Improvements section beginning on page 19.

= Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) recommendations are implemented in all parks.
10

23



e All new park structures are built to be universally accessible.

e Accessible decks, boardwalks, playgrounds, and interpretive displays immerse the less able in
park and natural experiences.

e Special “golf cart” days or other activities provide access to all parts of the parks.

Cultivate formal friends groups that are contracted to complete specific tasks. Current groups are the
Friends of Rose Lake, Friends of the Glacial Heritage Area, Friends of the Dog Park, and a Mountain
Biking group. Form a friends group for Crawfish River Park.

Preserve and improve natural areas through acquisition and landscape restoration by removing
invasive species, periodic controlled burns, new seedings and plantings, wildlife management,
shoreline restoration and cleanup, tree planting, and writing management plans for natural areas.
Implement approved hunting and trapping policies where needed for management purposes.

Inform and involve the public in stewardship activities. Educate users on natural seasonal changes
that may require closing some trails at certain times of the year, such as bird and waterfowl nesting
seasons.

e Interpretive signs, guided walks, group activities, and school field trips provide educational
opportunities within the parks.

e A volunteer coordinator helps guide educational and volunteer efforts.

o Friends groups at specific parks offer and coordinate learning experiences. Educational activities
may be jointly planned with the Friends of the Glacial Heritage Area, Friends of Rose Lake, and
other groups when appropriate.

o Develop a periodic newsletter to interest the public in the parks and activities.

Educate dog owners on leash requirements to protect wildlife and other park users.

e Engage a marketing intern to explore digital social media methods to connect with the public in

order to promote and raise awareness of the parks.

Bicycle/Pedestrian Trail and Route Improvement

e Update the Jefferson County Bicycle Plan.

e Continue development of the Glacial River Trail in Jefferson County and adjacent Counties.

e Position the Parks Department to apply for upcoming grant cycles to implement the Watertown-
Oconomowaoc (Interurban Line), Watertown to Waterloo, and Waterloo to Lake Mills linking
bicycle/pedestrian trail projects.

e Work with the Jefferson County Highway Department to improve on-road County Bicycle Routes
when improving roadways.

e Continue to work with the City of Waterloo to incorporate the Waterloo Regional Trailhead
facility into the Garman Nature Preserve and trails linking Waterloo to Lake Mills and
Watertown.

e Connect the Glacial Drumlin State Trail to the Jefferson County Dog Park and Aztalan State Park
where facilities and activities are available.

o Work with the Village of Cambridge, Dane County, the Jefferson County Highway Department
and others to coordinate bicycle route improvement and implementation of the Cambridge
Connector Trail from the Village of Cambridge to the Glacial Drumlin Trail.

e Create destination points, rest areas, and side trips to other activities along the bicycle/pedestrian
trails.

e Encourage cities and villages to incorporate bicycle routes to County Parks into municipal land
use and bicycle/pedestrian plans.

11

24



= Continue to improve the Jefferson County Dog Park, the most used park in the system, with the
assistance of a Dog Park Friends group and a volunteer coordinator. Consider acquisition of
additional land for a dog park in the Fort Atkinson/Whitewater area.

= Appropriately placed and sized park pavilions accommodate outdoor, sheltered, or indoor gatherings.

Electricity, running water, and customer comfort features are provided at shelters.

Picnic areas include playgrounds. Where it is complementary to the park, playgrounds may be
made of natural materials and/or feature nature themes.

Explore the addition of a four-season facility at Korth County Park.

Add active play features where appropriate, such as workout equipment along trails and games
such as horseshoes and corn hole, which complement family gatherings.

Explore wireless technology for security cameras at select parks.

Add wireless access points in parks where appropriate.

Consider Park-sponsored public events such as Brew With a View at other parks.

= Restore and improve historic sites.

Continue to follow maintenance plans for the Native American Mounds at Garman Nature
Preserve and Indian Mounds and Dorothy Carnes County Parks.

Add interpretive signs at the Garman Nature Preserve and Indian Mounds and Dorothy Carnes
County Parks to educate the public about the significance and history of Native American
Mounds.

Consider organizing field trips, summer camps, and cultural and historical educational
experiences for all ages.

= [mprove water access.

Enhance the Glacial Heritage Area Water Trail System (canoe and kayak trails) on suitable
waterways with launches, rest stop areas, paddle-in camping, and informational kiosks.

Work with the Friends of the Glacial Heritage Area to improve paddling access on smaller rivers
and tributaries.

Work with local paddling businesses to rent kayaks and canoes in convenient places.

Maintain and improve motorized boat landings.

Acquisition Strategies

Jefferson County has been acquiring park land that protects important natural and scenic areas and is
appropriate for public use from willing sellers. Jefferson County’s potential acquisition areas are
documented in the Glacial Heritage Area Plan. Specific sites, acreage, and possible acquisition
boundaries are detailed in that plan.

New Land Acquisition Priorities

The following seven properties are proposed as conservation parks if the land becomes available for
purchase from willing sellers and a price can be agreed upon. Since the 2013 comprehensive plan, the
Cold Spring Drumlin property has been sold for private development.

Holzheuter Farm Park: This scenic property has been purchased by the WDNR as a State Park
for mountain bike and trail use and will be managed in partnership with Jefferson County.
Purchase of one inholding within the property may be pursued.

12

25



e Cushman Mills: Drumlins meet the Bark River on the Cushman Farm. This site has spectacular
views, oak-hickory and maple-basswood forest, several historic pioneer sites, and canoe/kayak
potential.

e Oakland Highlands: This hilltop features a large wooded area on a glacial moraine with
spectacular views of Lake Koshkonong and the surrounding area, oak-hickory woods, remnant
prairie, and a blue heron rookery.

o Red Cedar Lake: One of the most pristine lakes in southeastern Wisconsin and a State Natural
Area with several rare plant communities.

e North Shore Moraine: An area of hilly topography, woods, agricultural land, and wetlands
overlooking Rock Lake.

e Hope Lake: An undeveloped fishing lake with a high quality tamarack bog. The bog has been
purchased by the Department of Natural Resources.

e Scuppernong Valley: Covering nearly a whole section (640 acres), this property features
remnant prairie, woodlands, high quality wetlands, and wildlife.

Park and Trail Expansion Priorities
If land comes up for sale, pursue acquisition of property adjacent or near to existing parks for possible
expansion, as identified in park master plans and/or the Glacial Heritage Area Plan.

Expansion Priorities — expansion boundaries are identified in the Glacial Heritage Area Plan
e Dorothy Carnes County Park
e Korth County Park
e Dr.J. S. Garman Nature Preserve

Corridor Priorities
o Waterloo to Watertown.
e Waterloo to Lake Mills via McKay Nursery land and along County Rd O to Rock Lake Rd.

e Old Interurban Line (WE Energies Corridor) from Watertown to Ixonia and Oconomowoc. New
parking areas may be pursued.

Water Access Acquisition Priorities

= A Glacial Heritage Area Watertrails River-Based Campground Assessment was performed. The
Watertrails Committee scouted many potential paddle-in camping locations. The following three
areas in Jefferson County were chosen as priority areas:
e Hahn’s Lake area on the Rock River near Grellton
e Arztalan State Park on the Crawfish River
e Cushman Mill on the Bark River

= River Corridors identified in the Glacial Heritage Area Plan are high quality habitat blocks in
riparian zones. Acquisition and protection is recommended in the following three corridors:
= Allen Creek Conservation Area/Allen Creek Wetland State Natural Area south of Fort Atkinson.
= Lower Bark River Conservation Area just east of Fort Atkinson.
= Lower Koshkonong Creek Conservation Area just north of Lake Koshkonong

13

26



= Acquisition for water access, riparian area protection, and wetland protection is also desirable along
the following waterbodies if land becomes available:

Rose Lake

Rock Lake and Marsh Lake near Lake Mills

Hope Lake

Red Cedar Lake

Crawfish River

Rock River

Bark River

Allen Creek

Lower Koshkonong Creek

Conservation Easement Acquisition Strategies

Conservation easements can expand the footprint of County parks by permanently protecting farmland
and natural areas adjacent to parks by either fee easements or donated easements. Easements can buffer
parks from development in the long term and also stabilize the loss of farmland and natural areas.
Easements can be more cost effective and also provide landowners with a way to realize capital without
selling the land. Land owners may receive a tax deduction for a donated easement.

= |nstitute a purchase or donation of conservation easements program in the Parks Department and
work with the Jefferson County Farmland Conservation Easement Program, WDNR, GHA, NRCS,
non-profit conservation and trail organizations, and private entities to:

Buffer parks and protect environmental corridors.

Create multi-purpose trail corridors.

Retain and enhance rural character.

Separate urban service areas to retain their unique identity and distinctive community character.

Protect critical groundwater infiltration and aquifer replenishment areas.

Protect groundwater quality.

Explore the mutual benefits of conservation easements with farmers and landowners.

= Consider multiple funding sources for easement purchases such as County, state and federal funds,
non-profit conservation organizations, zero-coupon bonding, conservation referendums, and others.

= Work with the WDNR and farmland owners to promote the WDNR voluntary access program for
hunting.

Departmental Management Strategies

Departmental management and staffing are important for efficient day to day maintenance and reaching

long term goals. Involving all staff in planning and decisions leads to good moral, problem-solving, buy-

in on long-term visions and goals, and creativity.

= The Parks Committee and Operations Staff interact and work collaboratively to design, plan, and
implement projects in response to an annual plan of work and capital program.

= Staff and community members are continually empowered to participate in park planning and
improvement projects.

14

27



The Parks Department collaborates with other County Departments in sharing equipment and
resources to accomplish maintenance and construction tasks in a timely manner.

Regular education, seminars, and safety training are offered to the Parks Committee and all levels of
Staff.

Staff training sessions are held on vegetative management, removal of invasive species, and
controlled burns.

Full-time parks staff positions and a volunteer coordinator position are returned to previous levels.

Create a Naturalist position to assist with natural areas management and public education through
park sponsored classes and nature walks.

Follow a Capital Improvement Plan that prioritizes new facilities development and seeks innovative
funding sources. Periodically review the capital improvement plan.

Partnership and Fund-Raising Strategies

Throughout the years the Jefferson County Parks Department has pursued good relationships with donors,
local foundations, and government agencies for funding, donations, and grants. The Department seeks to
develop a fundraising plan with donor directed funds and a general endowment that grow over time for
acquisition, capital projects and maintenance. The Department seeks to partner with local hospitals and
the medical community to advance community health. The Department also partners with local
businesses to conduct activities in the parks.

Jefferson County enters into cooperative agreements with the Wisconsin Department of Natural
Resources for mutual benefit.

Jefferson County partners with non-profit conservation organizations, community organizations and
agencies, the private sector, and Friends groups on park initiatives.

Jefferson County coordinates park initiatives with other jurisdictions to limit unnecessary duplication.

Jefferson County partners with the health and medical field to provide exercise and mental health
opportunities to benefit our citizens. The Department partners with health care providers in the media
and through recreational events to communicate how an active outdoor lifestyle reduces health care
costs for businesses and government.

Jefferson County Parks maintains, strengthens, and develops relationships and partnerships with non-
profit conservation organizations to obtain state, federal, and local funding.

Strong partnerships are formed with businesses that believe in the link between parks and trails and
their economic success. Current partnerships include TREK, Fort Health Care, Standard Process, 2
Rivers Bicycle & Outdoors, Tyranena Brewery, Crave Brothers Farm, Greater Watertown Health
Foundation, and Sport and Spine.

The Parks Department continues to engage University of Wisconsin and other college and university
students and professors in research projects and internships.

15

28



= Jefferson County Parks continues the successful approaches that have been used to obtain private,
state, and federal grants.

= Donations are respectfully and sensitively solicited from the private sector for donor-advised funds to
be used for park acquisition and development.

= A formal gift-giving program, called the Endowment Fund, collects and invests funds for park
acquisition, maintenance, and park development.

= Jefferson County seeks corporate contributions to the Endowment Fund and corporate support for
special projects and programs.

= Jefferson County investigates new park revenue sources such as impact fees and naming rights.

Marketing Strategies

The Jefferson County Parks Department seeks to advance their marketing reach and plan, within and

outside of Jefferson County. Located between Milwaukee and Madison, the unique parks, trails, and

experiences appeal to a wide range of people seeking outdoor recreations whether that is hiking, boating,

bicycling, dog walking, or visiting historic sites.

= Jefferson County Parks Department initiatives, activities, and the benefits they provide are
communicated through a County Board communications plan, a Department web site, educational
articles, social media, Courthouse displays, the County’s Speaker’s Bureau, newspaper articles, radio
and TV spots, advertising, and promotional articles such as tee shirts.

* A new “poster plan” summarizes the Jefferson County Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Plan in
electronic and display copies to further motivate implementation and understanding.

» Develop a regular “This Is Your Parks” newsletter that informs about the parks and activities.

= Jefferson County Parks and the Glacial Heritage Area are promoted state-wide and nation-wide.

= Attractive and distinctive signage directs citizens to parks and within parks, along bike and walking
trails and routes, and to water trails. Signage along city and village bicycle routes is coordinated with
the Jefferson County Parks Department to help direct users to parks and points of interest along the
routes and trails.

= Use mobile applications and maps to engage park users.

= Digitize the Jefferson County Park, Recreation and Open Space Plan with links to pages and
interactive maps for ease of use.

= Update the Department website to be user friendly.

= Employ marketing interns to create social media park promotion campaigns.

16

29



Capital Improvement Plan

Year Project Location Project Description Cost Funding Source
2020(Glacial River Trail Repair S 30,000.00 |50/50 Grant Levy
2020|Carnes West ADA Trail S 15,000.00 |50/50 Grant Carrol Liddle
2020|Dog Park Dividing Fence Upgrad S 22,000.00 |Revenue
2020|Interurban Engineering/Design KL S 120,863.50 |Fundbalance
2020|Garman NP Interp Project S 70,000.00 |Endowment
2020|Carnes East Gate Operator S 20,000.00 [Fundbalance
2020|Crawfish River NAWCA -DU Restoration S 10,000.00 |Grants 100%
2020|HWY E Joint PiTo Project S 15,000.00 |Grants 100%
S 302,863.50
Year Project Location Project Description Cost Funding Source
2021|Dog Park Update Entrance Area2 & 3 S 35,000.00 [Revenue
2021|Holzhueter SP Parking Lot S 10,000.00 [Fundbalance GHA
2021|Cappies Replace Shelter Roof S 5,000.00 |DNR - Fundbalance/Donations
2021|Interurban KL Engineering S 49,868.80 |Fundbalance
2021|Garman Restoration/Forestry S 28,000.00 [Endowment
2021|Korth Park Shelter Curtains $20,000.00 [Levy
2022(Korth Park Playground Upgrades $15,000.00 |BWAV/LM Community Foundation
2021|Carlin-Weld Add 9-Hole Disc Golf Course $10,000.00 [$5,000.00 Donations/In-Kind, $5,000.00 County
2021|Carlin-Weld Gate Operator Replacement $5,000.00 |Levy/Fund balance 12803
2021|Flood Mitigation Utiliation and management Plan $20,000.00 [Fund Balance
S 197,868.80
Year Project Location Project Description Cost Funding Source
2022(Interurban Phase Il Trail $ 2,572,871.66 |TAP Grant, Fundbalance (Busget Estimate for
2022|Interurban KL Engineering - Any caryforward costs Fundbalance
2022|Burnt Village Launch Improvement S 7,000.00 |50/50 Grant and Levy
2022|Dog Park Electric, Lights, Cameras S 36,000.00 [Revenue
2022|Garman NP Restoration S 28,000.00 [Endowment
2022|Korth park Gate Operator Replacement $5,000.00 |Levy
$ 2,648,871.66
Year Project Location Project Description Cost Funding Source
2023|Interurban Phase 3 |[Engineering S 40,000.00 |Donations, Grants
2023|Kanow Launch Improvement/ADA S 10,000.00 |50/50 Grant: Donations
2023|Carnes East Permanent Vault Restroom S 24,000.00 [Levy
2023|Carnes West Gate Operator Replacement $5,000.00 |Operating Reserve
2023|Dog Park Fence Replacement and Upgrade $30,000.00 [Revenue
2023|Garman Restoration S 28,000.00 [Endowment
S  137,000.00
Year Project Location Project Description Cost Funding Source
2024|Interurban Engineering S 50,000.00
2024|Garman Restoration S 28,000.00 [Endowment
2024|Upper Rock Gate Operator Replacement $5,000.00 |Levy
2024|Dog Park Fence Repalcement and Upgrade S 30,000.00 [Revenue
2024|Welcome Travelers [Re-pave Parkinglot S 25,000.00 |Levy
$  138,000.00
Year Project Location Project Description Cost Funding Source
2025(Kanow Park Gate Operator Replacement S 5,000.00 [Levy
2025(Interurban Phase Il - Bridge/Engineering S 550,000.00 |Grants/Donations/Levy
2025(Interurban Phase | - Paving $175,000.00 |Grants/Donations/Levy
S 730,000.00
17

30



Jefferson County Parks, Shelter Amenities 2020

" » o
JEFFERSQ_N COUNTY " " = S % o P
% 218 2 | O | w S| €| ®
s | Ol g | 2|2 |2|0|2|¢F
Address L = ° = 5 53| ® - ks
Q 4 7 Q 9] © o 5]
c| 8| 8 3l 5| = |=|%| 8
S| F | x| @| © 8| 2| =
o H+ o > @ =
Park Name ® | 2 w
N1841 County Z
Carlin-Weld Palmyra WI, 53156 16 6 |Yes | 6 | Yes | 2 4 1 1.5
Cold Spring N1501 County N
Creamery Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 3 1 |Yes| 1 |Yes| 1 0 1 0
Cappies N8625 Jefferson Road
Landing Watertown, WI 53094 4 2 | Yes | 2 No 1 0 1 0
Dorothy N3220 Radloff Lane
Carnes Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 14 5 Yes 5 Yes 1 0 1 10
701 Fox Lane
Garman NP Waterloo, Wi 53594 3 2 Yes 2 No 1 0 1 1.5
N8248 Rock River Road
Kanow Ixonia, WI 53036 14 6 Yes 6 Yes 3 0 1 0
W8390 Korth Lane
Korth Lake Mills, WI 53551 18 7 Yes 7 Yes 2 32 1 3.5
Korth, EIm W8282 Elm Point Rd
Point Lake Mills, W1 53551 9 6 | Yes | 4 No 1 4 1 0
N4809 Duck Creek Road
Pohlman Helenville, W153137 3 2 Yes 2 Yes 1 0 1 0.25
Rock Lake, W8050 Park Lane Road
Lower Lake Mills, WI 53551 14 6 Yes 5 Yes 5 2 1 0.75
Rock Lake, N6999 Rock Lake Road
Upper Lake Mills, W1 53551 8 3 |Yes| 3 |VYes| 1 0 1 | 0.40
W5281 County B
Rock River Johnson Creek, W1 53038 4 2 Yes 2 No 1 0 1 0
W1637 County F
Rome Pond Sullivan, W1 53178 6 1 Yes 1 No 1 0 1 0
Welcome N482 County D
Travelers Whitewater, W| 53190 7 4 Yes 4 Yes 1 0 1 0

18

31




Needs Assessment
Existing Park Facilities and Proposed Improvements

The Jefferson County Parks system covers 24 parks and 1,180 acres throughout the County, over 19
miles of hiking trails, 35 miles of on and off-road bicycle/pedestrian trails on the Glacial River Trail and
Interurban Trail, and 199 miles of snowmobile trails. Bicycle routes have been designated on lightly
traveled road throughout the County.

Parks range in size from small waysides to 514 acre Dorothy Carnes County Park and Rose Lake State
Natural Area. Historic elements such as Native American Indian Mounds, an original log cabin, and
original barns have been preserved.

The system offers outdoor activities, many of which are nature-based. Most of the parks provide
picnicking, hiking, playgrounds, nature emersion, relaxation, and natural areas restoration. Bicycling,
mountain biking, boating, fishing, disc golf, and a large dog park add to the variety of activities.

The Parks Department operates out of an office
in the Jefferson County Courthouse and the
Parks Maintenance Shop on Industrial Avenue.
The Department take pride in excellent upkeep
of the parks and facilities, improvement of
natural area, and keeping communication open
with park visitors.

Over the years a park design vocabulary has been
developed giving the system a unified look.
Shelters are mostly wood with heavy timbers and
green or brown roofs. Some shelters incorporate
native fieldstone and barn boards. Restrooms
and sign boards complement the shelters. A split-rail fence design developed by the Parks Department
defines and protects areas. Playgrounds are designed with safety as a primary goal and blend in with the
surrounding scenery.

Needs Assessment

The needs assessment for the Jefferson County Parks looks at several parameters that will guide the future
of the parks system as it serves the citizens of Jefferson County. As the population grows and changes
and new recreation trends emerge, the parks department may want to add parks in certain areas of the
county and offer new recreational activities and some parks.

The Needs Assessment involves four areas of consideration:

1. Classification of the parks to assess how parks, facilities, and recreational activities are serving a
diverse population. The National Recreation and Park Association’s Park, Open Space, and Pathway
Classifications are applied to Jefferson County’s parks and trails beginning on page 20.

2. Assessing population trends and demographics and the level of service that the parks provide, starting
on page 38.

19

32



3. Public participation and input into the planning process, see page 45.

4. Consideration of the WDNR Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan and how the
recommendations of the 2019 plan apply to the Jefferson County Parks System. See page 52.

Park Classifications

As part of a needs assessment, the National Recreation and Park Association (NRPA) Park, Open Space,
and Pathway Classifications provide a guide for facilities, size criteria, and level of service standards.
Providing parks in several different classifications creates variety and flexibility in a park system.

The NPRA classifications apply primarily to city and municipal park departments with active
recreation such as ball fields, team play, swimming pools and skateboard parks. Jefferson
County Parks provide outdoor nature-based recreation, trails, and activitie in rural areas. The
standards recommend that county parks should be a minimum of 40 acres.

Jefferson County’s Parks and Trails are listed in the following section with existing facilities,
improvements since 2013 and proposed improvements. The parks and trails are categorized by the NPRA
classifications from smallest to largest. A trail needs assessment follows the park section.

Very Small Parks
According to the NPRA, very small parks address limited, isolated, or unique recreational needs and are
between 2500 sq. ft. and 5 acres in size.

Blackhawk Island Fishing Pier

Blackhawk Island Road, Fort Atkinson, 2 acres

Blackhawk Island is a flood-prone area along the Rock River. Jefferson County has been acquiring
unlivable properties for several years. An ADA-complaint fishing pier and parking lot were built on land
adjacent to the Island Grill. Picnic tables and a seasonal restroom are available.

Accomplishments since 2013
e ADA fishing pier
e Seasonal restroom
e Small parking lot
e Picnic area

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025
e Repair shorelines that are crumbling
e Periodic flooding precludes most new
improvements

20

33



Burnt Village County Park
W9158 County Rd N, Fort Atkinson, 2 acres

Historically a Native American village was located at this site and later a Federal encampment during the
Blackhawk War of 1832. Burnt Village Park is on CTH N at the bridge over the Bark River. The park is
used as a wayside and fishing area. A boat ramp serves boats, canoes and kayaks. A seasonal restroom, a
few picnic tables and a grill are available. Period flooding limits development to fishing and boat launch
improvement.

Accomplishments since 2013
e Improved fishing access
e Added seasonal restroom

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025
e ADA fishing pier improvement, add suspended
platform
e ADA kayak launch
e Periodic flooding prevents many improvements

Cold Spring Creamery County Park
N1501 County Rd N, Fort Atkinson, 0.787 acres

Cold Spring Creamery County Park is a small wayside adjacent to the hamlet of Cold Spring. The park is
used for picnicking and has a flowing well. A historical marker commemorates the place where Abraham
Lincoln’s horse was stolen in 1832 while camping for the
night on his way back to Illinois from the Blackhawk
War. A shelter, swing set, restroom, and a Little Free
Library are provided.

Accomplishments since 2013
e Updated restroom

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025
e Reset and regrade around restroom to improve
drainage
e New park sign

Highway 16 Wayside
W802 STH 16, Ixonia, 4.4 Acres

The STH 16 Wayside is along the Rock River between
Oconomowoc and Ixonia. Periodic flooding limits
development. The wayside is used for picnics, family
play, fishing, and canoe/kayak launching. A historic
marker commemorates STH 16 as the first numbered
highway in Wisconsin (Hwy 19 at that time).

21

34



Accomplishments since 2013
e Acquisition
o Planted new trees to replace failing trees

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025
e Improved gate for closures
e Rehabilitate restrooms
o ADA kayak/canoe launch

Joy County Park
N6881 County Rd F, Oconomowaoc, 1 acre

Joy Park, just north of the 1-94 and CTH F exit, is a small
wayside park on Spence Lake. Picnicking, fishing and
bird watching are activities.

Accomplishments since 2013
e Continued maintenance

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025
e Plant pine plantation on grassy area to reduce
mowing
o Gravel access trail to Spence Lake

Rock River County Park
W5281 County Rd B, Johnson Creek, 4 acres

Rock River Park is on CTH B between Johnson Creek and Lake Mills in a rural setting on the Rock
River. The park offers picnicking, boating, and fishing. There is a flowing well and the shoreline has
recently been improved with native plants. Flooding can lead to periodic closures.

Accomplishments since 2013
e Pier added to boat launch
e Natural shoreline planting
¢ Kiosk with maps and park rules
e Improved gate for nightly closures.

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025

ADA compliant boat launch and fishing pier
Fire ring and seating

Permanent seating near shoreline

Periodic flooding closes the park and limits
improvements

22

35



Smaller Parks
Smaller parks serve recreational and social needs of a smaller geographic service area. Five acres is
considered the minimum size and between 7 and 10 acres is optimal. These parks provide typical
neighborhood recreation or play activities. Jefferson County would like to transfer the ownership of the
two parks, Altpeter and Welcome Travelers, to the surrounding jurisdictions because they serve as
neighborhood parks.

Altpeter County Park
W?7786 Lamp Road, Fort Atkinson, 4 acres

Altpeter County Park is in the North Shore area of Lake Koshkonong, a small neighborhood tucked along
the lake, west of Fort Atkinson. The park is about a block away from the water and features a
playground, 2 picnic tables and green space for play. The Parks Department plows adjacent land in the
winter for ice fishing parking. Transferring the park to
the Town of Sumner is a possibility. Periodic flooding
limits improvements to the park.

Accomplishments since 2013
¢ No changes other than routine maintenance. : "
e Periodic flooding prevents any improvements. VT
e Parks Department plows The Lamp property for —
ice fishing parking.

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025
e No improvement plans because of periodic flooding
e Transfer ownership to the Town of Sumner

Welcome Travelers Park
N482 County Rd D, Whitewater, 8 acres

Welcome Travelers Park is at the intersection of CTH D and STH 59, just north of Whitewater. The park
features a playground, shelter, tables, grills and water. It has greenspace for play and games.

Accomplishments since 2013
e Electrical outlets added to shelter
e Added a new playground

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025
e Work with the City of Whitewater to transfer the
park to their jurisdiction
e Repave parking lot
e Regrade to eliminate runoff that floods the shelter
Add corn hole, horseshoes or other games

23

36



Community Parks
This classification does not directly apply to Jefferson County Parks as most parks are located in rural
areas, not in communities. The parks listed below may be thought of as community parks by the nearby
residents and meet other criteria in this classification. Community Parks provide for broader recreational
needs and preserve unique landscapes and open space. They usually serve a regional geographic service
area. Community parks are usually between 20 and 50 acres in size.

Pohlmann County Park
N4809 Duck Creek Road, Helenville, 10 acres

Pohlmann County Park is on USH 18 between Helenville
and Jefferson and just south of the Glacial Drumlin State
Trail. The park has an old silo that has become a
landmark in the area. A new playground, shelter, picnic
tables, grills, water hydrant, and walking trails complete
the park. The silo and old stone wall are remnants from
the farm that once stood here. The park is a popular rest
stop along the Glacial Drumlin State Trail.

Accomplishments since 2013
o New shelter
e New playground
e Kiosk with maps and park rules
e Pohlmann Family history sign moved to more prominent
place

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025
e Restructure and pave parking lot if possible, the silo is
problematic to changing parking lot
e Maintain and repair the silo if necessary
e Improve pine tree trail and add wayfinding signs
e Install sign directing users to Glacial Drumlin Trail

Rock Lake County Park
Upper N6999 Rock Lake Road, Lake Mills
Lower W8050 Park Lane Road, Lake Mills, 23 acres in total

Rock Lake Park is on CTH B west of Lake Mills on the north side of Rock Lake. The Park is adjacent to
the City of Lake Mills and in a semi-urban area , appealing to local residents. The northern part of the
park is on Rock Lake Rd on a steep hill overlooking the lake and features a shelter, water, picnic tables,
grills and a nature trail.

The southern part of the park on CTH B features a busy boat ramp and seasonal pier, large boat trailer
parking lot, a shelter, tables, grills, restrooms, and a playground. Fishing, boating, and picnicking are
activities.

24

37



Accomplishments since 2013
e New sign on County Road B
e New boat launch sign
o New sign on Rock Lake Road for Upper Rock
Lake Park

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025

o ADA compliant trail from the parking lot to the
existing sidewalk in Lower Rock Lake Park

e Tables and roofed seating along the park side of
the road along Rock Lake

e Replace restrooms with new vault toilets

e Add corn hole, horseshoes, volleyball, gym
equipment or other active sports to the Lower
Park

e Expand trails and add a mountain bike loop to
Upper Rock Lake Park

e New kiosks with maps, park rules and
educational materials

o Forestry plan to remove invasive species and
encroachment at Upper Rock Lake Park

o Improve drainage of Upper Rock Lake Park
Update automatic gate operators with new
operator boards and arms

Rome Pond County Park

N1637 County Rd F, Sullivan, 12 acres

Rome Pond County Park is along the Bark River on CTH F between Sullivan and Rome, adjacent to the
Rome Pond State Natural Area and the unincorporated hamlet of Rome. Jefferson County leases the park
from the WDNR.

A boat ramp is the main feature along with a shelter,
tables, restrooms, grills and water pump. In 2019 the
WDNR installed a gravel trail into the Wildlife Area that
circles around to Rome-Oakhill Road south of Rome.

Accomplishments since 2013
o Kiosk with maps and park rules
e Maintained boat launch

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025
e Work with WDNR to improve boat launch.
o Land is leased from WDNR and precludes other development

25

38



Special Use Parks and Facilities
Special use parks are oriented to a single purpose, unigue use or a significant historic or cultural attribute.

Cappie’s Landing
N8625 Jefferson Rd, Watertown, 6.31 acres

Cappie’s Landing was previously a sportsman’s club property along the Rock River south of Watertown.
Jefferson County maintains a boat ramp, parking, and primitive walk or boat-in camp sites. A shelter,
picnic tables, a grill, and a restroom are available at the partially wooded, riverside park.

Accomplishments since 2013
e Acquisition of property
Two primitive walk-in camp sites
Restroom
Motorized and non-motorized boat ramp
Picnic tables
Existing shelter maintained
Parking
Planted new trees

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025
Work with WDNR on all of the following improvements:
e Replace shelter roof
Remove retention walls along Rock River
Install native plants in a shoreline restoration
Install improved gates for closures
Improve parking lot surface and research ways to raise the parking lot surface to increase
accessibility during high water events

Flood Mitigation Properties

Jefferson County has been acquiring flood mitigation properties primarily along the Rock River through
the federal Flood Mitigation Acquisition Program. These are homes and businesses that flood on a
regular basis. All properties are acquired from voluntary sellers. Once acquired, the buildings are
removed and the property is returned to a natural state. The Office of Emergency Management handles
all aspects of the acquisitions; the Parks Department is responsible for the maintenance and upkeep of the
property once it becomes County Property. Theses properties may provide recreational opportunities that
are allowed by the purchase grant conditions. The properties will be managed to ensure that the natural
resources of the floodplain and/or wetlands are maintained. Restoration opportunities could include trails,
greenways, archery range(s), disc golf, fishing, gardens and more. If sufficient adjacent acreage is
assembled, hunting and trapping will be considered. The Blackhawk Island Fishing Pier is one such

property.

Priority Property Acquisition

1. State Highway 106, block of parcels/Fort Atkinson Rock River Park (Parcel ID: 016-0514-0541-00)
2. Rock River Road/Bark River (Parcel ID: 016-0514-0313-011)

3. Rock River Road (Parcel ID: 016-0514-0314-000)

26

39



Glacial River Mountain Bike Trails
County Road W, Jefferson, 20.2 acres

Local citizens and volunteers masterminded the Glacial River Mountain Bike Trails. Located on County-
owned land west of Jefferson and along the Glacial River Trail, access is from the trail, Annex Rd, or a
parking lot on CTH W. 2.4 miles of trails have been . A

constructed along with obstacles. Future plans call for a
water station, restrooms, and more obstacles.

Accomplishments since 2013
e Mountain bike trails for a variety of skill levels
Mountain bike obstacles
Entrance kiosks and repair station
Access to Glacial Drumlin Trail
Access to parking across the road.
Small parking lot on north end of trails

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025
e Expand trail system by 1 mile
Add trail obstacles
Add restroom
Add water station
Add skills course and obstacles near parking area.
Involve volunteers in trail maintenance

Indian Mounds County Park
W7561 Koshkonong Mounds Road, Fort Atkinson, 6.9 acres

Indian Mounds County Park protects eleven visible Native American effigy mounds. 1.9 acres with
mounds across the road were recently added to the park. A trail takes visitors around the mounds and
through a wooded area with the remnants of a Native American trail. A plan to protect the integrity and
sensitive nature of the mounds was developed in 2004 by Jay Toth, tribal archaeologist with the Ho
Chunk Nation and Leslie Eisenburg, Burial Sites Program coordinator at the Wisconsin Historical
Society.

Accomplishments since 2013
e 1.9 acres of land with Native American mounds
added across the road
e Improved parking lot
e Improved woodland and Native American mound
maintenance
e Interpretive plan for educational signs completed

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025
o Forestry prescription plan for new land to
maintain integrity of the mounds
e Limit trail access to new land

27

40



Donation box

Continue to add interpretive panels

Continue vegetative management to maintain integrity of the mounds and woodlands
Replace wooden trail signs and fences

Install area of native forbs and grasses near entrance to the park

Jefferson County Dog Park and Terri Tinsley Dog Exercise Area
W5098 Canine Drive, Johnson Creek, 109 acres

The Dog Park is located along STH 26 between Jefferson and Johnson Creek with easy access from 1-94.
The park opened in 2003 and has 59 fenced acres for dog walking off-leash. The remainder of the park is
wooded and wetland. Each of four separate dog areas has double gated entrances and restrooms. Two
shelters, benches, and water hydrants for people and dogs are available. The Dog Park is the most
popular park in the system with tag purchases increasing every year, 1800 annual tags were sold in 2019.
Improvements, amenities, and events are added each year. A seasonal park attendant supervises usage,
performs maintenance, and removes invasive species.

Accomplishments since 2013

e 1800 annual tags issued in 2019
300 ft. boardwalk in wet area
Statues and obstacle course added
Park road paved
Trails in wooded area

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025
e Improve entrances in Areas 2 and 3
Finish paving road and parking lots
Add gravel to trails
Add permanent, roofed seating along trails — donation campaign
On-going prairie planting and vegetative
management
Dog cooling station
Credit card machine for park fees
o A Dog Park Ranger or second attendant is vital to
management
Pave road to shed and add pad for dumpster
e Security cameras at entrances
Explore LED and solar lighting along some trails
and in the parking lots
e Ongoing fence replacement and upgrades where
needed.

Jefferson County Parks Maintenance Building
Industrial Drive, Jefferson

The Jefferson County Parks Maintenance Building was built in 2001. The 24,000 sq. ft. heated building
houses the maintenance shop, a wood shop, indoor storage, breakroom, and office space.

28

41



Proposed Improvements 2020-2025

e  Security fencing

o Additional spaces for materials storage including
bunkers and possible covered storage of topsoil
and landscape mulch

e Plan for additional responsibilities such as more
snowplowing
Landscaping around entrance and signs

o Update Parks sign in front of building

Conservation Parks
Conservation parks are natural resource areas set aside for preservation, remnant native landscapes, open
space, and visual buffering. These parks are located where exceptional natural areas are found and are
planned, in some cases, for expansion up to 400-600 acres serving the whole county and possibly a
regional geographic service area. They typically provide picnicking, passive recreation, and multiple trail
opportunities. These are the signature parks of the Jefferson County Parks System. See map on page 3.

Carlin-Weld County Park
N1841 County Rd Z, Palmyra, 78 Acres

Carlin-Weld County Park features the rolling topography of the Kettle Moraine, an upland prairie and oak
planting, and a lowland pond with wooded wetlands. A large shelter, playground, restroom, 1.5 miles of
trails, fishing pond, and a Frisbee golf course make the park popular for family gatherings and dog
walking. The park is adjacent to a small subdivision and is used for local school sports.

Accomplishments since 2013

e Paved road and parking
Installed kiosks with maps and park rules
9-hole Frishee golf course
Woodland restoration below the shelter
Electrical outlets added to shelter

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025

Boardwalk trail in marshy areas

Paved sidewalk to shelter

New restrooms

Fishing pier or pond access

Potential dog training or off leash area

Add 9 holes of Frisbee golf for tournaments
Replace gate operator system with new operator boards and drives arms

Crawfish River County Park
STH 18, Jefferson, 18 acres

Crawfish River County Park is located along the Crawfish River just west of Jefferson. The land was
donated to Jefferson County by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WiDOT) after construction
of the STH 26 Bypass created an orphan parcel. The Glacial River Trail passes on the west side of the

29

42



property. Public parking and access from USH 18 have not been negotiated with the WiDOT.
Volunteers maintain trails. Seasonal flooding is a concern

Accomplishments since 2013
e Master Plan completed
e Trails maintained by volunteers
e Connected to Glacial River Bicycle/Pedestrian
Trail and added a sign to the park
e Small picnic area

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025

e  Work with WiDOT to provide access to the park
from USH 18
Prairie, woodland and wetland restoration
Add recreational features such as benches, picnic tables, and picnic areas adjacent to trails
Create Put In Take Out (PiTo) access to the Crawfish River
Lack of access from USH 18 and periodic flooding limit development

Dorothy Carnes County Park and Rose Lake State Natural Area
N3220 Radloff Lane, Fort Atkinson, 514 acres

Dorothy Carnes County Park is located just west of Fort Atkinson and has access from Radloff Lane,
Hoard Road, Banker Road, and Kemmeter Road. The park surrounds pristine Rose Lake Marsh and 480
acres are within the Rose Lake State Natural Area designation. The landscape features rolling hills,
woodlands, wetlands, prairie and savanna restorations, a wetland scrape, and premier waterfowl habitat.
White pelicans, black terns, and other uncommon species visit the marsh.

¥

The park has about 9 miles of hiking and cross-country
skiing trails, and opportunities for nature study, bird
watching, picnicking, and rustic walk-in camping with a
restroom and hand pump. Controlled hunting is available
by permit on the Kemmeter Road portion of the park. All
dogs must be on-leash.

A log cabin built by the Mason Family has been restored
on the eastern portion of the park and a new parking lot
added. This land may have been the first owned by a
woman in Wisconsin. Community gardens are available
for rent. The existing barn and some of the outbuildings have been stabilized and will be repurposed.

The western portion of the park features the popular and award-winning Carol Liddle picnic pavilion, a
playground, restrooms, trails, a marsh overlook, and a wildlife viewing blind.

The Friends of Rose Lake is an active volunteer group that leads bird walks and providing nature study
materials. The Mason Jar Jamboree is an annual fall festival at the farmstead area of the park.

30

43



Accomplishments since 2013

Trail plan implemented

Mason Log Cabin rebuilt

Unnecessary buildings in poor repair removed
Interpretive signs added at Mason Log Cabin
Museum pieces added to Mason Log Cabin

New parking lot added at Mason Farm

Paved trail from parking to overlook deck on
west side of park

Added marsh viewing blind on south side of park
New ocular viewer at west side overlook

Youth and ADA hunting provided at Kemmeter property
Swing set added to west side of park

Ongoing prairie and woodland restoration and maintenance

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025

Add Marsh Magic Trail (gravel) on east side of park

Secure storage for trail maintenance equipment on both sides of park

Improve play area on west side of park

Add wayfinding signs on Mason Farm

Add Park directional signs on Banker Rd and/or USH 12 to the Mason Farm

Revamp viewing blind to prevent squirrel damage

Add permanent bathroom to Mason Farm

Add automatic security gate to Mason Farm

Update gate operator systems with new operator boards and drive arms

Finish moving Hearty Gardens on Mason Farm

Restoration and reutilization of Mason barn for classrooms (indoor and outdoor), interpretation,
barn weddings, rentals, and storage

Add a Rose Lake overlook deck on Mason Farm

Emphasis on ADA hunting opportunities on Kemmeter, add youth and ADA accessible hunting
blind

Utilize funds from leasing Kemmeter crop land for improvements

Dig reed canarygrass out of ditch behind farm buildings on Mason farm to improve drainage.
Continue prairie, wetland and woodland restoration activities

Dr. J. S. Garman Nature Preserve
701 Fox Lane, Waterloo, 45 acres

The Garman Nature Preserve was donated to Jefferson County by Theo Garman in 2003. Five additional
acres were recently acquired. Mrs. Garman would like the park to remain in its natural condition with
minimal development. The park is a steep, wooded drumlin within the City of Waterloo. Twenty-two
Native American mounds are found at the peak of the hill, far within the park. The yellow giant hyssop, a
species that was on the Wisconsin threatened plants list, grows in the park.

Visitors use the park for hiking, picnicking and cross-country skiing. A plan to maintain the mounds was
completed with the Ho-Chunk Nation. The Waterloo Regional Trailhead building was built adjacent to

31

44



the preserve to serve as a focal point of the Glacial Heritage Area and trail hub. The Garman Nature
Preserve is located across the street from TREK Bicycle Corporation and is often used by its employees.

Accomplishments since 2013
e Interpretive plan for education signs completed
e Acquired 5 acres of adjacent steep and wooded
land in 2015
Access acquired to Waterloo Road
Installation of some interpretive signs
Native American mound maintenance
Fox Lane entrance road paved
Connections to Waterloo Regional Trailhead
facility and bicycle/pedestrian trails
e Improvement of timber stand

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025
e Acquire adjacent property if it becomes available
Install a more visible entrance sign at Fox Lane
Improve and realign trails as needed
Continue to improve timber stand
Continue to monitor and maintain Native American mounds
Continue to install interpretive signs

Holzhueter State Park
W7664 Island Road, Waterloo, 176.5 acres

This large, rural park between Waterloo and Watertown features uplands with beautiful views of the
countryside, steep wooded hills, and wetlands. The park was purchased by the State of Wisconsin in
2009. Jefferson County will provide management through a Memorandum of Understanding at a future
date. A Master Plan has been completed and needs State approval. The park currently has mowed trails.
Extensive mountain biking trails are a long-range goal.

Accomplishments since 2013
e Master plan completed
e Mowed trails

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025
e Develop restoration and implementation plans for
phased improvements to parking, prairies,
woodlands and trail development
e Develop a forestry plan for the woodlands
e Maintain trails
o Work with WDNR to begin improvements

32

45



Kanow County Park
N8248 Rock River Road, Ixonia, 45 acres

Kanow Park is located on a bend of the Rock River about 1.5 miles east of Ixonia. The park has a large
shelter and playground. Activities include fishing and a canoe/kayak launch. A portion of the park is
wooded with ash, which are dying from emerald ash borer damage. Periodic flooding limits development
of the park.

Accomplishments since 2013
o Kiosk with maps and park rules
e New playground
e Trails in woodlands eliminated, flooding
precludes activities in low areas

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025

e Accessible kayak launch
Shoreline restoration
Permanent corn hole and horseshoe games
Dead ash tree removal and replacement
Update automatic gate operators with new operator boards and arms

Korth County Park
W8390 Korth Lane, Lake Mills, 89.5 acres

Korth Park, on Rock Lake west of Lake Mills, protects the water quality and fish habitat of the lake. A
bicycle trail connects the park to the Glacial Drumlin Trail, which runs from Waukesha to Cottage Grove.
A popular large shelter, parking lot, playground and restrooms are located on top of a hill with expansive
views of the lake. In the summer, popular monthly concerts are held during Brew With a View.
Community gardens are located along EIm Point Rd along with another shelter and parking lot. Wooded
and prairie trails are well used. A sledding hill is offered in the winter.

Accomplishments since 2013
o Additional parking added
o Prairie, shoreline and woodland restorations and
maintenance
e New playground
e Brew With A View evenings with music and food
trucks extremely popular

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025

e Expand parking lots, parking is limited for large

events.

e Permanent outdoor pit toilet or heated restroom
during winter
Pave Glacial Drumlin Connector Trail
Improve playground with pour in place surface
Add a fire pit and seating area
Add exercise equipment along shoreline trail

33

46



Add portable stage or risers for Brew With A View

Add on-site storage for maintenance equipment

Make community gardens more aesthetic, new fence, provide water
Acquire land between Korth Lane and EIm Point if it becomes available
Continue prairie, shoreline and woodland restorations and maintenance
Update automatic gate operators with new operator boards and arms

Trail Classifications

The NPA provides pathway classification guideline, which are found at the end of this section for the
Jefferson County Parks System.

Glacial River Bicycle/Pedestrian Trail

The 33.6 miles of the Glacial River Trail in Jefferson
County runs on an abandoned railway easement from the
Rock County line to Fort Atkinson. Off-road expansion
was carried out by the City of Fort Atkinson and during
the STH 26 bypass construction around Fort Atkinson and
Jefferson. Between Jefferson and Johnson Creek the trail
is primarily on lightly travelled roads and then is both on
and off-road from Johnson Creek to Watertown.

Jefferson, Johnson Creek and Watertown have developed
their own municipal bicycle routes. The total length of the
trail from the Rock County Line to STH 60 in Dodge County is 55.8 miles. Future plans include water
stations along the trail, tree planting for shade, information and map kiosks, and continued maintenance.
Trail access points are as follows:

Glacial River Trail Parking on Farmco Lane
Farmco Lane, Fort Atkinson, 1 acre

Parking, water, a shaded kiosk, and a bicycle sculpture are found at this trail access point on the south
side of Fort Atkinson

Accomplishments since 2013
e Signs, kiosk, bicycling sculpture

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025
e Add exercise stations along trail
e Maintain vegetation along trail
e Improve trail signage and maps to include “you are here” maps along the trail and mileage signs
to destinations and features.

Glacial River Trail Parking at County Line
County Line Road, Fort Atkinson, 1 acre

The Trail is accessible from the intersection of Old Hwy 26 and County Line Rd. There is no parking.
34

47



Proposed Improvements 2020-2025
e Improve trail signage and maps to include “you are here” maps along the trail and mileage signs
to destinations and features.
e Add water station
e Create budget and plan to replace Allen Creek Bridge

Glacial River Trail Parking on County Rd W
County Rd W, Jefferson, 1 acre

Parking is available near the intersection of CTH W and Annex Road on County-owned property.

Accomplishments since 2013
e Built on County-owned property to serve the Glacial River Trail and Mountain Bike Trails
e Entrance sign in parking area

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025
e Install Born Learning Trail on paved trail from CTH W parking lot back toward Jefferson
o Improve trail signage and maps to include “you are here” maps along the trail and mileage signs
to destinations and features

Interurban Trail
Watertown to Oconomowoc, 10.96 miles proposed.

The Interurban Trail for bicycles and pedestrians will ultimately connect Watertown to Oconomowoc
with 10.96 miles of off-road trail. From there connections will be made to the Lake Country Trail in
Waukesha County and potentially Milwaukee and Lake Michigan. Phase 1 construction of 2 miles in
Watertown is complete. The trail, on the right-of-way of an old electric railway, has been an community
effort of dedicated volunteers and foundations.

Accomplishments since 2013
e Phase 1 complete, 2 miles, from the east side of
Watertown at Humbolt Street to River Road
e Parking lot and Interurban Trail sign
e Bridge over the Rock River
e Fencing along trail

Proposed Improvements 2020-2025
e Pave Phase | of the Trail, about 2 miles
o Install Phase 2 from River Road east to County
Road F, about 4 miles.

35

48



Snowmobile Trails

Jefferson County Parks has 199.2 miles of snowmobile trails and
snowmobile clubs maintain 290 miles connecting all parts of the
County and beyond. A bridge spanning the Crawfish River near
Hubbleton was built to serve snowmobiles. The WDNR’s Glacial
Drumlin Trail also serves snowmobiles.

Pathway Classifications

The pathway classification is intended to encourage communities to plan for light transportation in a
comprehensive manner. Planning in a system-wide manner, a path system could emerge that is tied to
park, open space, and general land use/transportation system within the county, adjacent communities and
regions.

Park Trails Park trails are multi-purpose trails within greenways, parks, and natural areas that focus on
recreational value and harmony with nature. Trails can be Type 1 - separate/single-purpose hard-surfaced
trails for pedestrians, bicyclists, and in-line skaters; Type Il - Multi-purpose hard-surfaced trail for
pedestrians, bicyclists, and in-line skaters; or Type Il - Nature trails for pedestrians, hard or soft surface.
Park trials are available at:

Dorothy Carnes — Type Il

Korth — Type Il and Type Il

Indian Mounds — Type Il

Carlin-Weld — Type Il

Rock Lake Park — Type Il

Dr. J.S. Garman Nature Preserve — Type Il

Jefferson County Dog Park (Bicentennial Park) — Type Ill
Pohlmann — Type |11

Connector Trails Connector trails are multi-purpose trails that provide safe travel for bicycles
and pedestrians to and from parks and around the community.

Type I: Separate/single purpose hard-surfaced trails for pedestrians, bicyclists and in-line skaters located
in an independent right-of-way.

= Glacial River Trail — 33.6 miles in Jefferson County, 55.8 miles total Glacial River Trail
= Glacial Drumlin State Trail — 52 miles

Type Il Separate/single purpose hard-surfaced trails for pedestrians, bicyclists/in-line skaters within the
road right-of-way.

= Jefferson County Inter-municipal Bicycle System and on-road bicycle routes.
On-Street Bikeways The Jefferson County Bicycleway/Pedestrianway Plan maps on-street bikeways
within communities. Bikeways provide transportation and safely separate bicyclists from vehicular traffic

as a bike route or bike lane.

36

49



Other Pathway Classifications

All-Terrain Bike Trails: Off-road trails for all terrain bikes (mountain bikes)
= Glacial River Mountain Bike Trails
= Potential mountain bike trails at Holzhueter State Park

Cross-Country Ski Trails: Trails for traditional and skate-style skiing are available at Dorothy Carnes,
Korth, Carlin-Weld, and Garman Nature Preserve

Snowmobile Trails: Off-road County and local winter trails for snowmobiles are maintained by local
snowmobile clubs and stretch for 199 miles

Equestrian Trails are developed for horseback riding. The Southern Unit of the Kettle Moraine State
Forest provides equestrian trails

ATV Trails: Some towns (townships) in Jefferson County have marked ATV on-road designations

37

50



Needs Assessment
Demographics

Jefferson County is located in southeastern Wisconsin between the large metropolitan areas of Madison
and Milwaukee/Waukesha. Interstate 94 crosses the northern part of the County from Milwaukee to
Madison and Minneapolis/St Paul. Chicago residents with second homes and campers in Jefferson
County add to the summer population.

Population Change

53 The population of Jefferson County
in 2018, the latest year available, was
84,352, the 20™ largest County in
Wisconsin.

r\ Interstate 94

Waukesha Milwiukee| BY 2040, the population is expected

n
County Codnty | to grow to 100,300, an increase of
hty 18.9%. In 2000 the population was

ot 75,767. There were 32,866

households in 2018.

Dane County (\b;;;,;;,";:;;

Development Pressure The Population Projection Chart, to
on Jefiereon Sounty the left, and the Population
Projection Map 2018-2040 on page

39, show that the greatest population
change by 2040 is expected to be in

2018 Population | 2040 Estimate | % Change 2018-40 | the Village of Johnson Creek along I-

Jefferson County 84,352 100,300 18.9% 94, the City of Whitewater in

Fort Atkinson 12,390 14,020 13.2% southern Jefferson County, and the
Town of Ixonia In the northeastern

Jefferson (City) 7,967 9,080 14.0% corner of the County. When

Lake Mills 5,953 7,380 24.0% considering the acquisition of

Waterloo (City) 3,362 3,685 9.6% additional parkland, these areas may

Watertown (City) 23,945 27,960 16.8% be a priority. The Towns of

Whitewater 14,804 19,250 30.0% Farmington, Cold Spring, and

Johmeo Creak 997 1355 186% Sumner are expected to be stagnant

' ’ or lose population.

Level of Service

The Jefferson County Parks Department uses a “Level of Service” standard of 12 acres of parkland per
1000 in population. This standard was developed in the 1997 Jefferson County Parks, Recreation, and
Open Space Plan and is used to determine parkland needs in proportion to future population growth.
Jefferson County Parks do not include acreage figures from city and village parks, Wisconsin Department
of Natural Resources, or US Fish and Wildlife Service properties.

Jefferson County Parks currently covers 1,180 acres, over 19 miles of hiking trails, and 35 miles of off
and on-road bicycle/pedestrian trails. The minimum acreage of parkland using 2018 population figures is
1,012 acres. If population growth occurs as forecast by 2040, the minimum will be 1,200 acres.

38

51



In 2017 approximately 66 percent of the population lived in urban areas and 34 percent in rural areas.
Population density per square mile is concentrated in the cities and villages with clusters along the Rock
River and area lakes, see Population Density Per Square Mile Map on page 40. Public questionaire
responses indicate a desire for canoe and kayak rental, access to waterways, and off-leash dog parks near

the larger cities.

(134}

B Cambridge

Rockdale

B ) —.
Decline -6 - 0%
Growth 0 - 4.9%
Growth 5 - 9.9%

I Growth 10 - 19.9%

I Growth 20 - 29.9% \

Koshkonemg]
— /
|/ K. Slf'g';'l' @

L \Projects\1214 1\predJefferson Co CompPlan\Jefferson CoCompPlan aprx

| I Growth >30% J\\\
|

gy 7
Lake Y

Milford

r\ﬂéﬁ?‘ Mills Johnson Creels

Acztalan

N —
\(k Wateriom db\\a
» M
@ /V;aterl 00 ?’ e
Lacla
() '\ Tuomfa
g CONOMOWO (6;
L—1
[ooy

I

\ i

Oconomowoc
Lake

Summit
Corners

Dousman

Hebron

Palmyra

0 2 4

T Whitewater I N (Viles
H I‘ I Population Projection 2018 - 2040 JEFFERSON
k Jefferson County Comprehensive Plan & Agricultural Preservation and Land Use Plan COUNTY
WISCONSIN

Source: Wisconsin Demographic Services Center, 2013 and 2018

39

52



L:\Projectst1214 1iprolJefferson Co CompPlan\Jefferson CoCompFlan aprx

Wsam i "‘."L \ | a \

Watertopn
"\25 N 6 )
Sterlo ! * X

Milford
. i -
R 4 ey
oy 54 Farmington i (@ ""
v A - Johnson Creeld ! ; \ o
A [ﬁ-ll(l? fills ) T Concord
- o . Aztalan

London

Heélenville

(_1,8_} {18 M&Sullivan, ®
Lake Ripley J€fferson
by Rome
a Oakland q*‘
Rockdale ,
<1 N
1-99 v .
10-249 80101 Ackinson ilcbron
] 25-499 n
-
50 i 999 {106] L2 q oldSprin
100 - 249.9 %" " Koshkonang | 4SS b PG
- 249, .
250 - 499.9 !
I 500 - 9999 ¢ 2
I 1000 - 2499.9 M;hk.,..m.g)-f
I >2500 - - j

H Il I Population Density per Square Mile JEFFERSON
k Jefferson County Comprehensive Plan & Agricultural Preservation and Land Use Plan COUNTY

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010

Aging Population and Youth

The chart on page 41 looks at the projected growth in the population of youth under 20 years old and the
population of seniors over the age of 65 from 2000 to 2040. By 2040 nearly 25,000 residents will be
under 20 years of age, about 25 percent of the population. Seniors in the population will rise to about
23,000, or 23 percent of the population by 2040.

Planning activities and facilities for both groups was mentioned in public comments. Seniors have more
time to enjoy the parks system and friends groups and they could form a core of volunteers. Seniors may

also need more universally accessible facilities. Public survey respondents asked for more engagement
with youth and more outdoor activities and nature education.

40

53



30,000

25,000

/\

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

2000 2005

Youth, Historic

Ethnicity

2010

Youth, Projected

2015 2020

Senior, Historic

Youth (<20) & Senior (65+)

2025 2030

2035 2040

Senior, Projected

Jefferson County’s population, while predominantly white, is becoming more diverse. Between the years
2000 and 2018, Hispanic and Latino citizens increased by 3.1 percent and Black or African American

residents increased by 0.71 percent.

US Census Bureau, Jefferson County, Wisconsin Quick Facts

2000 Percent

2018 Percent

Race and Ethnicity Population Population Change
White Alone 96.20% 96.0% (0.2%)
Hispanic or Latino 4.10% 7.2% 3.10%
Two or More Races 0.92% 1.3% 0.38%
Black or African American 0.39% 1.1% 0.71%
Asian 0.47% 1.0% 0.53%
American Indian and Alaska Native 0.33% 0.5% 0.17%
White Alone, not Hispanic or Latino (2011) 90.40% 89.5% (0.9%)

Household Income

The median household income in Jefferson County is $59,215. Between 2000 and 2017, the median
annual household income in Jefferson County dropped $7,546.00 or 11.3%. While the median household
income is greater in Jefferson County than the State of Wisconsin and the United States as a whole, the
drop in Jefferson County was a greater percentage. The map on page 41 shows the distribution of median
household income throughout the County and also into neighboring Dane and Waukesha Counties.

41

54




Median Household |Median Household
Income (2000, Income (2013-
adjusted for inflation) 2017) Change %
Jefferson County $66,761 $59,215 S(7,546.00) | -11.3%
Wisconsin $62,335 $56,759 5(5,576.00) | -8.9%
United States $59,777 $57,652 $(2,125.00) | -3.6%

Median Household Income
Below $35,000
435,000 - $49,999

77 $50,000 - $74,999

| I 575,000 - $100,000 |
I ~bove $100,000

L:\Projectsi1214 \prolJefferson Co CompPlan'Jefferson CoComp Plan aprx

“ Il = Median Household Income
k Jefferson County Comprehensive Plan & Agricultural Preservation and Land Use Plan

=1

Hebron,
106,
e,

L

o

(

JEFFERSON

Source: US. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 2013 - 2017 Estimates

COUNTY

WISCONSIN

The Poverty Status Map on page 43 shows the distribution of individuals living below the poverty line in

Jefferson County according the American Community Survey 2013-2017. Poverty thresholds vary by the
size of the family and age of the members. The same thresholds are utilized throughout the United States
and are not specific to Wisconsin (US Census Bureau).

42

55




Deerfield

London

’:

Lake Mills

Milford

Johnson Creék

Aztalan

Farmington

Ixonia

Concord

Monterey

Lacla
Belle

[/
Oconm 0C (%7

Oconomowoc
Lake
Summit
Corners

e
(1_33) i

18

30 Cambridge Lake Ripley
Oaldand
Rockdale

£
= (73)
E
8
g
E i
H
2| | Individuals Living in Poverty (106 Lake
3 Koshkonor
% Below 5% ,-/-"'j oshkonong
i 5-9.9% P
2 | I 10-249%
g B 25 - 40% | Koshlonon
el | I Above 40% L j

Poverty Status

Helenville

L

Jefferson
A
/o

)/
—

Hebion

- "“h Atkins

o

Rome

Dousman

18 ¥ Sullivan

SR

Jefferson County Comprehensive Plan & Agricultural Preservation and Land Use Plan

Source: .8 Census Bureau, American community Survey 2013 - 2017 Estimates

Economic Development and Tourism
The Jefferson County Tourism Council is composed of representatives of chambers of commerce,
businesses and the public. Jefferson County Parks are featured in the annual Enjoy Jefferson County
Guide. Several public comments mentioned the need for more and wider marketing of the parks system.

JEFFERSON
COUNTY

WISCONSIN

Tourism has a major impact on the economy in Jefferson County. Annual and cultural events and the
abundant natural resources attract visitors, boaters, hunters, bicyclists, hikers, and bird watchers, among
others. Direct visitor spending in 2018 was $103.3 million and 1,741 people were employed in the

tourism sector.

43

56



Wisconsin Department of Tourism

Total Tourism Impacts In Millions

2017 2018 % Change
Direct Visitor Spending $95.5 $103.1 8.01%
Total Business Sales $169.4 $180.4 6.46%
Employment 1,683 1,741 3.45%
Total Labor Income $41.5 $42.9 3.37%
State and Local Taxes $11.2 $11.9 5.54%

Parks and tourism are tied to economic development. Businesses are looking for a high quality of life for
their work force and that often involves outdoor recreation, parks and trails.

In Jefferson County manufacturing tops all industries in percent of total employment, total payroll, and
provides 26 percent of the County’s jobs; followed by trades, transportation and utilities, education and
health, professional and business services, leisure and hospitality, and construction. Jefferson County
added 564 jobs from 2017 to 2018, a growth rate of 1.7 percent. (2019 Workforce Profile, Wisconsin
Department of Workforce Development)

The largest manufacturing sector is food manufacturing and processing. Agriculture contributes $1.5
billion to the economy in Jefferson County with 10,800 jobs linked to agriculture and 240,000 acres of

agricultural land (Jefferson County Tourism Council). Most of the Jefferson County Parks are located in

rural areas and surrounded by farmland. Protecting existing parks with agricultural easements on the

surrounding land may benefit both the parks system and farm families with financial incentives and
assurance that agriculture is a priority in Jefferson County.

44

57



Needs Assessment
Public Participation Summary

The Jefferson County Parks Department continually seeks input from park users and the public. A public
meeting to gather input on the Jefferson County Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan was held on
February 17, 2020. Other meetings included a meeting with staff to kick off the project on June 27, 2019;
a stakeholder meeting on November 13, 2019; and a meeting on December 5, 2019 with maintenance
staff on accomplishments and future projects. This chapter presents user, stakeholder and staff thoughts
and ideas.

The purpose of the public workshop was to present past Jefferson County Parks System plans, dialogue
around what users and stakeholders value the most about their interaction with the Jefferson County Parks
System, share what they are most proud and the hopes they have for the future parks system, partnership
opportunities, and future actions and initiatives that are most important to them.

This process is part of a routine cycle of county plan reviews and updates going back to 1997. User and
stakeholder perspectives and ideas make a difference and will help influence the future direction of the
Jefferson County Parks.

A snowstorm the evening of the meeting resulted in few attending. The three questions asked at the
public meeting were sent out electronically to stake holders and those requesting the questionnaire after
newspaper and Facebook articles about the planning effort. About 45 questionnaires were returned
electronically. The Covid-19 pandemic made it impossible to hold more public meetings in a timely
manner.

Three Questions

1. What do you most appreciate, are proud of and value most about the Jefferson County
Parks System and implementation of past plans? (Celebration of Success and our Values)

2. What are new vision ideas that you think could lead to an improved or enhanced Parks
System? (Future Hopes and Vision ldeas)

3. How should the parks system move forward and which initiatives and actions are most
important to you? (Future Actions and Strategies.

The responses from those attending the public meeting are listed below. With a small number attending,
the discussion was not limited to the three questions.

Public Meeting Comments

e Add camping along waterways in appropriate places.

e Create a monetary fund for land acquisition to be able to act quickly if opportunities present
themselves.

e The Jefferson County Parks system has gone 0 to 80 in 20 years and is said to be unique in North
America with paddling, bicycling, hiking and camping.

e The investment and hard work put into the parks is appreciated.

e Create a bicycle trail connection from Whitewater to the Glacial River Trail.

45

58



o  The parks make Jefferson County a great place to live.

e More mountain biking trails would be welcome.

A park and boat landing at the old highway shop in Jefferson are being developed in concert with

the City of Jefferson.

Interest in completion of the Interurban Trail to Waukesha and further east.

The Trieloff Property on Rock Lake may be an addition, part will be used to straighten CTH N.

Health groups could partner with activities in the parks to get people outside.

Have outdoor activities for kids in the parks like Whitewater does, hide a squirrel doll in the park

and give kids clues they can follow on their phone.

Jefferson County has a diversity of parks that make it unique, something for everyone.

A nice four-season shelter is needed for weddings and conferences, perhaps at Korth Park.

e Rest stops with water and restrooms are needed along the Glacial River Trail and Interurban Trail.
There are no amenities between cities.

e Parks and trails are lacking in the northeastern part of Jefferson County. The Town of Ixonia has
the most population growth.

e Better access to Crawfish River Park from Hwy 18.

e Cross-country skiing and groomed trails are available at Dorothy Carnes Park east and west,
Korth, Carlin-Weld and sometimes Garman but that trail is very steep.

e Would like to partner with McKay Nursery to expand Garman trails in the winter.

e Rental of canoes, kayaks, skies, and snowshoes would be welcome and an opportunity to partner
with local businesses perhaps from a structure within a park. Renting canoes for a family from
current vendors can be cost prohibitive.

Electronic Comments

Electronic comments received on the three questions were categorized and tabulated. This a non-
scientific tabulation and open to interpretation. Summary charts are included for each question with the
number of times a particular park, facility or activity was mentioned. The full compilation of public
comments is available from the Jefferson County Parks Department.

Question 1

What do you most appreciate, are proud of and value most about the Jefferson County Parks
System and implementation of past plans? (Celebration of Success and our Values)

Question 1 addresses past and present work by the Parks Department and the implementation of park and
open space plans and planning for individual parks.

The most appreciated and valued elements in the parks system:

Exceptional park facilities

The diversity of parks and a balance of active and passive activities
Protection of natural resources

The fine job done by parks staff

The particular parks and activities that were appreciated the most:
o Dorothy Carnes County Park
e Jefferson County Dog Park
e Bicycle trails

46

59



e Hiking paths
e Korth County Park

Respondents also mentioned the value of community partnerships and donors.

The summary response charts below record the number of times a concept was mentioned within all the

public comments for Question 1. One person’s comments may cover several topics. Not all respondents

commented on every question.

Favorable comments about the Park System Numb_e rof

Mentions
Exceptional, well maintained park facilities 12
Diversity of parks and balance of active and passive activities 8
Protection and conservation of natural resources 7
Fine work by the Parks Staff and their passion for the parks 7
Mythological acquisition planning 4
Design of the parks and system 3
Number of parks and spaces to be outdoors 3
Communication and involvement with parks department 1

Favorable opinion of a particular park, facility or activity Numb_er of

' Mentions
Carnes Park 8
Dog Park 6
Bicycle Trails 6
Hiking Paths 6
Korth Park 5
Mountain bike paths 2
Garman 2
Birding 2
Historic resources — Native American mounds, log cabin 2
Community Gardens 1
Rome Pond Park 1
Glacial Heritage Area 1
Pavilions 1
Playgrounds 1
Cross-country skiing 1
Paddling 1

- . Number of

Favorable opinion of partnerships and donors Mentions
Appreciate organization and business partnerships 1
Kindness of donors 1

47

60



Question 2

What are new vision ideas that you think could lead to an improved or enhanced Parks System?

(Future Hopes and Vision ldeas)

Question 2 asked the public to give new ideas that would enhance and improve the Parks System in their

eyes.

For future park development the respondents suggested the following enhancements the most times:

Complete bicycle trails between communities
More interpretive and educational signs along trails
Expanded mountain bike trials

More water access points

Marketing the parks within and outside of Jefferson County, expanding the Parks System, and increasing

education about the parks and natural areas were mentioned several times.

New ideas for park facilities Numb_er of
Mentions
Complete bicycle trails between communities 6

More interpretive and educational signs along trails

Expand the mountain bike park and have trails for beginners

More water access points

Second dog park in southern Jefferson County or more off-leash parks

Quiet natural areas and wilderness desirable

More parking

Food forest theory

Organic only community gardens

More pavilions, larger pavilions and add electricity

Restore native habitat and add trees

More Rustic camping

A splash pad

Updated and clearer signage and Garman and Holzhueter

Increase accessibility of trails, wildlife viewing, fishing

Plant examples of native landscaping for homeowners

Add limestone trail at the Mason Farm

More camping

Grass to jog on along paved bicycle trails

Not a fan of bike trails in parks

More bicycle trail signage

More hiking

More motorized recreational activities

Keep up what you are doing

More ADA compliant fishing structures

Sweep paved bicycle trails in the spring

Open the restrooms (Restrooms were temporarily closed during Covid-19)

RRRRP R RRPRRRRRIRR R RIRINN NN N W WSSO

48

61




New ideas for acquisition and planning

Number of

Mentions
Expand the parks system 2
Protect agricultural land adjacent to the parks 2
Enhance the Glacial Heritage Area 1
More parks on water 1
Create habitat corridors with other counties 1
More connection/alignment with the Roc River National Waterway initiatives 1
New ideas for public education in the parks Numb_er of
Mentions
Education and a brochure on the Native American Mounds 2
More watershed education and signs along roads 2
Work with schools and involve youth in parks projects 2
Utilize the Waterloo Trailhead for educational events 1
Potential for sustainable agriculture education 1
New ideas for activities and events Numb_er of
Mentions
Add volunteer and events coordinator 2
Expand Brew with a View to other parks 1
Start an annual tourism event like Bike the Barns 1
New ideas for marketing Numb_er of
Mentions
More marketing of parks within and outside of Jefferson County 4
Collaborate with other agencies and businesses 2
Encourage younger people to use the parks 1
Partner with Fort Healthcare Community Health and Wellness1 1

Question 3

How should the parks system move forward and which initiatives and actions are most important

to you? (Future Actions and Strategies)

The public was asked which future initiatives and actions would the most important to them. As methods

to move forward, respondents mentioned the following the most often:
Acquiring more land for parks

Protecting native species/natural areas through acquisition
Bike and walking trail connections

Canoe/kayak trails with rest stops

Several respondents felt that the Parks Department could benefit from marketing efforts. More education
about the natural resources within the parks and programing for youth were mentioned. Many people

praised the good job by Parks Staff and suggested creating an acquisition fund.

49

62




Acquisition/expansion/planning is important

Number of

Mentions
Acquire more land for parks 7
Protect native species through acquisition 3
Bike and walking trail connections 3
Canoeing/kayaking trails and rest stops with bathrooms 2
Better access to rivers 2
Create a park along Fort Atkinson Riverwalk using greenspaces 1
Turn Blackhawk Island lots into a park or natural area 1
Add to and maintain Carnes, Korth, and the Glacial River Trail 1
Designate the Bark River a water trail and clean up. 1
Dog park north of 1-94 1
Plan for climate change 1

New facilities/activities/events are important Numbg r of

Mentions
Better and more marketing 5
More programming and education for users 4
Make parks more accessible 3
Fishing 2
More facilities/playgrounds 1
Environmentally friendly activities 1
Family activities 1
Not an advocate for bicycle trails in parks 1
Get kids more active 1
More active areas and less picnic areas 1
Diversity of activities that appeal to everyone 1
Food parks 1
Scheduled events like Mason Farm (Jamboree) 1
Canoeing event 1
Open everything up and bathrooms (submitted after Covid-19 restrictions) 2

Maintenance is important Numb_er of

Mentions
Keep up the good job 5
Cleanliness and safety is important 2
Discourage all use of pesticides and herbicides 1

New funding and partnerships are important Numb_er of

Mentions
Create a fund for acquisition 4
Create a marketing fund 1
More state partnerships 1

50

63



Staff and leadership are important

Number of

Mentions
Hire a full time director 1
More citizen involvement on boards 1
Keep wonderful staff and leadership 1
Better communication, update website 1

Conclusion

The public responses to the survey questions indicate that, in general, park users are very happy with the
diversity of large natural resource-based parks and the activities that are offered. They appreciate the

work of the Parks staff. Many indicated that they would like more bicycle and mountain bike trails with

more connections to cities and villages. A dog park in the Fort Atkinson/Whitewater area and more
access to rivers and lakes by canoe or kayak were also mentioned. Many said the Parks Department could

do more marketing and encourage youth to use the parks.

51

64



Needs Assessment
Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 2019-2023

The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan
(SCORP) analyzes recreation opportunities, needs, and trends throughout Wisconsin. The WDNR
primarily considers state park activities but also looks at regional and county recreational trends and
provides grants to parks departments. SCORP information is useful to Jefferson County in predicting
what recreational activities the public is and will be interested in.

Jefferson County is in the Southern Gateways Region in the SCORP analysis, along with Dodge,
Colombia, Sauk, Richland, lowa, Lafayette, Green, Rock, and Dane Counties.

The full SCORP document can be found here: https://dnr.wi.gov/topic/Lands/scorp/

Top Recreation Needs at County Park Properties in the Southern Gateways Region

In this region campsites, recreational bicycle trails, dog parks, and disc golf courses were the top four
needs identified in the Southern Gateways Region. These are areas that Jefferson County has already
focused its resources and will continue to do so.

This table is based on responses to a questionnaire sent to all Southern Gateways Region county park
systems in 2018. The values reflect the percent of counties identifying the recreation activities as a top

five need on their properties.

Percent of Counties
Activity identifying activity State Average
as a Top 5 need.
Campsites 71% 58%
Hiking/walking/running trails 29% 53%
Bicycling trails — mountain biking 29% 51%
Bicycling trails — recreational/rail-trail 57% 46%
Motorized recreation trails 0% 42%
Public shore access 14% 42%
Dog parks 57% 32%
Boat launches 14% 26%
Playgrounds 29% 25%
Hunting opportunities 14% 21%
Picnic areas 29% 19%
Disc golf courses 43% 16%
Equestrian trails 14% 12%
Shooting ranges 0% 7%
Sports fields 0% 5%
Sports courts 0% 4%
Number of Counties providing input 7
52

65


https://dnr.wi.gov/topic/Lands/scorp/

Estimated potential change in statewide participation in selected nature-based recreation
activities from 2020 to 2040

This table from SCORP identifies the top 25 recreational activities expected to have the most growth
state-wide by 2040 based on population growth projections and assuming the rate of participation stays
the same as it is today.

Activity Percent Growth
Birding/wildlife watching at home 8.6%
Birding/wildlife watching away from home 7.7%
Visiting a nature center 7.3%
Nature photography 7.0%
Gathering berries, mushrooms, etc. 6.9%
Picnicking/tailgating/cookout 6.3%
Visiting a beach/beach walking 5.3%
Hiking/walking/running on trails 5.3%
Motor boating 5.3%
Fishing - any 5.2%
Hunting - any 5.2%
Driving 4-WD vehicles on trails or routes 4.9%
Target shooting 4.6%
Cross-country skiing 4.6%
Sailing 4.5%
Swimming in lakes/rivers/ponds 4.5%
Ice skating outdoors 4.2%
Bicycling on roads 4.1%
RV camping 3.9%
Ice fishing 3.7%
Walking/running dogs on trails 3.6%
Riding ATV/UTVs on trails or routes 3.5%
Target archery 3.4%
Waterskiing/tubing/wakeboarding 3.3%
Canoeing/kayaking 3.2%

Southern Gateways Summary

The Wisconsin SCORP identifies desired state park activities that county parks can also provide. The
following page out of the SCORP Executive Summary for the Southern Gateways Region summarizes a
public, state-wide survey conducted for SCORP. Jefferson County Parks already provide many of the
listed activities.

Holzhueter Farm State Park in Jefferson County is owned by WDNR but will be managed with assistance
from Jefferson County. The following summary is especially pertinent to that property.

53

66



Executive Summary

SOUTHERN GATEWAYS REGION

Home to the state’s most popular park, Devil’s Lake State Park, the Southern

Gateways Region well known for a variety of recreational opportunities.

Concentrated urban centers have driven demand for recreational opportunities,
including the prominent demand for both motorized and non-motorized trails
in the arca, B

The department believes there are opportunities to meet many of the recreational
experiences desired by the 3,700 public input on some of the properties it
manages in the Southern Gateways Region. A brief summary is provided here.

STATE PARKS

Hiking/walking/running leep trails of varying lengths. e
Surfaced bicycle trails that expand the existing network linking cities

Southern

Gateways Region
SR el ko

r !
~ |
§ omas |
5 N 1
Vo ] __t
ik | manere J—

eteny

iy ol

o l

o

and villages and campgrounds.

Mountain biking to expand existing opportunities and create new destinations.
Canoeing/kayaking with improved walk-in trails and access to waterbodies.
Lake fishing from shore or pier, by adding improved beat access sites such as
ramps for trailered boats.

Swimming in lakes and rivers that are accommodated by beaches, changing
rooms and other amenities.

Primitive camping to allow visitors to take a break from the hustle and bustle of
everyday life.

STATE TRAILS

Hiking/walking/running loop trails of varying lengths.

Surfaced bicycle trails that expand the existing network linking cities and
villages and campgrounds.

Mountain biking to expand existing opportunities and create new destinations.
Developed camping, including adding electrified sites.

Primitive camping to allow visitors to take a break on their trail adventures.

STATE RECREATION AREAS

Hiking/walking/running loop trails of varying lengths.

A future motorized recreation area is being sought to accommodate various
motorized recreation, including ATV/UTV riding, off-highway motorcycling and
four-wheel drive vehicle riding.

Surfaced bieycle trails that expand the existing network linking cities and
villages and campgrounds.

Moumutain biking to cxpand existing opportunitics and create new destinations,
Canoeing/kayaking with improved walk-in trails and access to waterbodies.
Improved beat access sites such as ramps for trailered boats for motorboating and
lake fishing.

Primitive camping to allow visitors to get away from the urban noise.

STATE WILDLIFE AREAS

Hiking/walking/running leop trails of varying lengths.

Surfaced bicycle trails that expand the existing network linking cities and
villages and campgrounds.

Mountain biking to expand existing opportunities and create new destinations.
Canoeing/kayaking with improved walk-in trails and access to waterbodies.

A number and diversity of

recreation needs were
identified by the publie,
including:

Trails for motorized
recreation

Hiking/walking/running trails
Bicycle trails — both paved

and natural surface

Camping — rustic/guiet

campgrounds

Top activities that ROA
input form respondents
participate in include:

Improved boat access sites such as ramps for trailered boats for motorboating and lake fishing.
Swimming in lakes and rivers that are accommodated by beaches, changing rooms and other amenities.
Primitive camping to allow visitors to make hunting and fishing trips more adventurous.

54

ATV/UTV Biding
Bicycling — surfaced
trails

Bieyeling - mountain
biking, single track
Camping — tent
Canoeing/kayaking
Cross-country
skiing/snowshoeing
Fishing ~ from a boat,
canoe or kayak
Fishing — from shore
Hiking, walking and
running on trails
Swimming
Snowmobiling

67



Natural Resources Overview

Jefferson County is a mosaic of farms, natural areas, and small towns. Varied natural resources and
waterways influenced where cities and villages developed, provide rich soils for farming, and continue to
support unique plant and animal habitats. Popular recreational activities such as hiking, biking, boating,
and being in nature are enhanced by high quality natural areas.

Locations with significant natural resources were identified during prior County planning efforts and the
Glacial Heritage Area Plan (see Appendix I) for potential protection and public parks. This chapter gives
an overview of the rich natural resources in Jefferson County and the factors that led to the formation of
the distinctive southern Wisconsin landscape we see today.

Climate
Jefferson County’s climate is continental .
with warm, humid summers and cold, dry 4?28637?}2?;5'?0” ;2 SSE
winters. Almost two thirds of all 00 — - ormals

Wisconsin State Climatology Office

precipitation falls during the 183 day
growing season. Both droughts and floods
are not uncommon. The median date of the 80 4
first autumn frost (32 degrees) is between
October 1 and October 10. The median
date of the last spring frost is April 21 to
May 10.

90 —

70—
60 —
50 —

40 — —_1 3
The graph to the right shows the normal
highs (red), lows (blue), average
temperature (black), and precipitation by
month (green bars) at Fort Atkinson, in
central Jefferson County.

Temperature (degrees Fahrenheit)

Precipitation (inches)

Midwest Regional Climate Center data
from 1892 to 2017 shows an average
annual temperature of 45.84 degrees in JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNN;L:‘IihAUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
southcentral Wisconsin. The average

temperature is trending upward by 1.38 degrees per century.

According to the National Weather Service Milwaukee/Sullivan 30 year Precipitation Average, Jefferson
County usually receives 34 to 37 inches of precipitation annually. Precipitation ranges from a low of 1.3
inches in January to a high of 4.2 inches in August. Normal winter snowfall ranges from 0.1 inches in
October to 12.5 inches in January with an annual average of 38.2 inches. Precipitation from 1892 to 2017
has trended upward at 4.59 inches per century according to the Midwest Regional Climate Center.
Flooding seems to have increased in Jefferson County since 2008 and parks on rivers have had to be
closed periodically.

55

68



Geology

Platteville-Galena dolomite bedrock, deposited some 400 million years ago, underlies Jefferson County
and is at or near the surface in some places. Cambrian sandstone, formed 500 million years ago, underlies
parts of the western half of the county from Jefferson to Lake Koshkonong. Precambrian rock, 545
million to 2,500 million years old, called Waterloo quartzite, forms outcrops in northwestern Jefferson
County, an important area for groundwater infiltration. Unconsolidated (loose) deposits formed during
the Wisconsin Glaciation 90,000 to 12,000 years ago include glacial till, outwash deposited by glacial
melt water; lake-laid clay, silt and sand; and accumulations of peat and windblown silts. The flatter
deposits formed the agricultural areas of Jefferson County.

Glaciation, Elevation and Drainage

Jefferson County’s landscape features were created by the retreat of Wisconsin Glaciation about 12,000
years ago. A prominent glacial feature is the Kettle Moraine in the southeastern corner of the County.
Here the Green Bay glacial lobe met the Delavan lobe and pushed up a mound of soil between them that
formed a moraine. The Kettle Moraine features the highest point in Jefferson County, sharp hills and
steep round valleys called kettles and other glacial remnants such as eskers (narrow, sinuous ridges) and
kames (conical hills).

As the glacier retreated to the north, debris and meltwater created parallel recessional and end moraines in
arcs of low gravelly hills across the County. A glacial ground moraine forms a gently undulating plain
across most of the County. Hills elongated in the direction of the glacial movement, called drumlins, are
found within the ground moraine. The northern third of the county has one of the three classic drumlin
fields in the United States and is a feature in the Garman Nature Preserve.

The Jefferson County High Elevation and Upland Woods Map on page 65 highlights elevations over 900
feet above sea level in orange and red and indicates the drumlins as oval hills and the recessional
moraines as large arcs of high elevation. Wetlands, where the ground water is near the surface, have
formed between the drumlins. Lighter soil particles deposited by glacial melt water eventually formed
good agricultural soils between Lake Mills and Lake Ripley. Palmyra, Cold Spring, Hebron, and Sullivan
Townships were once a large glacial lake basin.*

The highest point in the County, at 1040 feet above sea level, is Bald Bluff located just south of Palmyra
in the Southern Kettle Moraine State Forest. Other hills with scenic views and rugged topography are
located just west of Lake Mills, Jefferson, Fort Atkinson, in the Palmyra area, and in the drumlin fields
running east and south from Watertown and Waterloo to the Town of Sullivan. These high points are also
areas of ground water infiltration and recharge, which supplies our drinking water.

The many large and small streams that cross the County were created by melt water channels cutting
through glacial ice and drift. Marshes and shallow lakes, such as Rose Lake at Dorothy Carnes County
Park, formed where melt water did not cut channels. The lowest elevation, around 780 feet above sea
level, occurs in the southern part of the County along the lower reaches of the Crawfish, Rock, and Bark
Rivers, and along Lake Koshkonong and its associated wetlands.

! Glocker, C.L. 1979. Soil Survey of Jefferson County, Wisconsin. Nation Cooperative Soil Survey
56

69



Jefferson County is located in the Rock River Basin. Waters from the Rock eventually reach the
Mississippi River. The major tributaries of the Rock River are the Crawfish, Bark, Scuppernong, and
Oconomowoc Rivers, and Whitewater, Koshkonong, and Deer Creeks.

Soils

Most soil types in Jefferson County were formed from parent material that was influenced by glaciation,
precipitation, and vegetation such as woodlands and prairies. The soil types fall into one of seven major
soil associations:?

= Houghton-Adrian: Very poorly drained, level organic soils, formed in old glacial lake basins.

= Fox-Casco-Matherton: Poorly to excessively well drained, nearly level to very steep soils with loamy subsoil
underlain by sand and gravel. Occurrence is on outwash plains and terraces, kames, eskers, and terrace
escarpments.

= Palms-Keowns-Milford: Nearly level, poorly drained soils that are organic or have loamy or clayey subsoil.
Their location is on terraces and in depressions in old lake basins.

= Waucousta-Lamartine-Theresa: Silty or loamy soils that are poorly to well drained and level to sloping. They
are located on till plains, drumlins, terraces in old lake basins, and in low areas between drumlins.

= Rodman-Moundville-Casco: Excessively to moderately well drained soils that are nearly level to very steep
with a loamy to sandy texture. These are soils of outwash plains and terraces in the Kettle Moraine area.

= Kidder-McHenry-Rotamer: Well drained and moderately well drained soils on gently sloping to steep till plains
and drumlins with a silty or loamy texture over sandy loam glacial till.

= Whalan-Kidder: Well drained to moderately will drain gently sloping to steep soils on side slopes and ridge tops
of glaciated uplands.

Environmental Corridors

The Jefferson County Agricultural Preservation and Land Use Plan defines environmental corridors as
land that meets any of the following criteria:

e Wisconsin DNR delineated wetlands.

e Located in the 100-year flood zone, Federal Emergency Management (FEMA) designated 1
percent annual chance of flooding.

e All publicly-owned land designated as public parks or conservation areas.

e Contiguous upland woods of over 10 acres in area.

e Slopes of 20 percent or greater as determined by the USDA Soil Survey GIS map.

Significant natural resources, cultural sites, and good agricultural land often lie within environmental
corridors. The Jefferson County Agricultural Preservation and Land Use Plan suggests that these
continuous areas of environmentally sensitive land should be protected from non-agricultural
development and may be priority areas for park acquisition.

Land Cover and Land Use

The following chart from the Jefferson County Land and Water Conservation Department illustrates the
variety of land uses in Jefferson County. Farmland is the largest land use, covering 57 percent of the
372,938 acres in Jefferson County. See Land Use/Land Cover map on page 67.

2 Glocker, C.L. 1979. Soil Survey of Jefferson County, Wisconsin. Nation Cooperative Soil Survey
57

70



Jefferson County Land Uses 2018 Jefferson County Land and Water Conservation Department

o,
Land Use Acres /o Total
Acres

Agriculture - cropland, orchards, tree nurseries, uncultivated land 212,665 57.0
Wetlands — designated by WDNR 55,517 14.9
Urban and Roadway Corridors 35,593 9.5
Rural Development 22,963 6.3
Upland Woods 19,831 5.3
Surface Water 16,850 4.5
Recreational Land - public parks, golf courses, gun clubs,

. B 6,502 1.7
campgrounds, private recreation
Commercial and Industrial - retail, manufacturing, machine shops, 1001 o
railroad right of way, communications, utilities /99 5
Rural Open - vacant lots, landfills, airfields 1,026 0.3
Total 372,938 100

Woodlands

About 19,831 acres or 5.3 percent of the land area of Jefferson County is designated as upland woods.
This acreage figure does not include woodlands in wetlands. Jefferson County has extensive lowland
forests along rivers and marshes, including uncommon tamarack swamps and bogs.

Prior to the 1830’s about half of Jefferson County, east of the Crawfish River and north of the Bark River,
was heavily wooded. The rivers impeded frequent prairie fires that were set by lightning or Native
Americans managing grazing land. A fire-intolerant mature sugar maple and basswood forest evolved on
the east and north river banks. The timber provided raw materials for the early settlers who built sawmills
and settlements on the rivers.

The remainder of the County, south and west of the major rivers, was a mix of fire-tolerant open grown
oak savannas, tall prairies, tamarack bogs, and marshes. Prairies and savannas had almost entirely
disappeared prior to restoration efforts at State Wildlife Areas and Jefferson County Parks during the last
forty years. Faville and Snapper Prairies, along the Crawfish River south of Hubbleton are examples of
existing native prairies.

Many woodlands were grazed or cleared for farming and today upland woods are located on rough, stony,
steep, or poorly drained land, unsuitable for agriculture. Woodlots are sought for rural residential

58

71



development, further fragmenting the already scattered upland woods. See Elevation and Woodland Map,
page 65.

Wetlands and Flood Plains

Wetlands cover 55,517 acres or 14.9 percent of the County, see Wetland and Floodplain Map page 66.
Half of Wisconsin’s original wetlands have been lost to agriculture, highways, and urban development.
Through the efforts of the USDA Wetland Reserve Program, the WDNR, and Jefferson County Parks,
hundreds of acres of wetlands have been restored in Jefferson County over the last decade.

Two such places are the Jefferson Marsh, now called the Jefferson Marsh Wildlife Area and Jefferson
Tamarack Marsh State Natural Area (1,594 acres); and the Zeloski Unit of the Lake Mills Wildlife Area
(1,618 acres) near Lake Mills. A significant wetland restoration was installed at Dorothy Carnes County
Park as well.

Wetlands have a water table at or near the land surface. Characteristics of wetlands are hydric
(waterlogged) soils, standing water at least part of the year, and wetland vegetation. Wetlands generally
occur along lakeshores, streams, and large poorly drained areas.

Wetlands trap sediment and pollutants, hold and remove nutrients, aid in improving or maintaining water

quality, attenuate (hold and slow down) flood waters, and provide habitat for many species of waterfowl,

wildlife, and plants. Rose Lake marsh, a deep-water marsh at Dorothy Carnes County Park, may have the
greatest bird diversity in Jefferson County.

Wetlands run in concentric bands in Jefferson County, located in the low areas between moraines and
drumlins. Wetland complexes are found along the Bark and Oconomowoc Rivers in eastern and southern
parts of the County and in a zone from Waterloo to Lake Koshkonong in the western part of the County.

100 year flood plains are mapped in the Wetlands and Floodplain Map. The flood plain map was updated
in 2009. In any given year, there is a 1/100 chance of flooding in these areas. Some places, such as
Blackhawk Island at the mouth of the Rock River, flood so frequently that Jefferson County has a
program to purchase property and remove structures. Acquired land will become public and the
Blackhawk Island Fishing Pier has been installed.

Lakes and Rivers

There are 16,850 acres of surface water in Jefferson County within thirteen watersheds.® Major rivers
include the Rock, Crawfish, Bark, Maunesha, Oconomowoc, and Scuppernong.

Allen Creek, in the Town of Koshkonong, has been designated an “Exceptional Resource Water” in the
Wisconsin State Statues due to its high water quality and threatened least darter fish. The 33 acre Allen
Creek Wetlands State Natural Area protects the stream. See Jefferson County Stream chart on page 60.

There are 25 lakes in Jefferson County with 14,587 acres of surface area. Two of the lakes, Lake
Koshkonong and Golden Lake, share shorelines with adjacent counties. Nineteen lakes are naturally
formed and dams create 6 lakes. See Characteristics of Jefferson County Lakes on page 61.

8 Jefferson County Land and Water Conservation Department. Jefferson County Land and Water Resources Plan
2011-2020.

59

72



Jefferson County Streams

Jefferson County Streams I('rﬁ?lg;l; Existing Existing Use — indicates the biological use that the stream
Use supports.
Allen Creek® 8 WWSF COLD —waters capable of supporting a community of Cold Water
Ashippun River! 0-131.8 WWSE Fish and other aquatic life or that serve as a spawning
- area for Cold Water Fish species
Bark River?! 68 WWSF
Battle Creek 0-2.1 WWEF COLD I_— Cold Water_Community, high—quality_stream where
populations are sustained by natural reproduction
Crawfish River! 49.5 WWSF
0-2 WWSE COLD Il — Cold Water Community, stream has some natural
Deer Creek reproduction but may need stocking to maintain a desirable
2-12 LFF fishery
Duck Creek 11 WWSF COLD Il — Cold Water Community, stream has no natural
Galloway Creek! 5 WWFE reproduction and requires annual stocking of legal-size fish
to provide sport fishing LFF — Limited Forage Fishery;
Johnson Creek 17.5 WWSF waters capable of supporting only a limited community of
tolerant forage fish and aquatic life; waters of limited
Koshkonong Creek Lower?! 24 WWSF capacity due to low flow, naturally poor water quality or poor
habitat
iverl
Maunesha River 32 WWSF LFF — Limited Forage Fishery; waters capable of supporting
Mud Creek 8 LFF only a limited community of tolerant forage fish and aquatic
ol life; waters of limited capacity due to low flow, naturally poor
Oconomowoc River 40 WWSF water quality or poor habitat
Otter Creek? 16 WWSF
WWSF — waters are capable of supporting community of Warm
Rock Creek 0-15 LFF Water Sport Fish or serving as a spawning area for these fish
15-
4.9 WWSF WWFF — waters capable of supporting an abundant, diverse
- community of Warm Water Forage Fish and other aquatic life
Rock River 1 56 WWSF
Scuppernong River 0-13 WWSE 1. Part of stream is located in another county.
Spring Creek?! 5 WWFF
0-1.7 WWFF
Steel Brook?!
1.7-6 CcoLDlIl
Stoney Brook? 15 WWSF
. 0-14 WWSF
Whitewater Creek?!
14 - 16 WWSF

60

73



Characteristics of Jefferson County Lakes

Surface Max Mean Shoreline |Watershed
Name Area Depth Depth Length Area Public Lake
(acres) (feet) (feet) (miles) |(sq. miles)| Access Type

Bean Lake 33 6 0.87 1.3 T SE
Blue Spring Lake* 141 26 7 2.7 2.0 BR SP
Golden Lake 250 46 13 3.6 2.0 BR SP
Goose Lake 143 4 2.24 6.0 NO DG
Hahns Lake 88 10 2 1.83 998.3 NW DG
Haumerson Pond 4 3 0.5 342.6 R SE
Hoopers Millpond* 21 6 1.23 21.7 R DG
Hope Lake 126 24 5.4 1.97 2.1 BR SE
Kurtz Pond 4 0.33 0.1 NO, S DG
Lake Koshkonong* 10,460 7 5 27.3 2,543.7 BR DG
Lake Ripley 418 44 18 4.1 7.3 BR DG
Lower Spring Lake* 109 11 4 3.18 27.1 BR DG
Mud Lake, Sumner 318 7 4.1 NW

Mud Lake, Sullivan 0.3 0.09 2.2 NO

Mud Lake, Lake Mills 95 22 7.4 1.67 8.3 BR, T DG
Mud Lake, Concord 8 0.42 0.5 NO, S DG
Perch Lake 5 7 0.46 0.1 NO, S SE
Red Cedar Lake 336 4.96 2.3 BR, T SE
Rock Lake 1,371 56 16 11.9 15.1 BR DG
Rome Mill Pond* 448 7 2 13.63 111.7 BR DG
Rose Lake 140 10 3.37 1.7 T SE
Round Lake 2 3 0.26 0.1 NO, S SE
Sindon/Weegs Pond 10 12 0.6 0.2 NO, S DG
Spence Lake 33 6 1 0.4 T

Upper Spring Lake* 24 11 4 1.78 25.0 NO DG

* Impoundment

Lake Table Key Public Access

BR — Boat ramp

NO — No access

NW — Navigable water access to lake
Lake Hydrologic Types

R — Roadside access
T — Walk-in trail
X — Access not specified

Drainage Lake (DG): Impoundments and natural lakes with the main water source from stream drainage. Has at least one inlet and
one outlet. .Spring Lake (SP): Seldom has an inlet but always has an outlet of substantial flow. Water supply is dependent upon
groundwater rather than surface drainage. Seepage Lake (SE): Landlocked. Water level maintained by groundwater table and
basin seal. Intermittent outlet may be present.

Wildlife

Sport fish in Jefferson County lakes and streams includes walleye, northern pike, bluegill, white bass,
muskie, crappie, largemouth bass, and smallmouth bass. The most common river fish found in Jefferson
County are catfish, walleye, northern pike, white bass, sauger, panfish, crappie, and perch. Wetlands and
water resources provide food and nesting for waterfowl and feeding and breeding habitat for fish species.
Waterfowl frequent the County Parks and Wildlife Areas in Jefferson County during migration.

61

74




Deer and wild turkey are commonly seen throughout the County, as are coyote, fox, raccoon, opossum,
rodents, turkey vultures, and a large variety of songbirds. Bald eagles have made a comeback and are
seen more frequently.

In Jefferson County the Greater Lake Koshkonong Important Bird Area (IBA) designated by the Audubon
Society, encompasses 80,000 acres including all of Lake Koshkonong and Koshkonong State Wildlife
Area, Red Cedar Lake State Natural Area, and Rose Lake State Natural Area. The IBA program is
dedicated to identifying the most critical habitats for birds in Wisconsin using science-based criteria, and
maintaining and improving those habitats through voluntary, collaborative conservation and stewardship
actions.

Lake Koshkonong continues to harbor large concentrations of waterfowl of over 20 species during both
migratory periods. Recent surveys recorded over 20,000 ducks during spring migration.

The wetlands support herons and bitterns, Blue-winged Teal, Yellow-headed Blackbird, and significant
numbers Black Tern and Marsh Wren. Sightings of American White Pelican have been increasing in
recent years. Floodplain forests support Acadian Flycatcher, Eastern Wood-Pewee, and Prothonotary
Warbler. Cerulean Warblers have been recorded in this area in the past.*

Rare, Threatened or Endangered Species

The following tables list the rare, threatened, or endangered species included in the Wisconsin Natural
Heritage Inventory and that are known to have occurred or do occur in Jefferson County. These species
are often clustered around water bodies.®

State Status: THR - Threatened, END - Endangered, SC - Special Concern, SC/P - Fully protected, SC/N - No protection,
SC/H - Take regulated by open/closed seasons, SC/FL - Federally protected as endangered or threatened, SC/M - Protected
by Migratory Bird Act.

Federal Status (in Wisconsin): LE-Listed as Endangered, LT-Listed as Threatened, C- Candidate for listing.

Animals

Scientific Name Common Name State Status ~ Federal Status  Group Name
Acipenser fulvescens  Lake Sturgeon SC/H Fish

Acris blanchardi Blanchard’s Cricket Frog END Amphibian
Aflexia rubranura Red-tailed Prairie Leafhopper END Leafhopper
Alasmidontavirdis Slippershell Mussel THR Mussel
Bartramia longicauda  Upland Sandpiper THR Bird

Bird Rookery Bird Rookery SC Other
Chlidonias niger Black Tern END SOC Bird
Cymbiodyta toddi A Water Scavenger Beetle SC/IN Beetle
Dichromorpha viridis ~ Short-winged Grasshopper SC/N Grasshopper
Empidonax virescens  Acadian Flycatcher THR Bird
Emydoidea blandingii  Blanding's Turtle SC/P SOC Reptile
Enallagma basidens Double-striped Bluet SCIN Dragonfly
Erimyzon sucetta Lake Chubsucker SC/IN Fish
Etheostoma microperca Least Darter SCIN Fish

4 Audubon Society. Important Bird Areas.
http://iba.audubon.org/iba/viewSiteProfile.do?sitel d=3656&navSite=state
5 Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. Natural Heritage Inventory. Endangered, Threatened, and Special Concern
Plants and Animals and Native Natural Communities in Jefferson County.
62

75


http://iba.audubon.org/iba/viewSiteProfile.do?siteId=3656&navSite=state

Animals (Continued)
Scientific Name
Falco peregrinus
Flexamia prairiana
Geothlypis Formosa
Ixobrychus exilis Least Bittern

Lythrurus umbratilis ~ Redfin Shiner

Moxostoma carinatum River Redhorse

Myotis lucifugus Little Brown Bat

Notropis anogenus Pugnose Shiner

Noturus exilis Slender Madtom
Nycticorax nycticorax Black-crowned Night-Heron
Papaipema beeriana  Liatris Borer Moth
Papaipema silphii Silphium Borer Moth
Protonotaria citrea Prothonotary Warbler
Regina septemvittata Queensnake

Schinia lucens Leadplant Flower Moth
Setophaga cerulean ~ Cerulean Warbler
Setophaga citrina Hooded Warbler
Thamnophis butleri  Butler’s Gartersnake
Thamnophis proximus Western Ribbonsnake
Venustaconcha ellipsiformis Ellipse

Common Name
Peregrine Falcon
A Leafhopper
Kentucky Warbler

Plants Common Name
Scientific Name
Agrimonia parviflora Swamp Agrimony
Anticlea elegansssp.glaucus White Camas
Arnoglossum plantagineum Prairie Indian-plantain
Artemisia frigida Prairie Sagebrush
Asclepias hirtella Green Milkweed
Asclepias purpurascens Purple Milkweed
Asclepias sullivantii Prairie Milkweed
Besseya bullii Kitten Tails
Cacalia tuberosa Prairie Indian-Plantain
Calylophus serrulatus Yellow Evening Primrose
Carex suberecta Prairie Straw Sedge
Cirsium hillii Hill’s Thistle
Cuscuta glomerata Rope Dodder
Cuscuta pentagona Field Dodder
Cypripedium candidum White Lady's-slipper
Drosera linearis Linear-leaved Sundew
Eleocharis compressa Flat-stemmed Spike-rush
Eleocharis quinqueflora Few-flowered Spike-rush
Epilobium strictum Downy Willow-herb
Euerybia furcate Forked Aster
Nuphar advena Yellow Water Lily
Oenothera serrulata Yellow Evening Primrose
Platanthera flavavar.herbiola Pale Green Orchid
Platanthera leucophaea
Orchid
Polygala incarnata Pink Milkwort
Scutellaria ovata ssp. ovata Heart-leaved Skullcap
Spiranthes magnicamporum Great Plains Lady’s-tresses
Triantha glutinosa False Asphodel

Eastern Prairie White-fringed

State Status
END
SC/N
THR
SC/M
THR
THR
THR
THR
END
SC/M
SC/N
END
SC/M
END
SC/N
THR SOC
THR

SC/H

END

THR

State Status

SC
SC
SC
SC
SC
END
THR
HR
THR
SC
SC
THR SOC
SC
SC
THR
SC
SC
SC
SC
THR
SC
SC
THR
END LT

END
SC
SC
THR

63

Federal Status

Federal Status

Group Name
Bird
Leafhopper
Bird
Bird
Fish

Fish
Mammal
Fish

Fish
Bird
Moth
Moth
Bird
Snake
Moth
Bird
Bird
Reptile
Reptile
Mussel

Group Name

Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant

Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant

76



Plants (Continued) Common Name
Name

Scientific Name

Triphora trianthophora Nodding Pogonia SC
Valeriana edulis var. ciliate Hairy Valerian sC

Communities

Calcareous fen

Dry prairie

Emergent marsh

Floodplain forest

Lake--hard bog

Lake--shallow, hard, drainage Community
Lake--shallow, hard, seepage Community
Oak opening Community

Open bog Community

Shrub-carr Community

Southern dry forest Community

Southern dry-mesic forest Community
Southern mesic forest Community
Southern sedge meadow Community
Springs and spring runs, hard Community
Stream--slow, hard, warm Community
Submergent Marsh

Wet prairie Community

Wet-mesic prairie Community

64

State Status

Federal Status

Plant
Plant

Group

77



. HOLZHUETER
@ STATE
¥

v Pll\'K

; A g
; <@\, A~ 2
L TOWN OF 1 %, WAYSIDE]' KANOW
WATERE§O / % | +— P PARK ~~J BARK
- g P OWN: 5 Tk
% 3 jl‘ » |\4ATEF\T0‘ i
” TN OF F

' 'T_FORD
[y

7 , 0
¥ a2 @";_’ S

/KORTH §
PARK T, (B L ¥
TowN OFg | o 1 !
FARMINGTEN * f .

TOWN
LAKE M .

s
—
®

) e ' \ 4
" v .
3 g 1} »
J 4 ; ; POHLMANN v ) s>
G i = ey ™ e = D AR e 'a“=1 '3“':,; = ¥
A ? . " viL LAE OF |t

xJ 26 % OF |
CRAW@?{[! SULLIVAN'},

TOWN OF L
JEFFERSON

TOWNOF |
#5 " HEBRON

ALTPET

AR
..

TOWN OF
COLD SPRING

%=SPRING ,»
Tovn -+ CREAMERY,

I

4 Hosrkg: -ond PARK 1
® npian y 1 i e il WELCOME
MQUNDS # W ] l JRAVELERS
4 PARK{#S J L RN PARK
¥ : % B kp::rvo;a =
; ...; 64 oo WVMIT.WATE? i Ar m‘
Pl e 10 5 )
0 1 2 4 6 Document Name: 2018 Land Use Inventory
Mil Jefferson County Land & Water Conservation Dept.
I Vliles Date: 7/29/2020
Maximum Elevations and Upland Woods JEFF N COUNTY
County Parks and Elevations > 850 ft gy
Upland Woods :
&  County Parks C:S 850 - 900 ft

. Land Use 2018 - Upland Woods 3 900-950
950-1,063ft  MORTI]

PARKS

65

78



JWE OF %
< miLtls

SPRING i\; Y TowN oF

- CREAMERY “Jb.COLDSPRING I‘

PARK | |
‘ s WELCOME
{ . TRAVELERS
] N R
v

0 1 ] 4 6 Document Name: 2018 Land Use Inventory
. Jefferson County Land & Water Conservation Dept.
Miles Date: 7/20/2020

J

Wetlands & Floodplain
& County Parks & Interurban Bike Route AV Glacial River Trail - Off Road
”v Glacial River Trail - On Road
% Surface Water - DNR #® Planned Linking Bike Trails
. Wetlands - DNR -~ Glacial Drumlin Trail
100 Year Floodplain - FEMA
2015 PARKS
66

79



Land Use/Land Cover 2018

. Agriculture, forestry, other &1 Education, public admin.,
open space health care

a5 Arts, entertainment, and Residence or accommodation
recreation functions
Construction,mining or 1| Surface water

= extraction : e

Transportation, and utilities
¢ Wetlands

. County Parks
1 Public Lands

67

Document Name: 2018 Land Use Inventory

Jefferson County Land & Water Conservation Dept.
Date: 7/20/2020

PARKS

80



Appendix I - Planning Context

This Appendix provides short summaries of the most pertinent planning documents from recent years.
The most far-reaching plan is the Glacial Heritage Area Plan that was developed by the Wisconsin
Department of Natural Resources under the direction of the Glacial Heritage Area External Advisory
Team. After participating in the WDNR’s Land Legacy project, Joe Nehmer, Director of the Parks
Department and Steve Grabow, UW-Extension Community Development Educator, became champions
of creating a string of conservation parks in Jefferson County linked to each other and municipalities by
off-road trails. The resulting Glacial Heritage Area covers parts of four counties and 26 Townships.

In addition to the plans summarized in this section, master plans for the following Parks and Trails have
been completed:
o Crawfish River Park
Dorothy Carnes County Park
Holzhueter State Park
Korth County Park
Dr. J.S. Garman Nature Preserve
Jefferson County Dog Park
Watertown to Waterloo Bicycle Trail
Watertown to Oconomowoc Bicycle Trail

Plan Summaries

Jefferson County Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Plan 2013 - 2018

The focus of the 2013 Jefferson County Parks, Recreation and Open Space plan was to preserve natural resources
while providing outdoor recreation and creating a network like pearls on a string of parks and trails that connect to
cities, villages, and hamlets throughout Jefferson County. The Glacial Heritage Area Plan supplemented County
Planning.

The mission and visions for the Parks Department were expanded to include implementation strategies and an
extensive Capital Plan. A new brochure was developed to summarize past accomplishments, create awareness of
the mission and visions, list priority projects, and provide a guide to the parks.

Jefferson County Park Site Feasibility Study, 1998

The Feasibility Study identified thirty-five potential new park areas and developed a decision making matrix and
rating system for park site selection. Dorothy Carnes County Park and Korth County Park, among the top ten sites,
have been acquired as County Parks. The Holtzheuter Farm has been acquired by the WDNR and is a state park
under development.

Glacial Heritage Area Plan
(Text from the Jefferson County Agricultural Preservation and Land Use Plan)

Owing to a rich natural resource base, Jefferson County is within a region that the Wisconsin Department of Natural
Resources (WDNR) has designated as a high priority location to expand and enhance natural resource-oriented
trails, parks, and open spaces. Glacial Heritage Area (GHA) project will link parks, reserves, wildlife and natural
areas, and other conservation lands to nearby cities and villages with different types of trails (Figure I11-1). This
designation and associated efforts position the County to capitalize on the growing recreation and tourism
economies. The GHA Plan is, in essence, implementation of the 2005-2010 Jefferson County Parks, Recreation and
Open Space Plan.

A-1

81



Preservation of natural resource lands through the GHA effort can complement and support agricultural operations
by limiting less compatible uses, such as housing developments, that are often attracted to these areas. WDNR
intends to work with agricultural agencies and organizations to maintain and protect lands adjacent to proposed
acquisition areas (and also buffer parks from urban land uses). Lands incorporated into such areas could buffer
working farmlands from adjacent development, which may lead to fewer public trespass issues and complaints about
farm practices. The following four types of places are proposed to make up the GHA network:

Conservation Parks. The primary purpose of the conservation parks is to provide high quality opportunities for
residents and visitors to engage in a range of outdoor activities. In particular, the parks are intended to offer
hiking, biking, mountain biking, horseback riding, and cross-country skiing trails and associated facilities such
as picnic areas and places to watch wildlife. A total of ten parks and preserves currently exist in the area. The
GHA plan proposes to expand five of these and to establish seven new parks to provide a broader range of
outdoor experiences. Most conservation parks are proposed to eventually range from 200 to 700 acres.

Linking Trails. Approximately 100 miles of linking trails are proposed to meander through the countryside and
connect the conservation areas to the nearby cities and villages. The linking trails would offer longer distance
biking, horseback riding, and cross-country skiing opportunities on relatively flat lands, either off-road or
separated from vehicle traffic, and suitable for people with a range of abilities, including children and seniors.
Most trails would be within narrow corridors with surfaces of packed gravel, asphalt, or grass or a mix for
different trail users.

Wildlife and Natural Areas. The GHA plan proposes to expand the eleven State Wildlife Areas and create a
Red Cedar Lake State Natural Area to protect and restore additional native habitats, provide better public access
and more recognizable boundaries, increase public hunting and trapping opportunities, and provide additional
opportunities for rustic outdoor recreation. The plan also proposes to establish one new property — the Crawfish
Prairie Habitat Area — which would provide critically needed habitat for grassland birds and other species. In
addition, the plan proposes to buffer many of the Wildlife Areas with farming dominated areas, referred to as
Rural Landscape Protection Areas.

River-based Conservation Areas. Two types of lands along rivers and creeks would be part of the GHA. First
is a set of 5to 10 acre sites, and potentially one or two larger sites, to provide access for boaters, paddlers, and
shore anglers. These areas might include parking, boat launches, picnic areas, pit toilets, and other simple
facilities. The larger sites could provide rustic campsites accessible only from the water. The second component
would focus on natural resource protection: high-quality wetlands and floodplain forests along the Bark River,
Koshkonong Creek, and Allen Creek. These areas harbor diverse native communities and populations of several
rare plant and animal species.

To date, as a result of the Glacial Heritage Area Plan, two projects area underway: the Holzheuter Farm State Park
near Waterloo was purchased by the WDNR as a conservation park with proposed mountain bike trails; and the
Glacial River Trail off-road bicycle and pedestrian trail was expanded along the STH 26 bypass between Fort
Atkinson and Jefferson and on-road sections to Watertown have been marked. The trail will be maintained by
Jefferson County. Land has been purchased to complete an off-road section of the Glacial Drumlin State Trail north
of Jefferson.

Canoe/kayak Put-In-Take-Out sites are posted on Glacial Heritage Area Watertrails and some streams, such as
portions of the Bark River and Koshkonong Creek, have been cleared of debris for more pleasurable paddling. This
plan has been the impetus for expanding recreational activities and economic development in Jefferson County.

The Glacial Heritage Area Plan is an implementation of recommendations of the Wisconsin Land Legacy
Report. This report assessed the State’s protection needs for conservation and recreation lands over the next
fifty years. The study focused on identifying what significant “green infrastructures” remain in need of
protection. The places identified in this report are considered important from a statewide or national
perspective.

A-2

82



Five Legacy Places in
Jefferson County were
included in the Land
Legacy Report. Those
places include the
Crawfish River-
Waterloo Drumlins,
the Jefferson Marsh,
the Lake Koshkonong
to Kettle Moraine
Corridor, the Bark and
Scuppernong Rivers,
and the Upper Rock
River.

Over fifty percent of
Wisconsin’s
population lives
within 50 miles of the
area bounded by
Milwaukee, Madison,
Fond du Lac, and
Janesville and
development pressure
is changing the
landscape in this
region. Participants in
public meetings
pertaining to the plan
indicate that they
would like
recreational
opportunities near
where they live.

Jefferson County Bicycle
Plan Emphasis Summary
Bicycle and pedestrian
trails expanded rapidly in
Jefferson County since
approval of the Glacial
Heritage Area Plan. This
update to the 1996
Jefferson County

Figure 3.1

Proposed Plan

GLACIAL HERITAGE AREA

WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT ¢
OF NATURAL RESOURCES l

Bureau of Land and Fadilities \&

)
Glacial Heritage !
Area F#
Study Area ¥ T
0 25 5 s
M Ut 42l 2000 }‘ %
|
o |
|
=
S AT A e —+-—
|
|
:
Deansville !
Wildife Area §
Wikiife
Ares
e o '
» Famiy | TEEEEL SR J,,,7,7,71 ,,,,,,,
Park 114 7
.~ HOLZHUETER , I/ |
) FARM PARK R |
8 - v’ : e
o GARMAN ‘ & = r ) { 1
PRESERVE ’
1 | - x
! - L / 7
N()RTH ‘P '
{ 5|oR€ {— X o ¥ =
/ ‘ ’,
Goose Lake 17" A
Wiita Araa e I 1
PARK 7 A \
| —————
p 3 !
- ! 1
¥ e | S
(N . - b=l
i N L1 HOPE LAKE PARK . W ] ~— -~
*’, MLA(E?\E’LEY l .-, |
'} PRESERVE  poroThy * y
| CARNES Jeferson £ ‘ I %
§ ,g PARK ¥ Mersh - 4 |
i ’ Wiidife Area . =
‘ 15 ome Pond-
CEOAR LAKE g/ / Widife Area
/ CUSHMAN £
A N v SCUPPERNONG
HEHLANDS ‘e 2 V VALLEY
L PARK 2N LOWER BARK RIVER -/PARK s
!v v 4 -
KOS!—KONONIT / 1 Wi
CREEK / ( = UL B
g - i
Kosthonong l/ Egéw | e h
S inces P >
= e diny & /l PARK® {ifime aros i
= e /l
Koshhonong. & ALEN
CREEK
N o vonie
b-—— -— =74 S - ——— - R ‘-".
a Lima Marsh | Southem Unit 4
% Afkdife i -
s 1 —
w | Linking Trails
-’ T a ! Existing
. a
d | (y
a ol |
X | 7 == Planned
i
Storrs Lake |
yikdife Aroa |
{ Proposed /
|
i
Existing Land Ownership Proposed Protection Areas
State Non-profit Existing DNR - Conservation Proposed DNR Proposed
Municipal {Non-DNR) Conservation Project Boundary /| Park Ownership Area Crawfish Praine
Organization Habitat Area
Proposed Rural
River
p Land
County * Fedaol Existing DNR % Corridor il
Ownership Area

Bicycleway/Pedestrianway Plan assessed the existing bicycle routes within Jefferson County and its communities
and addressed route effectiveness, connectivity to key destinations, and safety. Off-road bike trails were identified
that link Glacial Heritage Area (GHA) and local destinations and estimated costs and funding sources for future
implementation of recommended improvements were identified.

The Rock River Trail Initiative
This trail initiative began in 2010 and was joined by public and private partners in Wisconsin in 2011. The mission
is to establish and interpret a Rock River water trail along the 320-mile river course from the headwaters in Fond du
Lac and Dodge counties to the Mississippi River at Rock Island in Illinois. The group is also looking to create a

A-

3

83



separate Rock River route on roads within the river corridor to provide access to the natural resources, recreational
opportunities, scenic beauty and historic and cultural assets of the Rock River Valley. The Rock River Trail has
been designated part of the National Water Trail System by Secretary of the Interior Ken Salazar and is promoted by
the National Parks Service.

Jefferson County Agricultural Preservation and Land Use Plan, 2012

In 2010 a comprehensive plan update with an economic emphasis identified three visions for the economic health of
Jefferson County: home grown businesses, enterprising agriculture, and small town magnetism. The Jefferson
County Agricultural Preservation and Land Use Plan was updated in 2012 and focuses on preserving productive
farmland and implements new State land use directives. Changes that may pertain to parks include updates to the
mapping criteria for environmental corridors and the purpose of environmental corridors:

e Protect and preserve an environmental corridor system consisting of wetlands, floodplains, and steeply
sloped glacial features.

e Protect groundwater and surface water quality.

e Discourage development in areas that possess valuable natural resource characteristics and wildlife
habitats. (A development density not greater than one residence per 10 acres is allowed within the
environmental corridor overlay.)

o ldentify certain areas that are being farmed today, which also have natural resource features or limitations.

Parks and farming are compatible land uses. The plan recommends that parks departments and farmland
preservation efforts partner in Glacial Heritage Area initiatives in order to buffer parks, wildlife areas, and farms
from development.

Jefferson County Lake Enhancement Project
This document makes several recommendations for lakes that might be considered from a park planning perspective
including:
e Increase water quality monitoring on lakes
Reduce the incidence of shoreline vegetation cutting
Restoration of native shoreline buffers
Education on exotic and invasive species
Monitoring for exotic and invasive species
Controlling non-point source pollution
Developing a booklet of lake recreation

Jefferson County Land and Water Resources Plan 2011-2020
The Land and Water Resources Plan makes recommendations for protecting productive soils in Jefferson County
and improving water quality and habitat along water bodies. These goals refer to Park initiatives and management:
e Achieve measurable progress on protecting the resources in Jefferson County through implementation of
conservation practices and conservation plan development.
e  Ensure compliance with the Agricultural Performance Standards and Prohibitions — could apply to land
within parks that is currently farmed.
e Adequately address the water resource issues facing Jefferson County, including protect the natural areas
encompassing rivers and streams.
e Protect and restore identified natural areas.
e Preserve and enhance woodland areas.
e Work with the Department of Natural Resources to implement various wildlife programs

A-4

84



Appendix Il — Grants and Funding

Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources

Knowles-Nelson Stewardship Program Grants
July 1, 2020 https://dnr.wi.gov/topic/stewardship/grants/

WDNR South Central Region Grant Contacts:

Local Government Contact NCO Contact (Non-profit Conservation Organization)
Cheryl Housley Mary Rothenmaier

3911 Fish Hatchery Rd. 3911 Fish Hatchery Rd.

Fitchburg, W1 53711 Fitchburg, WI 53711

Phone 608-275-3218 Phone 608-275-3322

Fax 608-275-3315 Fax 608-275-3315

Cheryl.Housley@wisconsin.gov  Mary.Rothenmaier @wisconsin.gov

Local Units of Government Grants

Local units of government (LUGS) are eligible applicants for four Stewardship grant programs and two related
federal programs. The annual application deadline is May 1 for the grant programs listed below. Nonprofit
conservation organizations (NCOs) are eligible to apply to the Stewardship Local Assistance Grant Program for land
acquisition projects.

"Nature based outdoor recreation™ means hunting, trapping, fishing, hiking, cross country skiing and other activities
where the primary focus or purpose is the appreciation or enjoyment of nature. These other activities may include,
but are not limited to, hiking, bicycling, wildlife or nature observation, camping, nature study, fishing, hunting,
picnicking, cross-country skiing, canoeing and multi-use trail activities.

Support facilities for these activities may include, but are not limited to, access roads, parking areas, camping
facilities, support facilities for swimming in a natural water body, habitat restoration, utility and sanitation systems,
sanitary and shelter buildings, signs, interpretive items, and fencing and lighting for the protection of users and other
features that enhance nature-based outdoor recreation and/or improve disabled accessibility.

Knowles-Nelson Stewardship local assistance grant programs:
e Aids for the Acquisition and Development of Local Parks (ADLP)
e Urban Green Space (UGS) grants
e Urban Rivers (UR) grants
e  Acquisition of Development Rights (ADR)

Stewardship LUG, LWCF and RTP grant programs require that all land acquisition and development projects
provide public access for outdoor recreation purposes. Stewardship LUG grant projects support nature-based
outdoor recreation activities. LWCF grants can also fund active outdoor recreation facilities (e.g. ballfields, splash
pads, etc.). RTP grants focus on trail maintenance and development activities.
LUG, LWCF, & RTP grants support a wide variety of outdoor recreation projects throughout the state. Common
projects funded through these grant programs include:

e Land acquisition for parks & trails, including riverfront property
Construction of hiking trails and bike paths
Construction of canoe/kayak launches, including those that provide universal accessibility
Construction of riverfront park amenities
Construction of park shelters and restroom facilities

A-5

85


https://dnr.wi.gov/topic/stewardship/grants/

Although these are the most common type of Stewardship LUG grant projects, the Department welcomes innovative
projects that utilize Stewardship funds.

Federal Grants Administered Through the Stewardship Program

North American Wetlands Conservation Act Grants (NAWCA)

North American Wetlands Conservation Act (NAWCA) grants increase bird populations and wetland habitat, while
supporting local economies and American traditions such as hunting, fishing, bird watching, family farming, and
cattle ranching. Wetlands protected by NAWCA provide valuable benefits such as flood control, reducing coastal
erosion, improving water and air quality, and recharging ground water. The NAWCA program provides matching
grants to wetlands conservation projects in the United States, Canada, and Mexico. There is a Standard and a Small
Grants Program. Both are competitive grants programs and require that grant requests be matched by partner
contributions at no less than a 1-to-1 ratio.

The NAWCA program operates in two cycles per year. Each cycle, eligible proposals are reviewed and ranked by
the North American Wetlands Conservation Council, a nine-member council established by the Act. The Council
may directly approve Small Grants. The Council recommends Standard Grants projects to the Migratory Bird
Conservation Commission, a seven-member commission authorized by the Act to give final funding approval.

See website for details: https://www.fws.gov/birds/grants/north-american-wetland-conservation-act.php

Rivers, Trails, and Conservation Assistance Program — National Parks Service

The National Park Service Rivers, Trails, and Conservation Assistance program supports community-led natural
resource conservation and outdoor recreation projects across the nation. Our national network of conservation and
recreation planning professionals partners with community groups, nonprofits, tribes, and state and local
governments to design trails and parks, conserve and improve access to rivers, protect special places, and create
recreation opportunities.

Contact: David Thomson, Program Manager Email: mwr_rtca@nps.gov

Nonprofit Conservation Organization Stewardship Grants

Nonprofit conservation organizations (NCOs) may apply for funding from eight Stewardship grant subprograms to
help fund the acquisition of land and conservation easements. Nonprofit Conservation Organizations are eligible
applicants for the following four grant subprograms:

* Natural areas

* Habitat areas

»  Stream Bank protection

o State trails

Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources

Non-Stewardship Program Grants
July 1, 2020 https://dnr.wi.gov/Aid/Grants.html

Angler Recruitment, Retention and Reactivation Grant Program

The Angler Recruitment, Retention, and Reactivation (Angler R3) grant program provides financial assistance to
partners who conduct Angler R3 programs and activities in Wisconsin. Funding is provided through the Dingell-
Johnson Sportfish Restoration Act, a federal aid program.

The goals of the Angler R3 grant program are to grow the numbers of anglers in Wisconsin and expand angling
participation among adults, particularly from non-traditional audiences. To achieve these goals, the Department of
Natural Resources (DNR) will award cost-sharing funds to community based organizations, community centers,

A-6

86


https://dnr.wi.gov/Aid/Grants.html

government agencies, Wisconsin tribes, colleges, universities and schools to ensure the education and development
of safe and ethical adult anglers. Grant awards may be up to 75% share of total eligible project costs.

Eligible Items

Salaries, hourly wages, and fringe benefits for applicant employees

Consultant services

Purchased services — printing, mailings, room rental

Other purchased services (specify in grant application)

Office or project supplies (specify in grant application)

Project's programming supplies, such as fishing gear (specify in grant application)
Background checks of mentors and instructors (required)

Equipment purchase (defined as items that cost $5,000 or more)

Hourly equipment rental changes (specify in grant application)

Other (specify in grant application; e.g. bus or van rental to transport classes for fishing outings)

Application deadline: September 15th of odd number years (example: 2021)

Contact: Angler R3 Grant Program manager Karen Blodgett at 715-839-3730.

ATV/UTV Trails
Counties, towns, cities, villages and tribes can apply for funds to acquire, insure, develop and maintain ATV/UTV
trails, areas and routes.

Eligible items and funding levels

« Allterrain vehicle trails available for spring, summer, and fall reimbursable up to 100 percent of eligible
maintenance costs; max: $600 per mile

» Allterrain vehicle trails available for winter riding reimbursable up to 100 percent of eligible maintenance
costs; max: $100 per mile

«  Development of ATV trails and areas reimbursable up to 100 percent of eligible costs

«  Major rehabilitation of bridge structures or trails reimbursable up to 100 percent of eligible costs

« Maintenance of ATV intensive use areas reimbursable up to 50 percent of eligible costs.

Applications are due in the regional offices by April 15 for the following season

Contact:

Jillian Steffes

107 Sutliff Ave
Rhinelander, WI 54501
(715) 210-4911

ATV Enhancement

This funding is issued bi-annually to non-profit organizations that promote the safe and wise use of all terrain
vehicles (ATVs)/utility-terrain vehicles (UTVs), ATV/UTV riding and ATV/UTV education.

Contact April Dombrowski for details and application materials.

Citizen-based Monitoring Partnership Program

To expand citizen and volunteer participation in natural resource monitoring by providing funding and assistance
with high priority projects. Qualifying topics include monitoring of aquatic and terrestrial species, natural
communities and environmental components such as water, soil and air. Maximum grant amount: $4,999
Deadline: request for proposals in the spring

Contact: Eva Lewandowski, 608-264-6057

87



County Conservation Aids

County conservation grants provide financial assistance to enhance county/tribal fish and wildlife programs. This
Fish and Wildlife Management Grant Program was created to assist counties in the improvement of the fish and
wildlife resources. The fund was established by the Wisconsin Legislature in 1965 as an alternative to bounty
payments on coyote, foxes and bobcats. Every year since the bounty program was cancelled, a state allocation equal
to the average annual bounty payment has been earmarked as matching money for a growing list of county-
sponsored fish and wildlife habitat projects. After the state budget is approved, funds are allocated to each county in
proportion to the ratio of the size of each county to the total area of the state.

Application deadline of October 1.

Contact:

Beth Norquist, Grant Manager
WI Dept of Natural Resources
1300 W Clairemont Ave

Eau Claire, WI 54701
715-839-3751

Hunter R3 (Recruitment, Retention and Reactivation) Grant Program
Formerly known as the Hunter Recruitment, Development, Training and Education Grant Program

In order to focus hunter training, development, and education programs on adults, females and families, WDNR has
developed this new grant opportunity. There is a great need for strategically developed, tested programs and results
on which to base future program priorities. The Hunter Recruitment, Retention and Reactivation (R3) Grant program
will also focus on developing and pilot testing various programs and evaluating effectiveness of those programs.

The primary purpose of the Hunter Recruitment, Retention and Reactivation (R3) grant program is to provide cost
sharing grants to local clubs, organizations, communities, governments, Wisconsin Tribes, colleges, universities, and
technical schools to ensure the education, training and development of safe and ethical hunters and mentors with
preference towards applicants focusing on adults, females and families.

Application deadline September 15 in odd humbered years.

Contact:

Emily lehl Karen Blodgett

Hunting & Shooting Sports Coordinator Program Grant Manager
608-445-8168 715-839-3730

Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF) Program

This is a federal program administered in all states that encourages creation and interpretation of high-quality
outdoor recreational opportunities. Funds received by the DNR for this program are split between DNR projects and
grants to local governments for outdoor recreation activities. Grants cover 50 percent of eligible project costs.

Eligible projects
« Land acquisition or development projects that will provide opportunities for public outdoor recreation.

»  Property with frontage on rivers, streams, lakes, estuaries and reservoirs that will provide water based outdoor
recreation.

»  Property that provides special recreation opportunities, such as floodplains, wetlands and areas adjacent to
scenic highways.

» Natural areas and outstanding scenic areas, where the objective is to preserve the scenic or natural values,
including wildlife areas and areas of physical or biological importance. These areas shall be open to the general
public for outdoor recreation use to the extent that the natural attributes of the areas will not be seriously
impaired or lost.

« Land or development within urban areas for day use picnic areas.

* Land or development of nature-based outdoor recreation trails.

A-8

88



«  Development of basic outdoor recreation facilities.
« Renovation of existing outdoor recreation facilities which are in danger of being lost for public use.

Application deadline of May 1.

Contact:

Sharene Smith, Regional Real Estate Supervisor
3911 Fish Hatchery Road

Fitchburg, W1 53711

608-275-3314

Municipal Flood Control Grant Program

This grant is available to all cities, villages, towns, tribes and metropolitan sewerage districts. Assistance is provided
with items such as: the acquisition of property, vacant land, structure removal, flood proofing, administrative
support and others. Next application deadline March 15, 2022.

Recreational Boating Facilities Grants

These grants may be used by counties, towns, cities, villages, tribes, sanitary districts, public inland lake protection
and rehabilitation districts and qualified lake associations for recreational boating facility project. Past projects have
included ramps and service docks to gain access to the water, purchase of aquatic weed harvesting equipment,
navigation aids and dredging waterway channels. DNR provides cost sharing of up to 50 percent for eligible costs.

Applications accepted anytime.

Eligible projects

«  Channel dredging - Dredging of inland water channels for recreational boating (not more than once in ten
years).

«  Construction projects

«  Facilities such as ramps and boarding docks required to gain access to the water.

«  Harbors of refuge — structures such as bulkheads and breakwaters necessary to provide safe water conditions.

« Dredging to provide safe water depths. Dredging of basins is an eligible activity only when it is associated with
project development.

«  Support facilities include parking lots and signage, sanitary facilities, fencing and security lighting for the
convenience of boaters.

* Improvement and repair of locks - Cost of improvement and repair of locks and facilities that provide access
between waterways for operators of recreational watercrafts.

» Navigation aids - Cost of aids to navigation and regulatory markers including the cost of appropriate ground
tackle.

» Rehabilitation - Rehabilitation of capital improvements that are related to recreational boating facilities.

«  Trash skimming equipment - Acquisition of equipment to collect and remove floating trash and debris from a
waterway.

*  Weed harvesting equipment - Acquisition of equipment that is necessary to cut and remove aquatic plants.

Contact:

Cheryl Housley

3911 Fish Hatchery Road
Fitchburg, WI 53711

(608) 275-3218
cheryl.housley@wisconsin.gov

Recreational Trails Program (RTP)

This is a federal program administered in all states. Municipal governments and incorporated organizations are
eligible to receive reimbursement for development and maintenance of recreational trails and trail-related facilities
for both motorized and non-motorized recreational trail uses. Eligible sponsors may be reimbursed for up to 50

A-9

89



percent of eligible project costs. Funds from this program may be used in conjunction with funds from the state
snowmobile or ATV grant programs and Knowles-Nelson Stewardship development projects.

Eligible projects

Eligible projects in order of priority are:

»  Maintenance and restoration of existing trails;

»  Development and rehabilitation of trailside and trailhead facilities and trail linkages;

»  Construction of new trails (with certain restrictions on federal lands*); and

« Acquisition of easements and fee simple title to property for recreational trails or recreational trail corridors
(must comply with the provisions of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies
Act of 1970, as amended).

Applications are typically due on May 1 each year.

Contact

Bobbi Winebar

Department of Natural Resources
2984 Shawano Ave

Green Bay, WI 54313

(920) 662-5175

Shooting Range Grant Program

Counties, cities, villages, townships, other governmental agencies or units, clubs or organizations, businesses or
corporations and educational institutions can apply for assistance in outdoor shooting range construction, including:
backstops and berms, target holders, shooting benches, baffles, protective fencing, signs, trenches, gun racks,
platforms, restrooms and other items considered essential for the project by the department. Indoor ranges may be
eligible as well, including classroom, storage and restroom facilities.

Public and Private Shooting Range applications due September 15, 2020.

Contact
Bobbi Winebar, Program Grant Manager Emily lehl, Hunting & Shooting Sports Coordinator
920-662-5175 608-445-8168

Snowmobile Trail Aids

Snowmobile trail aids are entirely funded by snowmobilers. The money awarded in grants to Wisconsin Counties
comes from snowmobile registrations, trail pass revenue and gas tax from some of the gas used in snowmobiles.
These grants are used to reimburse the over 600 snowmobile clubs in Wisconsin for some of their expenses.

Apply by April 15 for maintenance and development projects.
Apply by August 1 for supplemental maintenance.

Contact Jillian Steffes, (715) 210-4911 with questions.

Sports Fish Restoration (SER)

These grants may be used to construct fishing piers and motorboat access projects. Eligible components include boat
ramp construction and renovation, along with related amenities such as parking lots, accessible paths, lighting and
restroom facilities. Funding for this program comes from federal excise taxes on fishing equipment and a portion of
the federal gas tax.

Eligible Projects
New boat ramp and fishing pier construction and renovations, development and renovation of parking lots,

accessible paths, lighting and restroom facilities; channel dredging and feasibility studies. Matching contributions
for these grants must be from non-federal sources.

A-10

90



Grant application materials for boat access projects must be submitted by February 1, 2020.
Grant application materials for fishing pier projects must be submitted by October 1, 2020.

Contact:
Donna Kempf, Grant Manager
414-263-8569

Stamp Funds - Wild Turkey, Pheasant and Waterfowl

To provide funding to support the development, maintenance, preservation, restoration and maintenance of each
species and its associated habitat in Wisconsin. All non-profit conservation organizations and units of government
are eligible to apply. Maximum grant amount: None. Funding is allotted in two-year cycles. On average, the
following amount is available during each biennium: Wild Turkey = $1.5 million; Pheasant = $300,000; Waterfowl
= $700,000. Match requirement: 50% match required for equipment purchases using Pheasant Stamp. Otherwise,
match is not required but is strongly recommended.

Deadline: Check website for next application deadline.

Contact:

Wild Turkey and Pheasant Stamp: Mark Witecha (upland wildlife ecologist), 608-261-8458; or Jacquelyn
Waterfowl Stamp: Jason Fleener (wetland habitat specialist), 608-266-7408; or Eddie Shea (assistant wetland habitat
specialist), 608-261-0775

Surface Water Grants
This program is undergoing changes.

The Surface Water Grant Program offers competitive, cost-sharing grants for surface water protection and
restoration. Grants are available to support surface water management from start to finish. Whether your
organization is interested in education, ecological assessments, planning, implementation or aquatic invasive
species, there is probably a grant program that can help you accomplish your goals.

Aquatic Invasive Species (AlS) Prevention and Control Grants

AIS Prevention and Control Grants [PDF] share the costs of aquatic invasive species education programs that teach
about the threats posed by invasive species and how to prevent and control them. These grants also help with
projects that prevent new introductions, control existing populations, and restore habitat. Application due
December10. Here are five Aquatic Invasive Species Prevention and Control grants subprograms:

» Education, Prevention and Planning Projects (including Clean Boats Clean Waters) Apply by December 1.
» Early Detection and Response Projects Apply Year-round.

» Established Population Control Projects Apply by February 1

* Maintenance and Containment Projects Apply Year-round.

» Research and Demonstration Projects

Lake Management Planning Grants

Lake Management Planning Grants [PDF] help pay for developing management plans to protect and restore lakes
and their watersheds. Often, these plans turn into projects funded with Lake Protection grants. There are two
categories of lake management planning grants: small-scale and large-scale. Application due December 10.

Lake Protection Grants

Lake Protection Grants [PDF] assist eligible applicants with implementation of lake protection and restoration
projects that protect or improve water quality, habitat or the elements of lake ecosystems. Applications are due
February 1. There are four basic Lake Protection subprograms:

» Fee simple or Easement Land Acquisition

» Wetland and Shoreline Habitat Restoration

» Lake Classification and Local Ordinance Development

A-11

91



» Lake Plan implementation
» Healthy Lakes

Lake Classification and Local Ordinance Development Grants

Lake Classification and Local Ordinance Development Grants [PDF] help counties study lakes to assign them
different management classifications in order to guide plans to protect lakes and their watersheds that use both
regulatory and management strategies. Grants also help implement those plans. Application due December 10.

Local Ordinance Development grants help any unit of local government develop local regulations or ordinance
projects to protect or improve a lake's water quality or its natural ecosystem. Lake Classification and Local
Ordinance Development projects can be funded separately or jointly. Application due December 10.

River Protection Grants

River Protection Grants provide assistance in the formation of river management organizations and provides support
and guidance to local organizations that are interested in helping to manage and protect rivers, particularly where
resources and organizational capabilities may be limited. In addition, this grant program protects rivers by:

« providing information on riverine ecosystems;

« improving river system assessment and planning;

» increasing local understanding of the causes of river problems; and

 assisting in implementing management activities that protect or restore river ecosystems.

The River Protection Grants have three subprograms:

* River Planning. Application due December 10.

» River Management Application due February 1.

» Land/Easement Acquisition Application due February 1.

Lake Grants Coordinator Grants Specialist

Susan Graham Kurt Byfield3911

3911Fish Hatchery Rd. 3911 Fish Hatchery Rd.

Fitchburg WI 53711 Fitchburg W1 53711

608-275-3329 (ph.) 608-275-3338 (fax) 608-275-7760 (ph.) 608-275-3338 (fax)
Susan.Graham@wisconsin.gov Kurt.Byfield@wisconsin.gov

Wisconsin Habitat Partnership Fund

To help improve and expand quality wildlife habitat in Wisconsin, the DNR is continuing a program that seeks
partnerships with local governments, Wisconsin Tribes, and nonprofit conservation organizations for habitat
restoration and enhancement projects on public and private lands with the goal of increasing the amount and quality
of land open for hunting, trapping, and wildlife viewing.

Eligible projects

Habitat projects benefitting wild birds and mammals are a priority for funding consideration. Desired projects
include, but are not limited to:

e prairie restoration

» wetland restoration

+  stream restoration

» reforestation/regeneration

*  savanna restoration

»  streambank stabilization

»  timber stand improvement

* invasive species control

« wetland infrastructure upgrade or maintenance
» grassland mowing

»  prescribed fire

* upland shrub maintenance

A-12

92



Applications are due by January 15th annually.

Contact
Karen Blodgett, Grants Program Manager Sara Comstock, Grants Program Coordinator
(715) 839-3730 (608) 261-0775

Urban forestry grants

The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources offers urban forestry grants to cities, villages, towns, counties,
tribes and 501(c)(3) nonprofit organizations in or conducting projects in Wisconsin. These grants fall into three
categories: Regular grants, startup grants and catastrophic storm grants.

Contact
Chase O'Brien, Urban forestry grants manager ~ Nicolle Spafford, Budget and grant specialist
608-640-6143 715-453-2188 ext. 1274

Wisconsin Wetland Conservation Trust in Lieu Fee Mitigation Program (WWCT)

Land trusts, conservation groups, government organizations, or Wisconsin landowners may apply for a WWCT
grant to preserve, enhance, and restore wetland resources in Wisconsin. The WWCT is an in-lieu fee wetland
mitigation program that utilizes revenue generated from the sale of wetland mitigation credits to fund wetland
restoration projects. Maximum grant amount: Varies - see webpage. Match requirement: None

Deadlines vary

Contact: Josh Brown, ILF Program Coordinator

Wisconsin Department of Transportation Bicycle/Pedestrian Grants

Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP)

The Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) is a legislative program that was authorized in Fixing America's
Surface Transportation Act (or "FAST Act"), the federal transportation act that was signed into law on December 4,
2015. With certain exceptions, projects that met eligibility criteria for the Safe Routes to School Program,
Transportation Enhancements, and/or the Bicycle & Pedestrian Facilities Program are eligible TAP projects. All
TAP projects require sponsors to pay 20% of approved projects costs. TAP projects are capped. A TAP project may
not be substituted for another project. TAP projects must commence within four years of the award date.

https://wisconsindot.gov/Documents/doing-bus/local-gov/astnce-pgms/aid/tap/quidelines.pdf

WDOT Southwest Region Contact
Michael Erickson
michael.erickson@dot.wi.gov
Phone: (608) 246-5361

Fax: (608) 246-3819

TMA Contact:

Ben Lyman

Madison Area Transportation Planning Board
BLyman@cityofmadison.com

Local assistance may be available. Consult the website:
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/federal-aidessentials/catmod.cfm?cateqory=overview

A-13

93


https://wisconsindot.gov/Documents/doing-bus/local-gov/astnce-pgms/aid/tap/guidelines.pdf
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/federal-aidessentials/catmod.cfm?category=overview

Non-Governmental Grants For Transportation and Recreation

PeopleForBikes

The PeopleForBikes Community Grant Program supports bicycle infrastructure projects and targeted advocacy
initiatives that make it easier and safer for people of all ages and abilities to ride. PeopleForBikes will fund
engineering and design work, construction costs including materials, labor, and equipment rental, and reasonable
volunteer support costs. For advocacy projects, we will fund staffing that is directly related to accomplishing the
goals of the initiative. PeopleForBikes accepts requests for funding of up to $10,000. We do not require a specific
percentage match, but we do look at leverage and funding partnerships very carefully. We will not consider grant
requests in which our funding would amount to 50% or more of the project budget. PeopleForBikes generally holds
1-2 open grant cycles every year.

https://peopleforbikes.org/grant-quidelines/

PeopleForBikes focuses most grant funds on bicycle infrastructure projects such as:

Bike paths, lanes, trails, and bridges

Mountain bike facilities

Bike parks and pump tracks

BMX facilities

End-of-trip facilities such as bike racks, bike parking, bike repair stations and bike storage
We also fund some advocacy projects, such as:

Programs that transform city streets, such as Ciclovias or Open Streets Days

Campaigns to increase the investment in bicycle infrastructure

International Mountain Biking Association

To grow the quantity and quality of mountain bike trail communities, we need to accelerate the pace of trail
building. Trail Accelerator grants provide a jump-start to communities that have the interest and political support to
develop trail systems, but need assistance to get projects up and running. A Trail Accelerator grant offers awardees
professional trail planning and consultation services to launch their trail development efforts, which can often
leverage additional investment from local, regional, and national partners. Grants typically range from $5,000-
$30,000 and they require a one-to-one match. https://www.imba.com/trails-for-all/trail-accelerator-grants

Potential Projects

e  Projects that serve mountain bikers as the primary users, though multi-purpose human-powered trail uses are
viable as well.

e Projects that will result in a visible and substantial increase in access, improved mountain bike experiences, and
greater community benefit.

e Projects where the Trail Accelerator grant stands to leverage additional resources to ensure the success of the
project.

e  Projects that promote community development, volunteer recruitment, new rider development, youth riding, and
engaging marginalized community members. Higher preference will be given to projects that demonstrate a
focus on diversity, equity, and inclusion.

Natural Resources Foundation of Wisconsin

C.D. Besadny Conservation Fund grants

The C.D. Besadny Conservation Fund was established to invest in grassroots conservation and education
projects that benefit Wisconsin’s lands, waters, and wildlife, and that connect people to Wisconsin’s natural
resources. Grants range from $500 to $2,000.

A-14

94


https://peopleforbikes.org/grant-guidelines/
https://www.imba.com/trails-for-all/trail-accelerator-grants

Grantmaking Priorities:

e Innovative projects that leverage resources and partnerships.

e Projects that have measurable outcomes.

e Projects that engage and impact underserved communities in Wisconsin.

Submit all materials by email to Caitlin Williamson by March 1st or September 1st.

Contact:

Caitlin Williamson, Director of Conservation Programs
(608) 409-3109
Caitlin.Williamson@WisConservation.org

Norma and Stanley DeBoer Quiet Trails Fund

The Norma and Stanley DeBoer Quiet Trails Fund provides funding to support the creation and
maintenance of quiet trails (e.g., walking, hiking, or skiing) in Wisconsin. Grants range from $500 to
$1,000.

https://www.wisconservation.org/grants/quiet-trails-
fund/#:~:text=%20The%20Norma%20and%20Stanley%20DeBoer%20Quiet%20T rails,the%20following%
3A%20a%20nonprofit%20organization%20with...%20More%20

Grantmaking Priorities:

e The primary purpose is to create and maintain walking, hiking, or skiing trails open to the public in
Wisconsin. This includes, but is not limited to: increasing access for people with disabilities;
identification of trail locations; surveying; purchase of materials; construction; clean-up activities;
repairs of trail surfaces, railings, or existing signage; and fees for necessary professional services.

e The secondary purpose is to enhance and promote quiet trails through activities including: habitat
improvement adjacent to the trail; development, creation and installation of directional or explanatory
signage and trail guide booklets; and modest costs of events designed to increase awareness and/or use
of quiet trails.

Submit all materials to Caitlin Williamson by April 1st.

Contact:

Caitlin Williamson, Director of Conservation Programs
(608) 409-3109
Caitlin.Williamson@WisConservation.org

National Endowment for the Arts Our Town Grants

Our Town is the National Endowment for the Arts’ creative placemaking grants program. Through project-based
funding, we support projects that integrate arts, culture, and design activities into efforts that strengthen
communities by advancing local economic, physical, and/or social outcomes. Successful Our Town projects
ultimately lay the groundwork for systemic changes that sustain the integration of arts, culture, and design into local
strategies for strengthening communities. These projects require a partnership between a local government entity
and nonprofit organization, one of which must be a cultural organization; and should engage in partnership with
other sectors (such as agriculture and food, economic development, education and youth, environment and energy,
health, housing, public safety, transportation, and workforce development). Cost share/matching grants range from
$25,000 to $150,000, with a minimum cost share/match equal to the grant amount.

https://www.arts.qgov/grants

Projects
e Bring new attention to or elevate key community assets and issues, voices of residents, local history, or cultural
infrastructure.

A-15

95


https://www.wisconservation.org/grants/quiet-trails-fund/#:~:text=%20The%20Norma%20and%20Stanley%20DeBoer%20Quiet%20Trails,the%20following%3A%20a%20nonprofit%20organization%20with...%20More%20
https://www.wisconservation.org/grants/quiet-trails-fund/#:~:text=%20The%20Norma%20and%20Stanley%20DeBoer%20Quiet%20Trails,the%20following%3A%20a%20nonprofit%20organization%20with...%20More%20
https://www.wisconservation.org/grants/quiet-trails-fund/#:~:text=%20The%20Norma%20and%20Stanley%20DeBoer%20Quiet%20Trails,the%20following%3A%20a%20nonprofit%20organization%20with...%20More%20
https://www.arts.gov/grants

o Inject new or additional energy, resources, activity, people, or enthusiasm into a place, community issue, or
local economy.

o  Envision new possibilities for a community or place - a new future, a new way of overcoming a challenge, or
approaching problem-solving.

e Connect communities, people, places, and economic opportunity via physical spaces or new relationships.

Submit applications in August.

Contacts:

SAM Federal Service Desk: Call 1-866-606-8220 or see the information posted on the SAM website at SAM User
Help.

Grants.gov Contact Center: Call 1-800-518-4726, email support@grants.gov, or consult the information posted on
the Grants.gov website at Support. The Grants.gov Contact Center is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Local Foundations and Organizations

Ducks Unlimited

Fort Community Foundation

Fort Health Care

Fort Wisconservation Club

Jefferson County Farmland Conservation Easement Program
Madison Audubon Society

Pheasants Forever

Quirk Foundation

The Nature Conservancy

TREK

A-16

96



Dorothy Carnes Park — Handicap Accessible Trail
RTP-949-19N

07/2020

#10

97



#12

Interurban Trail — Phase |
Stop signs at River Road
Caution signage at fencing

07/2020

98



#14

07/ 31/ 2020 Jef f erson Count PAGE 1
11:27: 18 FLEXI BLE PERI OD REPORT gl fl xrpt

FROM 2020 01 TO 2020 12

ACCOUNTS FOR ORI G NAL TRANFRS/ REVI SED AVAI LABLE  PCT
100 General Fund APPROP ADISTMT'S BUDGET ACTUALS  ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET  USED

12801 Par ks Depart nent

12801 411100 Ceneral Property Taxes -775, 442 3,500 -771, 942 -387,721.02 .00 -384,220.98 50.2%
12801 421001 State Aid ) -1, 750 -15, 000 -16, 750 .00 .00 -16, 750. 00 . 0%
12801 421099 Capital State Ad - 10, 000 0 - 10, 000 .00 .00 - 10, 000. 00 . 0%
12801 424001 28103 Federal Gants 0 - 10, 000 - 10, 000 .00 .00 - 10, 000. 00 . 0%
12801 457017 Park Shelter Rental Fees - 11, 900 0 -11, 900 -5,892.59 .00 -6,007.41 49.5%
12801 457019 Park Shelter Deposits 0 0 0 -3,100. 00 .00 3,100. 00 . 0%
12801 457024 Canpi n%. Fees -40 0 -40 .00 .00 -40. 00 . 0%
12801 471130 State Bill ed-C her 0 0 0 -11, 249. 12 .00 11, 249. 12 . 0%
12801 472007 Muni ci pal O her Charges 0 0 0 -6,036.17 .00 6, 036. 17 . 0%
12801 482011 Rent Garden Plots -550 0 - 550 -700. 00 .00 150. 00 127. 3%
12801 482021 Canpi re)g Fee O her -500 0 -500 -227.48 .00 -272.52 45.5%
12801 483001 Sale O County Property -500 0 -500 -310. 00 .00 -190.00 62.0%
12801 485200 Donati ons Restricted 0 0 0 -5,566. 90 .00 5, 566. 90 . 0%
12801 511110 Sal ary- Per manent Regul ar 181, 431 0 181, 431 38, 126. 43 .00 143, 304.86 21.0%
12801 511210 WAges- Regul ar 272, 356 0 272, 356 131, 565. 60 .00 140, 790. 53 48. 3%
12801 511210 22101 \Wages- Regul ar 0 0 0 2,359.13 .00 -2,359.13 . 0%
12801 511220 Wages-Overtine 3,087 0 3, 087 1, 142. 46 .00 1,944.06 37.0%
12801 511240 \Wages- Tenporary 13,178 0 13,178 7,485. 07 .00 5,692.93 56.8%
12801 511240 22101 \WAges- Tenporary 0 0 0 1, 515. 25 .00 -1,515. 25 . 0%
12801 511330 Wges-Longevity Pay 847 0 847 .00 .00 847.22 . 0%
12801 512141 Social Security ] 32,968 0 32, 968 13,387.11 .00 19,581.34 40.6%
12801 512141 22101 Social Securit 0 0 0 292. 80 .00 -292. 80 . 0%
12801 512142 Retirenment (Enployer 28, 330 0 28, 330 10, 128.12 .00 18,201.94 35.8%
12801 512142 22101 Retirenment (Enpl oyer) 0 0 0 150. 29 .00 -150. 29 . 0%
12801 512144 Heal th | nsurance 79, 759 0 79, 759 26, 835. 81 .00 52,923.29 33.6%
12801 512144 22101 Heal th I nsurance 0 0 0 520. 47 .00 -520. 47 . 0%
12801 512145 Life Insurance 103 0 103 48. 13 .00 54.90 46.7%
12801 512145 22101 Life Insurance 0 0 0 .51 .00 -.51 . 0%
12801 512146 Wrkers Conpensation 0 0 0 4,258. 74 .00 -4,258. 74 . 0%
12801 512148 Unenpl oynment Conpensati on 9,412 0 9,412 4,827. 40 .00 4,584.60 51.3%
12801 512150 FSA Contri bution 11, 750 0 11, 750 .00 .00 11, 750. 00 . 0%
12801 512151 HSA Contri bution ] 0 0 0 8,131.72 .00 -8,131.72 . 0%
12801 512151 22101 HSA Contri bution 0 0 0 147. 37 .00 -147. 37 . 0%
12801 512173 Dental |nsurance 6,074 0 6,074 2,159.53 .00 3,914.57 35.6%
12801 512173 22101 Dental |nsurance 0 0 0 21.98 .00 -21.98 . 0%
12801 521219 O her Professional Serv 10, 155 35, 000 45, 155 17, 098. 59 13, 101. 00 14,955.41 66. 9%
12801 531100 Permits Purchased 583 0 583 627.00 .00 -44.00 107.5%
12801 531298 United Parcel Service 0 0 0 4. 26 .00 -4.26 . 0%

99



07/ 31/ 2020 Jef f erson Count PAGE 2
11:27: 19 FLEXI BLE PERI OD REPORT gl fl xrpt

FROM 2020 01 TO 2020 12

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORI G NAL TRANFRS/ REVI SED AVAI LABLE  PCT

100 General Fund APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET ACTUALS  ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET  USED

12801 531303 Conput er gm pnt & Sof tware 1, 000 0 1, 000 1, 266. 67 .00 -266. 67 126. 7%
12801 531311 Postage & Box Rent 400 0 400 140. 62 .00 259.38 35.2%
12801 531312 Office Supplies 2,000 0 2,000 389. 82 .00 1,610.18 19.5%
12801 531312 22101 O fice Supplies 0 0 0 52.77 .00 -52.77 . 0%
12801 531313 Printing & Duplicating 1, 000 0 1, 000 724.58 .00 275.42 72.5%
12801 531313 22101 Pr| nti g & Duplicating 0 0 0 51. 55 .00 -51.55 . 0%
12801 531314 Snall Itens Equi prrent 6, 400 0 6, 400 5,118. 95 .00 1,281.05 80.0%
12801 531320 Safety Supplies 1, 400 0 1, 400 1,173. 30 .00 226.70 83.8%
12801 531324 Menbershi p Dues 500 0 500 300. 00 .00 200. 00 60. 0%
12801 531326 Advertising 1, 800 0 1, 800 285. 41 .00 1,514.59 15. 9%
12801 531346 dothing & Uniform 900 0 900 .00 .00 900. 00 . 0%
12801 531348 Educational Supplies 100 0 100 .00 .00 100. 00 . 0%
12801 531351 Gas/ Di esel 20, 000 0 20, 000 9, 816. 37 .00 10, 183.63 49.1%
12801 532325 Regi stration 2,395 0 2,395 404. 00 .00 1,991.00 16.9%
12801 532332 M leage 2,000 0 2,000 146. 93 .00 1,853.07 7.3%
12801 532335 Meal s 200 0 200 10. 00 .00 190. 00 5. 0%
12801 532336 Lodgi n% 900 0 900 170. 00 .00 730.00 18.9%
12801 532339 Ot her ravel & Tolls 30 0 30 .00 .00 30. 00 . 0%
12801 533221 Water 75 0 75 137. 43 .00 -62.43 183.2%
12801 533222 Electric 2,500 0 2,500 958. 13 .00 1,541.87 38.3%
12801 533225 Tel ephone & Fax 595 0 595 417. 64 .00 177.36 70.2%
12801 533236 Wrel ess | nternet 300 0 300 90. 12 .00 209. 88 30. 0%
12801 535232 Graveling 1, 500 0 1, 500 332.69 .00 1,167.31 22.2%
12801 535242 Maintain Machinery & Equip 10, 500 0 10, 500 8,991.21 .00 1,508.79 85.6%
12801 535245 Grounds | nprovenents 30, 450 1, 500 31, 950 10,587. 71 .00 21,362.29 33.1%
12801 535245 28103 Grounds | nprovenents 0 10, 000 10, 000 .00 9, 800. 00 200. 00 98. 0%
12801 535247 Buil di n% Repair & Mai nt 3, 000 0 3, 000 998. 70 .00 2,001.30 33.3%
12801 535249 Sundry Repair 0 0 0 102. 00 .00 -102. 00 . 0%
12801 535297 Refuse Col | ection 2,500 0 2,500 954. 45 .00 1,545.55 38.2%
12801 535344 Househol d & Janitorial Supp 4,000 0 4,000 3,311.90 .00 688.10 82.8%
12801 535344 22101 Household & Janitorial 0 0 0 96. 40 .00 -96. 40 . 0%
12801 535349 O her SuEpI i es 11, 500 0 11, 500 7,404. 20 .00 4,095.80 64.4%
12801 535349 22101 O pplies 0 0 0 329.11 .00 -329.11 . 0%
12801 535352 Vehicle Parts & Repairs 5, 000 0 5, 000 211.41 .00 4,788.59 4.2%
12801 536533 E ui prent Rent & Lease 4,000 0 4,000 841.93 .00 3,158.07 21.0%
12801 571004 Tel ephony Al l ocation 381 0 381 349. 25 .00 3L.75 91.7%
12801 571005 Dugl i cating Allocation 158 0 158 144. 87 .00 13.13 91.7%
12801 571009 PC Group Allocation 6, 341 0 6, 341 5,812. 62 .00 528.38 91.7%
12801 571010 M S Systenms Grp Alloc(ISIS) 6, 765 0 6, 765 6, 201. 25 .00 563.75 91.7%
12801 591519 O her I nsurance 10, 058 0 10, 058 7,052. 69 .00 3,005.41 70.1%
12801 594810 Capital Equi pnent 0 0 0 75.00 .00 -75.00 . 0%
12801 594821 Capital I|nprovenent Land 10, 000 23, 800 33, 800 .00 .00 33, 800. 00 . 0%

100



"5 Munis

o a tyler erp solution
07/ 31/ 2020 Jef ferson Count PAGE 3
11: 27: 19 FLEXI BLE PERI OD ORT gl f1xrpt
FROM 2020 01 TO 2020 12
ACCOUNTS FOR: ORI 3 NAL TRANFRS/ REVI SED AVAI LABLE PCT
100 General Fund APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET ACTUALS ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
12801 699999 Budgetary Fund Bal ance 0 -48, 800 - 48, 800 .00 .00 -48, 800. 00 . 0%
0 0 -74,517. 83 22,901. 00 51, 616. 83 . 0%

TOTAL Par ks Depart nent 0

101



"5 Munis

o a tyler erp solution
07/ 31/ 2020 Jef ferson Count PAGE 4
11: 27: 19 FLEXI BLE PERI OD ORT gl f1xrpt

FROM 2020 01 TO 2020 12

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORI G NAL TRANFRS/ REVI SED AVAI LABLE PCT

100 General Fund APPRCOP ADJSTMTS BUDGET ACTUALS  ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED

12802 Carol Liddle Fund

12802 481099 Capital Interest & Dividends 0 0 0 -372.00 .00 372. 00 . 0%

12802 594960 Capital Reserve 84, 230 1, 897 86, 128 .00 .00 86, 127. 68 . 0%

12802 699800 Resv Applied Capital -84, 230 -1, 897 - 86, 128 .00 .00 - 86, 127. 68 . 0%
TOTAL Carol Liddle Fund 0 0 0 -372.00 .00 372.00 . 0%

102



*os% MUNis

o a tyler erp solution

07/ 31/ 2020 Jefferson Count PAGE 5
11:27: 19 FLEXI BLE PERI CD gl f1xrpt
FROM 2020 01 TO 2020 12

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORI G NAL TRANFRS/ REVI SED AVAI LABLE PCT

100 General Fund APPRCOP ADJSTMTS BUDGET ACTUALS  ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED

12803 Carlin Weld Park Trust

12803 535245 Grounds | nprovenents 10, 000 0 10, 000 3, 645. 00 .00 6,355.00 36.5%

12803 594950 Operating Reserve 0 -990 -990 .00 .00 -990. 01 . 0%

12803 699700 Resv Applied Operating -10, 000 990 -9, 010 .00 .00 -9, 009. 99 . 0%
TOTAL Carlin Weld Park Trust 0 0 0 3, 645. 00 .00 -3, 645. 00 . 0%

103



*os% MUNis

o a tyler erp solution
07/ 31/ 2020 Jef ferson Count PAGE 6
11: 27: 19 FLEXI BLE PERI OD ORT gl f1xrpt

FROM 2020 01 TO 2020 12

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORI G NAL TRANFRS/ REVI SED AVAI LABLE  PCT

100 General Fund APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET ACTUALS  ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET  USED

12804 Korth Park Devel opnent

12804 485200 Donations Restricted 0 - 337, 500 - 337, 500 .00 .00 - 337, 500. 00 . 0%

12804 594808 Capital Land 0 450, 000 450, 000 .00 .00 450, 000. 00 . 0%

12804 699999 Budgetary Fund Bal ance 0 -112, 500 -112, 500 .00 .00 -112, 500. 00 . 0%
TOTAL Korth Park Devel oprent 0 0 0 .00 .00 .00 . 0%

104



*os% MUNis

o a tyler erp solution
07/ 31/ 2020 Jef ferson Count PAGE 7
11: 27: 19 FLEXI BLE PERI OD REPORT gl f1xrpt

FROM 2020 01 TO 2020 12

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORI G NAL TRANFRS/ REVI SED AVAI LABLE  PCT
100 General Fund APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET ACTUALS  ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET  USED
12805 Carnes Park Devel opnent
12805 421001 State Aid 0 -7,380 -7,380 .00 .00 -7, 380.00 . 0%
12805 482002 Rent O County Property - 23,560 0 - 23,560 -11, 780. 00 .00 -11,780.00 50.0%
12805 535232 G avel i nP 0 0 0 44. 40 .00 -44.40 . 0%
12805 594821 Capit al n‘E«raoverrent Land 0 14, 760 14,760 1, 100. 00 11, 726. 00 1,934.00 86.9%
12805 594950 Operating Reserve 213,064 16, 328 229, 392 .00 .00 229,391.91 . 0%
12805 699700 Resv Applied Operating -189, 504 - 23,708 -213, 212 .00 .00 -213,211.91 . 0%
TOTAL Carnes Park Devel opnent 0 0 0 -10, 635. 60 11, 726. 00 -1,090. 40 . 0%

105



'::. munls

o er erp solution

07/ 31/ 2020 Jef f erson Count PAGE 8
11: 27: 19 FLEXI BLE PERI OD REPORT gl f1xrpt

FROM 2020 01 TO 2020 12

ACCOUNTS FOR ORI G NAL TRANFRS/ REVI SED AVAI LABLE  PCT
100 General Fund APPROP ADISTMTS BUDGET ACTUALS  ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET  USED

12806 Par ks Buil di ng

12806 411100 Ceneral Property Taxes -17, 884 -3,500 -21, 384 -8,941. 98 .00 -12,442.02 41.8%
12806 521219 O her Professional Serv 150 0 150 802. 76 .00 -652. 76 535.2%
12806 531302 Buil di ng & Mai nt Equi prent 1, 000 0 1, 000 7,290. 00 .00 -6,290.00 729. 0%
12806 531351 Gas/ Di esel 3,000 0 3, 000 .00 .00 3, 000. 00 . 0%
12806 533221 Water 1, 200 0 1, 200 446. 04 .00 753.96 37.2%
12806 533222 El ectric 5, 000 0 5, 000 2,265.12 .00 2,734.88 45.3%
12806 533223 Sewer 1, 200 0 1, 200 456. 20 .00 743.80 38.0%
12806 533224 Natural Gas 1, 000 0 1, 000 1, 257. 69 .00 -257.69 125.8%
12806 533225 Tel ephone & Fax 600 0 600 478. 35 .00 121.65 79.7%
12806 533235 Storm Water Uility 775 0 775 342.10 .00 432.90 44.1%
12806 533236 Wrel ess |Internet 400 0 400 250. 80 .00 149.20 62. 7%
12806 535232 Graveling 0 0 0 62. 40 .00 -62.40 . 0%
12806 535242 WMai ntai n Machi nery & Eqm p 1, 500 3, 500 5, 000 1, 780. 76 .00 3,219.24 35.6%
12806 535246 Buil ding Service & Min 0 0 0 459. 00 .00 -459. 00 . 0%
12806 535349 Ot her Supplies 100 0 100 809. 01 .00 -709. 01 809. 0%
12806 591519 O her | nsurance 1, 959 0 1, 959 1, 242. 69 .00 716.31 63.4%

TOTAL Par ks Bui | di ng 0 0 0 9, 000. 94 .00 -9, 000. 94 . 0%

106



":% munis

o a tyler erp solution
07/ 31/ 2020 Jef ferson Count PAGE 9
11: 27: 19 FLEXI BLE PERI OD REPORT gl f1xrpt

FROM 2020 01 TO 2020 12

ACCOUNTS FOR ORI G NAL TRANFRS/ REVI SED AVAI LABLE  PCT
100 General Fund APPROP ADJSTMI'S BUDGET ACTUALS  ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET  USED

12807 Garman Nat ure Preserve

12807 485200 Donations Restricted - 155, 872 0 - 155, 872 .00 .00 - 155, 872. 00 . 0%
12807 521219 O her Professional Serv 77, 872 0 77,872 2,288. 00 .00 75, 584. 00 2. 9%
12807 535245 Grounds | nprovenents 28, 000 0 28, 000 .00 .00 28, 000. 00 . 0%
12807 594821 Capital |nprovenent Land 50, 000 0 50, 000 30, 000. 00 15, 000. 00 5,000.00 90.0%
12807 594950 Qperati nP serve 0 27,029 27,029 .00 .00 27,028. 77 . 0%
12807 699700 Resv Appli ed Operating 0 -27,029 -27,029 .00 .00 -27,028. 77 . 0%

TOTAL Garnman Nature Preserve 0 0 0 32,288. 00 15, 000. 00 -47,288.00 . 0%

107



*os% MUNis

o a tyler erp solution
07/ 31/ 2020 Jef ferson Count PAGE 10
11: 27: 19 FLEXI BLE PERI OD ORT gl f1xrpt

FROM 2020 01 TO 2020 12

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORI G NAL TRANFRS/ REVI SED AVAI LABLE  PCT
100 General Fund APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET ACTUALS  ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET  USED
12808 4 aci al Heritage Devel opment
12808 421099 Capital State Aid -17, 500 0 -17, 500 .00 .00 -17, 500. 00 . 0%
12808 531313 Printing & Duplicating 16, 945 0 16, 945 .00 .00 16, 945. 00 . 0%
12808 594821 Capital | nprovenent Land 30, 000 0 30, 000 30, 953. 58 .00 -953.58 103.2%
12808 594950 Operat i ncI;_ serve 0 18, 445 18, 445 .00 .00 18, 445. 00 . 0%
12808 699700 Resv Applied Operating - 16, 945 - 18, 445 - 35, 390 .00 .00 - 35, 390. 00 . 0%
TOTAL d aci al Heritage Devel oprent 12, 500 0 12, 500 30, 953. 58 .00 - 18, 453. 58 247. 6%

108



"5 Munis

o a tyler erp solution
07/ 31/ 2020 Jefferson Count PAGE 11
11:27: 19 FLEXI BLE PERI CD gl f1xrpt
FROM 2020 01 TO 2020 12

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORI G NAL TRANFRS/ REVI SED AVAI LABLE PCT
100 General Fund APPRCOP ADJSTMTS BUDGET ACTUALS  ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
12809 Snownobile Trails
12809 421001 State Aid -57,210 0 -57,210 .00 .00 -57,210. 00 . 0%
12809 535245 G ounds | nprovenents 57, 210 0 57, 210 .00 .00 57, 210. 00 . 0%
12809 535349 Ot her Supplies 0 0 0 2,083. 30 .00 -2,083. 30 . 0%

TOTAL Snownpbile Trails 0 0 0 2,083. 30 .00 -2,083. 30 . 0%

109



% munis

.Ay'tyler erp solution

07/ 31/ 2020 Jef f erson Count PAGE 12
11: 27: 19 FLEXI BLE PERI OD REPORT gl f1xrpt
FROM 2020 01 TO 2020 12
ACCOUNTS FOR: ORI G NAL TRANFRS/ REVI SED AVAI LABLE PCT
100 General Fund APPRCOP ADJSTMTS BUDGET ACTUALS ENCUVBRANCES BUDGET USED
12810 Bi ke Trails
12810 421099 28101 Capital State Aid 0 -620, 347 - 620, 347 .00 .00 -620, 347. 48 . 0%
12810 485200 Donations Restricted 0 0 0 -10. 57 .00 10. 57 . 0%
12810 485200 28101 Donations Restricted 0 0 0 -7,100. 00 .00 7,100. 00 . 0%
12810 535245 G ounds | nprovenents 0 0 0 34.90 .00 -34.90 . 0%
12810 535349 O her Supplies 0 0 0 76. 56 .00 -76. 56 . 0%
12810 594821 Capital |nprovenent Land 0 4,168 4,168 .00 .00 4,167.70 . 0%
12810 594821 28101 Capital |nprovenment Lan 0 1, 170, 347 1,170, 347 49, 352. 26 7,448. 22 1, 113, 547. 00 4. 9%
12810 594950 Qperati nP. Reserve 94, 408 0 94, 408 .00 .00 94, 408. 00 . 0%
12810 699700 Resv Applied Operating -94, 408 0 - 94, 408 .00 .00 - 94, 408. 00 . 0%
12810 699800 Resv Applied Capital 0 -4,168 -4,168 .00 .00 -4,167.70 . 0%
12810 699999 Budgetary Fund Bal ance 0 - 550, 000 - 550, 000 .00 .00 - 550, 000. 00 . 0%
TOTAL Bike Trails 0 0 0 42,353. 15 7,448. 22 -49, 801. 37 . 0%

110



07/ 31/ 2020 Jef f erson Count PAGE 13
11:27: 19 FLEXI BLE PERI OD REPORT gl fl xrpt

FROM 2020 01 TO 2020 12

ACCOUNTS FOR ORI G NAL TRANFRS/ REVI SED AVAI LABLE  PCT
100 General Fund APPROP ADISTMTS BUDGET ACTUALS  ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET  USED

12811 Dog Park

12811 451038 Daily Pernit Fees -5, 000 0 - 5,000 -1,417. 49 .00 -3,582.51 28.3%
12811 451039 Annual Pernit Fees -32, 000 0 -32, 000 -23,081. 49 .00 -8,918.51 72.1%
12811 485200 Donations Restricted 0 0 0 -2,145.58 .00 2,145.58 . 0%
12811 511210 V\a%es- Regul ar 24,034 0 24,034 12, 430. 64 .00 11,603.04 51.7%
12811 511210 22101 Wages- Regul ar 0 0 0 3,381.39 .00 -3,381.39 . 0%
12811 512141 Social Security ) 1, 826 0 1,826 922. 84 .00 903.40 50.5%
12811 512141 22101 Social Securit 0 0 0 258. 69 .00 - 258. 69 . 0%
12811 512142 Retirenment (Enployer 1,622 0 1,622 839. 09 .00 783.15 51.7%
12811 512142 22101 Retirenent (Enpl oyer) 0 0 0 228. 24 .00 -228. 24 . 0%
12811 512144 Health | nsurance 3, 857 0 3, 857 771. 36 .00 3,085.45 20.0%
12811 512145 Life Insurance 22 0 22 9. 20 .00 12.64 42.1%
12811 512145 22101 Life Insurance 0 0 0 2.96 .00 -2.96 . 0%
12811 512148 Unenpl oynment Conpensati on 3,120 0 3,120 2, 360. 00 .00 760.00 75.6%
12811 512150 FSA Contri bution 500 0 500 .00 .00 500. 00 . 0%
12811 512173 Dental |nsurance 276 0 276 64. 50 .00 211.50 23.4%
12811 531311 Postage & Box Rent 1, 000 0 1, 000 357.94 .00 642.06 35.8%
12811 531313 Printing & DquI i cating 500 0 500 175.74 .00 324.26 35.1%
12811 531314 Spull Itens Equi prrent 250 0 250 .00 .00 250. 00 . 0%
12811 533236 Wrel ess |Internet 480 0 480 90. 12 .00 389.88 18.8%
12811 535232 Graveling ] ) 0 0 0 120. 20 .00 -120. 20 . 0%
12811 535242 Maintain Machinery & Equip 0 0 0 146. 79 .00 -146. 79 . 0%
12811 535245 Grounds | nprovenents 1, 500 0 1, 500 137.50 .00 1,362.50 9.2%
12811 535297 Refuse Col|ection 720 0 720 300. 75 .00 419.25 41.8%
12811 535349 O her SquI ies ) 4, 000 0 4, 000 3,777.65 .00 222.35 94.4%
12811 535352 Vehicle Parts & Repairs 0 0 0 57. 26 .00 -57.26 . 0%
12811 571005 Duplicating Al location 819 0 819 750. 75 .00 68.25 91.7%
12811 571009 M'S PC Group All ocation 1, 057 0 1, 057 968. 88 .00 88.12 91.7%
12811 571010 M S Systenms Grp Alloc(1SIS) 498 0 498 456. 50 .00 41.50 91.7%
12811 591519 O her | nsurance 412 0 412 279.74 .00 132.45 67.9%
12811 594821 Capital | nprovenment Land 20, 000 0 20, 000 20, 860. 00 .00 -860. 00 104. 3%
12811 594950 Operati n% eserve 13, 666 65, 343 79, 009 .00 .00 79, 009. 37 . 0%
12811 699992 Bal ance Forward Prior Year -43, 159 - 65, 343 -108, 502 .00 .00 -108, 502. 37 . 0%

TOTAL Dog Park 0 0 0 23,104. 17 .00 -23,104. 17 . 0%

111



07/ 31/ 2020 Jef f erson Count PACGE 14
11:27: 19 FLEXI BLE PERI OD REPORT gl fl xrpt

FROM 2020 01 TO 2020 12

ACCOUNTS FOR ORI G NAL TRANFRS/ REVI SED AVAI LABLE  PCT
100 General Fund APPROP ADISTMTS BUDGET ACTUALS  ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET  USED

12812 Grounds Keepi ng

12812 474119 Courthouse Interdepart Billed -13, 702 0 -13, 702 -5,168. 35 .00 -8,533.65 37.7%
12812 474150 Human Services Billed -18, 162 0 -18, 162 -5,353. 59 .00 -12,808.41 29.5%
12812 474169 Fair Billed ) ) - 25,620 0 - 25,620 -11,475. 19 .00 -14,144.81 44.8%
12812 474170 Land Conservation Billed -425 0 -425 -477.59 .00 52.59 112. 4%
12812 474175 Hi ghway Bill ed -9,701 0 -9,701 -4,979. 13 .00 -4,721.87 51.3%
12812 483004 Sale Sal vage & Waste -13, 500 0 -13, 500 .00 .00 - 13, 500. 00 . 0%
12812 511110 Sal ary- Per manent Regul ar 3, 828 0 3,828 2,006. 65 .00 1,821.46 52.4%
12812 511210 WAges- Regul ar 32, 367 0 32, 367 14, 896. 72 .00 17,470.73 46.0%
12812 511220 Wages-Overtine 0 0 0 7.15 .00 -7.15 . 0%
12812 511240 Wages- Tenporary 0 0 0 220. 00 .00 -220. 00 . 0%
12812 511330 Wages-Longevity Pay 40 0 40 .00 .00 39. 66 . 0%
12812 512141 Social Security 2,758 0 2,758 1, 300. 60 .00 1,457.64 47.2%
12812 512142 Retirement (Enployer) 1, 807 0 1, 807 846. 63 .00 960. 21 46. 9%
12812 512144 Heal th | nsurance 4,320 0 4,320 1, 970. 46 .00 2,349.20 45.6%
12812 512145 Life Insurance ) 8 0 8 3.15 .00 4.70 40.1%
12812 512148 Unenpl oynent Conpensati on 2,023 0 2,023 2,160. 60 .00 -137.79 106. 8%
12812 512150 FSA Contri bution 750 0 750 .00 .00 750. 00 . 0%
12812 512151 HSA Contri bution 0 0 0 470.91 .00 -470.91 . 0%
12812 512173 Dental | nsurance 352 0 352 149.41 .00 202.49 42.5%
12812 521219 O her Prof essional Serv 500 0 500 .00 .00 500. 00 . 0%
12812 531314 Snull Items OF Equi pnent 400 0 400 .00 .00 400. 00 . 0%
12812 531320 Safety Sulopl ies 600 0 600 .00 .00 600. 00 . 0%
12812 531351 Gas/ Di ese ] ) 4, 850 0 4, 850 1, 603. 20 .00 3,246.80 33.1%
12812 535242 Mai ntain Machinery & Equip 1, 000 0 1, 000 2,463. 02 .00 -1,463.02 246.3%
12812 535245 G ounds | nprovenents 5, 000 0 5, 000 244. 05 .00 4, 755. 95 4. 9%
12812 535249 Sundry Repair 0 0 158. 40 .00 -158. 40 . 0%
12812 535349 O her SquI ies ) 3,500 0 3,500 530. 67 .00 2,969.33 15.2%
12812 535352 Vehicle Parts & Repairs 1, 200 0 1, 200 135. 94 .00 1,064.06 11.3%
12812 536533 Equi prment Rent & Lease 300 0 300 .00 .00 300. 00 . 0%
12812 571010 M'S Systems Gp Alloc(lSIS) 651 0 651 596. 75 .00 54.25 91.7%
12812 591519 O her | nsurance 1, 356 0 1, 356 875. 59 .00 480.89 64.5%
12812 594810 Capital Equi pnent 80, 370 0 80, 370 35, 768. 40 .00 44,601. 60 44.5%
12812 594811 Capital Autonobiles 52, 000 0 52, 000 .00 .00 52, 000. 00 . 0%

TOTAL G ounds Keeping 118, 870 0 118, 870 38, 954. 45 .00 79,915.55 32.8%

112



*oe% MUNis

o a tyler erp solution
07/ 31/ 2020 Jefferson Count PAGE 15
11: 27: 19 FLEXI BLE PERI OD REPORT gl f1xrpt

FROM 2020 01 TO 2020 12

ACCOUNTS FOR ORI G NAL TRANFRS/ REVI SED AVAI LABLE  PCT
100 General Fund APPROP ADISTMTS BUDGET ACTUALS  ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET  USED

12813 Flood Mtigation Prop Mint

12813 411100 Ceneral Property Taxes -45, 870 0 -45, 870 -22,935. 00 .00 -22,935.00 50.0%
12813 521219 O her Professional Serv 0 10, 000 10, 000 .00 .00 10, 000. 00 . 0%
12813 521220 Consul t ant 25, 000 0 25, 000 .00 .00 25, 000. 00 . 0%
12813 535245 Grounds | nprovenents 20, 870 0 20, 870 .00 .00 20, 870. 00 . 0%
12813 699999 Budgetary Fund Bal ance 0 -10, 000 - 10, 000 .00 .00 - 10, 000. 00 . 0%
TOTAL Fl ood Mtigation Prop Mint 0 0 0 -22,935.00 .00 22,935. 00 . 0%
TOTAL General Fund 131, 370 0 131, 370 73,922. 16 57, 075. 22 372.62 99. 7%

TOTAL REVENUES -1,674,935 -1,851,127 -3,526,062 -526,041. 24 .00 -3,000,020.66

TOTAL EXPENSES 1, 806, 305 1,851, 127 3, 657,432 599, 963. 40 57, 075. 22 3, 000, 393. 28

113



"5 Munis

L a tyler erp solution

07/ 31/ 2020 Jefferson Count PAGE 16
11:27: 19 FLEXI BLE PERI CD ORT gl f1xrpt

FROM 2020 01 TO 2020 12

ORI G NAL TRANFRS/ REVI SED AVAI LABLE  PCT
APPROP ADJSTMI'S BUDGET ACTUALS  ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET  USED
GRAND TOTAL 131, 370 0 131, 370 73,922.16 57, 075. 22 372.62 99. 7%

114



	ADPFF90.tmp
	ORDINANCE NO. 2020-___




